
 

Page 1 of 325 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 03, 2019 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of August 19, 2019. 

Agenda Revisions 

Old Business 

2. Pass Ordinance #2953, amending Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785 and 2923, providing 
that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located within the 
amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, by and for the benefit of the 
State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, 
Hudson Community School District, Dike-New Hartford Community School District and other taxing 
districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to 
and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the City in connection with 
Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, upon its 
third & final consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

3. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Craig Schwerdtfeger to the 
Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 06/30/2022. 

4. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 19, 2019 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Cedar River Recreation Enhancement.  
b) Visitors & Tourism Division Update. 
c) Cultural Programs Annual Update. 
d) Bills & Payroll. 

5. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a certified list for the 
position of Planner II. 

6. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of July 2019. 

7. Approve the application of Cypress Lounge, 209 State Street, for a cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor 
permit. 

8. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Sidecar Coffee, 2215 College Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
b) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class B liquor, Class B native wine & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
c) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

1



 

Page 2 of 325 

d) Great Wall, 2125 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
e) Casey's General Store, 5908 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - change in ownership. 
f) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 
g) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 
h) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 
i) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 
j) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor 
service area. (September 13-15, 2019) 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

9. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Landlord Estoppel, Consent and Agreement 
between the City, the Board of Trustees of the Municipal Electric Utility, and Cedar Falls Solar Farm, 
LLC, relative to a Lease Agreement for the use of certain city-owned property located at 800 Viking 
Road as a solar garden. 

10. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Standard Form of Agreement with Failor Hurley 
Construction for The Falls Aquatic Center - Pump Building and Dumpster Enclosure Renovation 
Project. 

11. Resolution approving and adopting the Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau Strategic Plan for 
2019-2022. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Zimmerman, Laurent & Richardson, Inc., d/b/a ZLR Ignition, for digital advertising. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of an aerial boom 
truck. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an agreement with INVISION Architecture, LTD 
for design services relative to the City Hall Remodel Project. 

15. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Vieth 
Construction Corporation, in the amount of $224,575.00, for the 2019 Peter Melendy Park 
Renovation Project. 

16. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Vieth Construction Corporation for the 
2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with Owen5, LLC relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for Lot 16, 
Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I. 

18. Resolution approving a public improvement, authorizing acquisition of private property for said 
project, and establishing just compensation, in conjunction with the 2018 Street Construction Project. 

19. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located 
at 1931 Iowa Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Transportation Services Agreement with 
Metropolitan Transit Authority of Black Hawk County (MET Transit) for downtown shuttle services 
from September 5, 2019 thru January 18, 2020. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing a Memorandum of Agreement for Professional Support for 
Housing Choice Voucher Program with the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments 
(INRCOG) relative to the City's Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Termination of Real Estate Purchase 
Agreement with DS Warehouse, LLC relative to Lot 1, West Viking Road Industrial Park, Phase I. 

2



 

Page 3 of 325 

23. Resolution supplementing Resolution #21,663, being a resolution approving the voluntary 
annexation of property to the City of Cedar Falls which lies within two (2) miles of the corporate 
boundaries of the City of Hudson. 

24. Resolution setting September 16, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a proposed amendment to 
the Future Land Use Map by changing the designation from Greenways/Floodplain and 
Neighborhood Commercial to Low Density Residential for property located in the vicinity of 1700-
2000 Union Road. 

25. Resolution setting September 16, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from 
A-1, Agricultural, to R-1, Residential District, of property located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union 
Road. 

Ordinances 

26. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to 48-hour parking on city streets, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

27. Allow Bills and Payroll of September 3, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

28. Refer to city staff a request to develop a policy which names city streets after the annually-awarded 
Representative Citizens of Cedar Falls. 

29. Refer to the Committee of the Whole a request to designate the Public Safety Facility as Cedar Falls 
Public Safety Center. 

30. Refer to the Art & Culture Board/Public Art Committee, to work with the Community Development 
Department to incorporate a plaque in honor of Barbara Brown into the Main Street streetscape 
design. 

City Council Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AUGUST 19, 2019 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Absent: None. 

 
52455 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of August 5, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Brown made a tribute to former Councilmember Barbara Brown. 
Councilmembers Darrah and Wieland also expressed their appreciation for the 
work she has done for the community over the years. 

 
52456 - Public Safety Services Director Olson provided introductions and Mayor Brown 

proceeded with the Administration of Oath to new Public Safety Officers Joshua 
Getz and Morgan Hoeft and Reserve Officers Cory Hines, Adam Spray, Mark 
Kelley and Adam Aries. 

 
52457 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of August 9, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 Peter Melendy 
Park Renovation Project. It was then moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52458 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer 
Tolan provided a brief explanation of the proposed project and responded to 
questions by Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52459 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,661, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project, be adopted. Following 
a question by Councilmember Darrah and response by Community Development 
Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,661 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52460 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,662, 

4

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

correcting a scrivener's error and amending Resolution #21,590 relative to 
voluntary annexation of certain real estate, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,662 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52461 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 19, 

2019, this was the time and place for public hearing applications for voluntary 
annexation of certain real estate to the City of Cedar Falls. It was then moved by 
deBuhr and seconded by Blanford that the proof of publication of notice of 
hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52462 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Capital Improvements Program. Upon being advised that there was 
one written communication on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. 
Economic Development Coordinator Graham provided a brief summary of the 
proposed annexation. There being no one else present wishing to speak either 
for or against the proposed annexation, the Mayor declared the hearing closed 
and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52463 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,663, 

approving the voluntary annexation of property to the City of Cedar Falls which 
lies within two (2) miles of the corporate boundaries of the City of Hudson, be 
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,663 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
52464 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of August 9, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed 
Agreement for Private Development and conveyance of certain city-owned real 
estate to Strickler Properties, L.C. It was then moved by Green and seconded by 
Blanford that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52465 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Agreement. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham provided a brief explanation of the proposed 
Agreement. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the 
proposed Agreement, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the 
next order of business. 

 
52466 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Green that Resolution #21,664, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development 
and a Minimum Assessment Agreement with Strickler Properties, L.C., and 
approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to 

5

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

certain real estate to Strickler Properties, L.C., be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,664 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52467 -    It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2950, 

granting a partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC for construction of an 
industrial use manufacturing and office facility at 6601 Development Drive, be 
passed upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52468 -    It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2952, 

granting a partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, LLC for construction of 
an industrial use lab and office facility at 3019 Venture Way, be passed upon its 
second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52469 -    It was moved by Green and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2953, 

amending Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785 and 2923, providing that 
general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located 
within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Area, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of 
Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School 
District, Dike-New Hartford Community School District and other taxing districts, 
be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies 
advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred 
by the City in connection with Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified 
Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52470 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Charles 
Blair-Broeker to the Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2022. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 5, 2019 relative 
to the following items:  
a) Library Board of Trustees Interview - Charles Blair-Broeker.  
b) College Hill Parking Study.  
c) Information Systems Update.  

6

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

d) On-street parking of trailers.  
e) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a 
certified list for the position of Planner I. 
Approve the application of Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Main Street Sweets, 307 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal.  
b) Amigo, 5809 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  
c) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service 

- renewal.  
d) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service 

- renewal.  
e) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 

service - renewal.  
f) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, Class E liquor - renewal.  
g) The Music Station, 1420 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal.  
h) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E liquor - renewal.  
i) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - new.  
j) College Hill Partnership (Oktoberfest), Municipal Lot G, Special Class C liquor 

& outdoor service - 5-day permit. 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52471 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,665, approving and adopting revised job classifications for the 
positions of Community Services Coordinator and Housing Program Specialist in 
the Community Development Department. 

 
Resolution #21,666, approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the City of Waterloo and Black Hawk County relative to the 
2019-2020 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) funding for 
the Tri-County Drug Enforcement Task Force. 

 
Resolution #21,667, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of a day cab tractor. 
 
Resolution #21,668, approving and accepting five Owner's Temporary Grading 
Easements, in conjunction with the 12th Street South Ditch Grading Project. 
 
Resolution #21,669, receiving and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of 
Feldman Concrete, in the amount of $155,170.41, for the 2019 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project, Zone 2. 
 
Resolution #21,670, approving and authorizing execution of a Third Amendment 

7

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

to Maintenance and Repair Agreement and Permanent Easement with Panther 
Farms, LLC relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for 
Prairie Winds 4th Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,671, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with JC Enterprises, Inc. relative to a post-
construction stormwater management plan for 110 Lincoln Street. 
 
Resolution #21,672, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with Zuidberg NA, LLC relative to a post-
construction stormwater management plan for 2700 Capital Way. 
 
Resolution #21,673, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for 
Completion of Improvements with Panther Farms, LLC relative to the final plat of 
Prairie Winds 4th Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,674, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Minturn, 
Inc. for the 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project. 
 
Resolution #21,675, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 4A to the Professional Service Agreement with Clapsaddle 
Garber Associates, Inc. for construction observation and testing services relative 
to Prairie Winds 4th Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,676, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 6A to the Professional Service Agreement with Clapsaddle 
Garber Associates, Inc. for construction observation and testing services relative 
to Sands Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,677, approving the closure of the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) 
Program (a/k/a Section 8) Waiting List, as recommended by the Housing 
Commission. 
 
Resolution #21,678, approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District 
site plan for facade improvements at 100 East 2nd Street. 
 
Resolution #21,679, approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning 
District site plan for construction of a single-unit residential dwelling at 1809 
College Street. 
 
Resolution #21,680, approving the preliminary plat of Pheasant Hollow Seventh 
Addition. 

 
Resolution #21,681, approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement relative to an Agreement for Private Development and 
conveyance of development property by Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. to Broadstone 
BCI Iowa, LLC. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 

8

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,665 through #21,681 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52472 - It was moved by Blanford and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,682, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Parking Lot Lease Agreement with 
Viking Pump, Inc. relative to use of a parking lot located in the vicinity of East 4th 
Street and State Street for public parking, be adopted. Following supportive 
comments by Councilmember Wieland and Community Main Street Director 
Carol Lilly, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,682 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52473 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,683, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Ash Tree Removal Services Informal 
Project Contract with Twin City Tree Service, LLC, be adopted. Following a 
question by Councilmember Wieland and response by Public Works Director 
Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,683 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52474 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,684, 

approving the final plat of Prairie Winds 4th Addition, be adopted. Following a 
question by Councilmember deBuhr and response by City Administrator Gaines, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#21,684 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52475 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,685, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG) Programming Agreement with Black Hawk County Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) relative to the Main Street Reconstruction Project, be 
adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers deBuhr and Kruse, and 
responses by Community Development Director Sheetz and City Administrator 
Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,685 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52476 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the bills and payroll of 

August 19, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

9

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

  
52477 - Mayor Brown announced that the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting 

will be Tuesday, September 3, 2019 due to the Labor Day holiday.  
 
 Mayor Brown recognized the upcoming retirements of Building Official Craig 

Witry with 24 years of service, and Fire Captain Mike Buhrow with 38 years of 
service. 

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson announced the graduation of Public Safety 

Officers Marissa Abbott, Thomas Baltes, Kaleb Bruggeman, Tyler Lenox and 
Tyler Putney from the Iowa Law Enforcement Academy in Des Moines, IA on 
August 16, 2019. Public Safety Officer Baltes received the top academic award 
for highest GPA of the class and Public Safety Officer Abbott was elected and 
served as class president. 

  
 City Administrator Gaines provided a Climate Action Plan update and announced 

an upcoming meeting to compile an action plan. 
 
 Community Development Director Sheetz announced that Cedar Falls was 

nominated for the Bentley Systems award for the University Avenue 
Reconstruction Project. 

 
 Communication Specialist Huisman recapped the ‘National Night Out’ event 

stating that there were over 800 attendants and thanked all of the sponsors and 
volunteers that made the event possible. Huisman also invited the public to 
participate in the Recreation Center Survey. The survey link can be found on the 
City website. Lastly, Huisman announced the ‘Place to Play Playground’ Grand 
Opening on August 31, 2019 at 10:00 A.M. and invited the public to attend. 

 
52478 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Darrah to adjourn to Executive Session 

to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy 
with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is 
imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the 
position of the governmental body in that litigation, following Public Forum. Upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

  
52479 - Jeff Hansen, 806 Bluff Street, expressed concerns about the condition of the 

alley in his neighborhood. 
 
 Mayor Brown responded to comments and concerns expressed by Ruth Walker, 

2208 Coventry Lane, regarding racial disparities in Cedar Falls. 
 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson and Councilmember Blanford responded to 

questions and concerns expressed by Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, 
regarding a road condition on 18th/Main Streets and safety on College Hill. 

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson and City Administrator Gaines responded 

to questions by Councilmembers Green, Kruse and Miller, and concerns 

10

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 8 - 

 

expressed by the following citizens regarding the public safety model for staffing, 
budget, training/qualifications, self-dispatching and organizational chart: 

  Sarah Langel, 1312 Windsor Drive 
 Darren Yoder, 3919 Beaver Ridge Trail 
  Jessica Wittenburg, 4319 Wynnewood Drive 
 
 Kathryn Sogard, College Hill Partnership Director, expressed appreciation for the 

College Hill parking study and implementing recommendations. 
 
 Bob Manning, 2908 West 3rd Street, Executive Officer of Cedar Valley Home 

Builders, announced the Cedar Valley Parade of Homes event on August 22-24, 
2019. 

 
 The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:11 P.M. 
 
 Mayor Brown reconvened the City Council meeting at 8:41 P.M. and stated that 

Legal Matters had been discussed but that no further action was required at this 
time. 

 
52480 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Darrah that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:42 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
  _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

11

ITEM  1.



 

 -1- 

ORDINANCE NO. _2953_ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 1923, 2122, 

2461, 2696, 2785, AND 2923, PROVIDING THAT GENERAL 

PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR 

ON ALL PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE AMENDED 

CEDAR FALLS UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN 

RENEWAL AREA, IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, BY AND 

FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, CEDAR 

FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, HUDSON 

COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, DIKE-NEW HARTFORD 

COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND OTHER TAXING 

DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL FUND FOR PAYMENT 

OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON LOANS, MONIES 

ADVANCED TO AND INDEBTEDNESS, INCLUDING BONDS 

ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED, INCURRED BY THE CITY IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE AMENDED CEDAR FALLS 

UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 

AREA (AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO THE CEDAR FALLS 

UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 

PLAN) 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, has heretofore, in 

Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785, and 2923, provided for the division of taxes within 

the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area ("Area" or "Urban Renewal 

Area"), pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS, taxable property now has been added to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 

Corridor Urban Renewal Area through the adoption of Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls 

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, indebtedness has been incurred by the City, and additional indebtedness is 

anticipated to be incurred in the future, to finance urban renewal project activities within the 

amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, and the continuing 

needs of redevelopment within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 

Renewal Area are such as to require the continued application of the incremental tax resources of 

the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the following enactment is necessary to accomplish the objectives described 

in the premises. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, THAT: 

 

12

ITEM  2.



 

 -2- 

Ordinance Number(s) 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785, and 2923 are hereby amended to 

read as follows: 

 

Section 1. For purposes of this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the following 

meanings: 

a) Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, 

State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban 

Renewal Area approved by Resolution No. 8196 on the 12th day of November, 1990, which 

Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 

Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 

North Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 

Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 

3rd Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 

extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 

1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 

corner of Viking Hills 2nd Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 

of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 

section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 

thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 

of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 

distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 

of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 

line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 

thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 

west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 

b) Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995) means that 

portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the 

Cedar Falls Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995) approved 

by Resolution No. 10,224 on the 13th day of November, 1995, which Area includes the lots and 

parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 
All of Sections 35 and 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. 

and that part of Sections 2 and 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth 

P.M. lying North of U.S. Highway No. 20. 

 

And also that part of the West 2 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth P.M. lying West of Iowa Highway No. 58. 

 

And also that part of the East 2 of the southeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. described as beginning at the East 1/4 

corner of said Section 26; thence Southwest to the Southeast corner of Viking 

Hills 2nd Addition; thence South to the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of 

13

ITEM  2.



 

 -3- 

the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26; thence East to the Southeast corner of said 

Section 26; thence North to the point of beginning. 

 

Except that portion described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 

Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 

North Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 

Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 

3rd Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 

extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 

1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 

corner of Viking Hills 2nd Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 

of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 

Section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 

thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 

of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 

distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 

of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 

line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 

thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 

west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 

c) Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 (2003) means that portion of 

the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls 

Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 (2003) approved by Resolution No. 

13862 on the 17th day of November, 2003, which Area includes the lots and parcels located 

within the area legally described as follows: 

 

The Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) and the North One-half (N1/2) of the North One-

half (N1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., 

Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the following described parcels: 

 

Parcel 1:  The East Eight Hundred Forty-three (843) feet of the West One 

Thousand Eighty-three (1,083) feet of the North Five Hundred Fifty (550) feet of 

the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine 

(89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 

Iowa; 

 

Parcel 2:  The West Two Hundred Forty (240) feet of the North Five Hundred 

Fifty (550) feet of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M. 

Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 

 

14

ITEM  2.



 

 -4- 

Parcel 3:  Commencing at the Northeast corner of the said Section 34; thence 

South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East, on the East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of Section 34, 70.00 feet, to the point of beginning; thence continuing 

South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East on the East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of said Section 34, 1,888.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 19 minutes 13 

seconds West, 85.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds West, 

1,888.00 feet, to the present South right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 

89 degrees 19 minutes 13 seconds East, on the present South right-of-way line of 

Viking Road, 85.00 feet, to the point of beginning. The East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of said Section 34 is assumed to bear South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 

seconds East for the purpose of this description, and 

 

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the 

Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 0039’19” 

East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 

feet to the point of beginning of the parcel herein described; thence continuing 

South 0039’19” East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a 

distance of 1,888.00 feet; thence South 8919’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; 

thence North 0039’19” West a distance of 1,888.00 feet to the present South 

right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 8919’13” East on the present 

South right-of-way line of Viking Road a distance of 85.00 feet to the point of 

beginning; containing 3.68 acres. 

 

Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 

assumed to bear South 0039’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

 

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 0039’19” 

East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 

feet; thence South 8919’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; thence North 

8054’49” West a distance of 218.13 feet to the present South right-of-way line of 

Viking Road; thence North 0040’47” West a distance of 33.00 feet to the North 

line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34; thence North 8919’13” East on the 

North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 300.00 feet to the 

point of beginning; containing 0.39 acre, of which 0.23 acre is within existing 

road right-of-way. 

 

Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 

assumed to bear South 0039’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

15

ITEM  2.



 

 -5- 

 
d) Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009) means that portion 

of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Northern 

Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009) approved by Resolution No. 16,631 on 

the 28th day of September, 2009, which Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area 

legally described as follows: 

 

That part of Section 6 and Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 West and that 

part of Section 31, Township 90 North, Range 13 West of the Fifth P.M. in the 

City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa described as beginning at the 

Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 31; thence Southerly 

along the East line of said Southeast Quarter to the Southeast corner of said 

Southeast Quarter; thence continue Southerly along the East line of said Section 6 

to the Southeast corner of said Section 6; thence continue Southerly along the 

East line of said Section 7 to the South Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; 

thence Westerly along said South Right-of-way line to the Easterly Right-of-way 

line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along said Easterly Right-of-way line 

to the Easterly Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along 

said Easterly Right-of-way line to the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said 

Section 31; Thence Easterly along said North line to the point of beginning. 

 

e) Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 1 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 

No. 18,377 on the 10th day of December, 2012, which Amendment No. 1 Area includes the lots 

and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 

South of the present North Right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 

follows: 

All that part of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of 

Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 

South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 

of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of Section 2, 

Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 

the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa.  

 

And also, 

 

North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County 

of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence Northerly on the 

East line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 

16

ITEM  2.



 

 -6- 

Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 

Road to the East line of GENCOM Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said East line and the Southerly prolongation of 

said East line to the South line of said Section 25; Thence Easterly on said South 

line to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 

Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, 

City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 

said Section 26; Thence Northerly on the East line of the Southwest 1/4 of the 

Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the present North Right-of-way line of West 

Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of  West 

Viking Road to the present East Right-of-way line of Hudson Road; Thence South 

on a line that is normal to the South line of said Section 26, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., to the South line of said Section 26; Thence 

Easterly on said South line to the point of Beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., 

described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., City of Cedar Falls, County of Black 

Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, Thence 

Westerly on the South line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, a distance of 

270.00 feet; Thence northerly to the Southeast corner of Greenhill Village Fourth 

Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly 

on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village Fourth Addition to the Southeasterly 

corner of Greenhill Village Sixth Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village 

Sixth Addition to the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26; Thence 

Southerly on said East line to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

From Viking Road to the North line of Sections 25 Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th P.M. (Greenhill Road), described as follows: 

17

ITEM  2.



 

 -7- 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 

State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence westerly on the 

South line of said Section 25, a distance of 1878.5 feet to the point of beginning 

of the parcel of land herein described; Thence Northerly on a line that is normal to 

the South line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East 

Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East 

Viking Road to the Southwest corner of Blain’s Corner, an official plat in the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the Southwest of Blain’s Corner is on the present North 

Right-of-way line of East Viking Road); Thence Northerly and Northwesterly and 

Northerly on the West line of said Blain’s Corner to the Northwest corner of said 

Blain’s Corner; Thence Westerly on the Westerly prolongation of the North line 

of said Blain’s Corner and the North line of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase III, 

an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-

way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northwesterly and Northerly and 

Northeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, to 

the present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence Easterly on the 

present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the Northwesterly Right-of-

way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property; 

Thence Northeasterly on said Northwesterly Right-of-way line to the North line 

of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of 

the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on said North line to the present Westerly Right-

of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southerly and Southeasterly and 

Southerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 

South line of said Section 25; thence Easterly on the South line of said Section 25 

to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

From the North line of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M. (Greenhill Road) to the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 

14 West of the 5th P.M. (University Avenue), described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former 

Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property and the North line of the 

Northwest 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 

Thence Westerly on said North line to the Northeast corner of Section 26, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 

North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the Southerly prolongation of 

the West line of the East 40 acres of the East 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 

23, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Northerly on said 

West line to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence 

Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the present 

18

ITEM  2.



 

 -8- 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly on the 

present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of the 

Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 

Thence Easterly on said North line to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way 

line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill 

Road; Thence Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road 

to the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western 

Railway Company property; Thence Southwesterly on the Northwesterly Right-

of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property to 

the point of beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 

State of Iowa. 

 

And also, 

 

From the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M. (University Avenue) to the Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 

Northern Railway, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M. and the Southerly 

prolongation of a line that is 100.00 feet West of and parallel with the West line 

of Lot 45 in Fairvalley Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 

Thence Northerly on the Southerly prolongation of said parallel line and said 

parallel line to the present North Right-of-way line of University Avenue; Thence 

Easterly on the North Right-of-way line of University Avenue to the present 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present South Right-of-

way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-

of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the West 

line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition; Thence Northerly on the Northerly 

prolongation of the West line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition to the present 

North Right-of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the 

present North Right-of-way line of east Seerley Boulevard to the present East 

Right-of-way line of Main Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-

way line of Main Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 

Street; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 

Street and its Easterly prolongation to the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58 to the East line of Taylor 2nd Addition, an official plat in the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on said East line to the South line of 

Block 16 in said Taylor 2nd Addition; Thence Westerly on said South line to the 

East line of the West 1/2 of said Block 16; Thence Northerly on said East line to 

the present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street; Thence Westerly on the 

present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street to the present East Right-of-

way line of State Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-way line 

19

ITEM  2.



 

 -9- 

of State Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street to the present 

East Right-of-way line of Bluff Street; Thence Northerly on the present East 

Right-of-way line of Bluff Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 

14th Court; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 14th 

Court to the West line of Behrens’ Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said West line to the South line of said Behrens’ 

Addition; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Behrens’ Addition, 34.50 feet 

to the Southwesterly corner of the parcel of land described in City Lot Deed Book 

619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office; Thence 

Northeasterly on the Northwesterly line of the parcel of land described in City Lot 

Deed Book 619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s 

Office and its Northeasterly prolongation to the present Northeasterly Right-of-

way line of Waterloo Road; Thence Northwesterly on the present Northeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road to the present Southeasterly Right-of-way 

line of Utility Parkway; Thence Northeasterly on the present Southeasterly Right-

of-way line of Utility Parkway to the point of intersection of the present 

Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Utility Parkway and the Southerly 

prolongation of the West line of Lot 6 of Block 6 in T. Mullarky’s Addition (part 

vacated), an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on the 

Southerly prolongation of the West line of said Lot 6 to the Southwesterly corner 

of said Lot 6; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Lot 6 to the Easterly 

Right-of-way line of the Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later 

the Chicago, Great Western Railway Company now the Northwestern 

Transportation Company); Thence Northerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of 

the former Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later the Chicago, 

Great Western Railway Company now the former Northwestern Transportation 

Company) to the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street to the present 

Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s 

property; Thence Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 

the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property to the present Southeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present 

Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-

of-way line of Grand Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-

way line of Grand Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the present West 

Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the Northerly prolongation 

of the present West Right-of-way line of East Street and the West Right-of-way 

line of East Street to the Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa 

Highway 58 to the present Northeasterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; 

Thence continuing Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line 

of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of Lot 534 in Pacific Addition, an official 

plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Westerly on said North line to a 

point that is 85.00 feet Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 534; Thence 

Southerly to a point that is on the North line of Lot 2 in Block 2 of Bixby’s 

20

ITEM  2.



 

 -10- 

Subdivision, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 85.53 feet 

(85.00 feet record) Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 2; Thence 

Easterly on the North line of Lots 2 and 1 in said Block 2 of Bixby’s Subdivision 

to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; Thence 

Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road 

to the present West Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the 

present West Right-of-way line of East Street to the present Northerly Right-of-

way line of 18th Street; Thence continuing Southerly on the present West Right-

of-way line of East Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 

Street; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 

Street to a line that is 12.50 feet West of and parallel with the East line of Lots 

550, 551, 552 and 553 of said Pacific Addition; Thence Southerly on said parallel 

line to the South line of the North 58.00 feet of Lot 551 of said Pacific Addition; 

Thence Westerly on said South line to the East line of Lot 526 of said Pacific 

Addition; Thence Southerly on the East line of Lots 526 and 525 to the South line 

of said Pacific Addition, also being the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 

13, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 

South line of said Pacific Addition and the North line of Southeast 1/4 of said 

Section 13 and the North line of Galloway Addition, an official plat in the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

Thence Southerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 

Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition; Thence continuing Southerly 

on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also being the 

Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition, to the present North Right-of-

way line of Seerley Boulevard; Thence Southerly to the Northeast corner of Lot 

41 of said Fairvalley Addition, being on the present South Right-of-way line of 

Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly, 44.45 feet on the present South Right-of-

way line of Seerley Boulevard, also being the North line of Lot 41 of said 

Fairvalley Addition to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 

58; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 

58 to the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M; Thence Westerly on said North line to the point of 

beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 

 

And also, 

 

From the Iowa Northern Railway in Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 

West of the 5th P.M. to Lincoln Street, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 

the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 

18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. and the present 

Northwesterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly and 

Northwesterly and Northeasterly on the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line 

of Iowa Highway 58 and the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line of U.S. 

Highway 218 to the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; Thence 

21

ITEM  2.



 

 -11- 

Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street to the Easterly 

Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence South on the present Right-of-

way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present South Right-of-way line of Lincoln 

Street, also being the Northwest corner of Maplewood Addition, an official plat in 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the West line of said 

Maplewood Addition and its Southerly prolongation to the South line of the 

Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 

West; Thence Easterly on said South line to the present Easterly Right-of-way 

line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence Southeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-

way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present Easterly city limits of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly city limits of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 

218; Thence Southwesterly on present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 

218 and the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also 

being the present Easterly city limits of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the 

center of the Cedar River; Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way 

line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of 

Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. Thence 

Northwesterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 

Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 18, 

Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. to the point of beginning, all 

in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 

 

f) Amendment No. 2 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area did not add or remove land. 

 

g) Amendment No. 3 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area did not add or remove land. 

 

h) Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 4 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 

No. 21,079 on the 7th day of May, 2018, which Amendment No. 4 Area removed the lots and 

parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 

That part of Section 35, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 

Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Southerly right 

of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along said Southerly right of way to the Northwest corner of Parcel 

D described in Plat of Survey recorded in File 2018-00009903 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder; 

 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D South to the South line of 

the North 700 feet of said Section 35; 

22

ITEM  2.



 

 -12- 

 thence along said Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said South line 

of the North 700 feet East to the West line of the East 320 feet of the Northwest 

Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 35; 

 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said West line of 

the East 320 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter South to the 

Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9; 

 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9 

South to the Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13; 

 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13 

South to the Northwest corner of Lot 4 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 1; 

 thence along the West line of said Lot 4 South to the Northerly right of 

way line of Technology Parkway; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 

said Section 35; 

 thence along said West line North to the Point of Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of Section 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 

Meridian and that part of Section 2, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 

5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 36; 

 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Northerly right 

of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Southeast corner 

of said Section 36; 

 thence along the South line of said Section 36 West to the Northeast 

corner of said Section 2; 

thence along the East line of said Section 2 South to the Northerly right of 

way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Northerly to the Southerly 

right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence Northerly to the Southwest corner of Parcel No. 1 as described in 

Land Deed Book 563 Page 674 in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder, 

point being on the Southerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel No. 1 Northerly to the 

Southeast corner of Parcel No. 3 as described in in Land Deed Book 559 Page 446 

in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel No. 3 Northerly to the 

Southeasterly corner of Tract B as described in Land Deed Book 558 Page 715 in 

the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel B Northerly to the South line 

of Tract A as described in said Land Deed Book 558 Page 715; 

thence along said South line East to the Southeast corner of said Tract A; 

23

ITEM  2.



 

 -13- 

thence along the East line of said Tract A North to the Southeast corner of 

a parcel of land described in Land Deed Book 559 Page 532 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said parcel of land described in Land 

Deed Book 559 Page 532 Northerly to the Southwest corner of East Viking Plaza 

Addition; 

thence along the Westerly line of said East Viking Plaza Addition 

Northerly to the Southwesterly corner of Tract B in said East Viking Plaza 

Addition; 

thence along the Southeasterly line of said Tract B Northeasterly to the 

Northeasterly corner of said Tract B, being on the Southerly right of way line of 

Viking Road; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Point of 

Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

South of the present North right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 

follows: 

All that part of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of 

Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 

South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 

of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of Section 2, 

Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 

the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 

of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 

of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 

extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 

said Lot 20; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 

line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 

East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 

Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 

right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

24

ITEM  2.



 

 -14- 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 

of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 

Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 

Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 

to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 

said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 

Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 

right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 

said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 

3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 

of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 

 

i) Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 5 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 

No. 21,368 on the 17th day of December, 2018, which Amendment No. 5 Area includes the lots 

and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 

Viking Road ROW (North side): 

The South thirty-three (33) feet of Section twenty-seven (27), Township 

eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, except that part of Viking 

Road right of way contained within the city limits of Cedar Falls lying in the 

Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of said Section twenty-seven (27);  

 

And also, 

 

S Union Road ROW (West side): 

The East thirty-three (33) feet of the North three-quarters (3/4) of Section 

thirty-three (33), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, 

and the South thirty-three (33) feet of the East thirty-three (33) feet of Section 

twenty-eight (28), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, 

except the South thirty-three (33) feet of the East three hundred and twenty-eight 

and ninety-two hundredths (328.92) feet; 

25

ITEM  2.



 

 -15- 

 

And also, 

 

The Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of Section thirty-four (34), Township 

eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West; 

 

And also, 

 

The Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of 

Section thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) 

West, except West Viking Road Industrial Park Phases 1 & 2; 

 

And also, 

 

The North one-half (N1/2) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of Section 

thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West. 

 

j) Amended Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, included 

within the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, the Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal 

Area Amendment No. 1 (1995), the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 

(2003), the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009), the Amendment 

No. 1 to Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, and the Amendment 

No. 5 to Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, except the portions 

removed by Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area, which Amended Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area legally 

described in Subsections (a)-(i). 

 

Section 2. The taxes levied on the taxable property in the Amended Area, legally 

described in Section 1 hereof, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, County of Black Hawk, 

Iowa, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, Dike-New 

Hartford Community School District, and all other taxing districts from and after the effective 

date of this Ordinance shall be divided as hereinafter in this Ordinance provided. 

Section 3. As to the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, that portion of the taxes which 

would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for each of the taxing 

districts taxing property in such Area upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable 

property in such Area as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1, 1989, being January 1 of 

the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 1923, shall be allocated to and 

when collected be paid into the fund for the respective taxing district as taxes by or for the taxing 

district into which all other property taxes are paid.  The taxes so determined shall be referred 

herein as the "base period taxes" for such area. 

As to Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (1995) Amendment No. 1 Area, 

base period taxes shall be computed in the same manner using the total assessed value shown on 

the assessment roll as of January 1, 1994, being the first day of the calendar year preceding the 

effective date of Ordinance No. 2122, minus the total assessed value shown on the assessment 

26

ITEM  2.



 

 -16- 

role as of January 1, 1994 for the taxable property removed from the area by Amendment No. 4 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area.   

 

As to Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2003) Amendment No. 2 Area, 

base period taxes shall be computed in the same manner using the total assessed value shown on 

the assessment roll as of January 1, 2002, being the assessment roll applicable to property in such 

area as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 2461. 

 

 As to the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009), that portion 

of the taxes which would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for 

each of the taxing districts upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable property in 

such Area, as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1, 2009, such date being January 1 of 

the calendar year preceding the first calendar year in which the City of Cedar Falls, State of 

Iowa, certified to the Auditor of Black Hawk County, Iowa the amount of loans, advances, 

indebtedness, or bonds payable from the division of property tax revenue for such Area. 

 

 As to Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area, base period taxes shall be computed using the total assessed value shown on the 

assessment roll as of January 1, 2012, being the assessed value applied to property in such area 

as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 2785. 

 

 As to Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area, base period taxes shall be computed using the total assessed value shown on the 

assessment roll as of January 1, 2018, being the assessed value applied to property in such area 

as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4. That portion of the taxes each year in excess of the base period taxes for the 

Amended Area, determined for each sub-area thereof as provided in Section 3 of this Ordinance, 

shall be allocated to and when collected be paid into the special tax increment fund previously 

established by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to pay the principal of and interest on loans, 

monies advanced to, or indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including 

bonds issued under authority of Section 403.9 or Section 403.12 of the Code of Iowa, incurred 

by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, urban 

renewal projects undertaken within the Amended Area pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan, as 

amended, except that (i) taxes for the regular and voter-approved physical plant and equipment 

levy of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 298.2  and taxes for the 

instructional support program of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 

257.19  (but in each case only to the extent required under Iowa Code Section 403.19(2)); (ii) 

taxes for the payment of bonds and interest of each taxing district; (iii)  taxes imposed under 

Iowa Code Section 346.27(22) related to joint county-city buildings; and (iv) any other 

exceptions under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall be collected against all taxable property within 

the Amended Area without any limitation as hereinabove provided. 

Section 5. Unless or until the total assessed valuation of the taxable property in the areas 

of the Amended Area exceeds the total assessed value of the taxable property in the areas shown 

by the assessment rolls referred to in Section 3 of this Ordinance, all of the taxes levied and 

collected upon the taxable property in the Amended Area shall be paid into the funds for the 

27

ITEM  2.



 

 -17- 

respective taxing districts as taxes by or for the taxing districts in the same manner as all other 

property taxes. 

Section 6. At such time as the loans, monies advanced, bonds and interest thereon and 

indebtedness of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, referred to in Section 4 hereof have been 

paid, all monies thereafter received from taxes upon the taxable property in the Amended Area 

shall be paid into the funds for the respective taxing districts in the same manner as taxes on all 

other property. 

Section 7. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed.  The provisions of this Ordinance are intended and shall be 

construed so as to continue the division of taxes from property within the various subareas, under 

the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as authorized in Ordinance No. 1923, 

2122, 2461, 2696, 2785, and 2923 as amended by this Ordinance.  Notwithstanding any 

provisions in any prior Ordinances or other documents, the provisions of this Ordinance and all 

prior Ordinances relating to the Urban Renewal Area, as amended, shall be construed to continue 

the division of taxes from property within the Amended Area to the maximum period of time 

allowed by Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa.  In the event that any provision of this 

Ordinance shall be determined to be contrary to law it shall not affect other provisions or 

application of this Ordinance which shall at all times be construed to fully invoke the provisions 

of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa with reference to the Amended Area and the territory 

contained therein. 

Section 8. This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and 

publication as provided by law. 

INTRODUCED:     August 5, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   August 5, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   August 19, 2019   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

 

 

28

ITEM  2.



 

 -18- 

I, ____________________, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. __________ passed and 

approved by the City Council of the City at a meeting held ____________________, 2019, 

signed by the Mayor on ____________________, 2019, and published in the Waterloo-Cedar 

Falls Courier on ____________________, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

01596006-1\10283-163 

29

ITEM  2.



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: August 28, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Appointment 

 

I am recommending the following appointment: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Craig Schwerdtfeger Community Center & Senior Services Board (fills vacancy) 06/30/2022 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
 

 
 

30

ITEM  3.



31

ITEM  3.



32

ITEM  3.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

August 19, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:15 p.m. on August 19, 
2019, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland.   Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Codie Leseman from 
Iowa Northland Regional County of Government (INRCOG) also attended as well as 
members of the community. 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Cedar River Recreation Enhancement.  Codie Leseman from INRCOG stated the Iowa 
DNR hired them to develop a master plan for the Black Hawk County waters.  He stated 
they held public input meetings and an online survey.  They received 92 responses and 
over half of those were Cedar Falls residents.  He reviewed pictures of the 
recommendations, they included improvements parking lots, boat ramps and plantings, 
and as well as add a revetment, which is river bank improvements.  He stated there is a 
REAP grant available for $50,000.  He reviewed the next steps which are to publish the 
master plan, update signage, and create a maintenance agreement with the Iowa DNR.  
After a brief discussion Frank Darrah motioned to endorse the plan presented, Daryl 
Kruse seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  

The Mayor introduced the second item on the agenda Visitor & Tourism (V&T) Division 
Update. Kim Manning, Visitor & Tourism/Cultural Programs Manager reviewed the past 
years activities for Visitor and Tourism division.  She stated they went through a 
strategic plan process with the assistance from UNI’s Institute for Decision Making.  
V&T continues to have higher hotel/motel tax revenues.  Ms. Manning explained their 
main goal for the new year will be to market the City of Cedar Falls for a meeting and 
convention location.  A list of additional goals of the division were reviewed.   

Mayor Brown introduced the third item on the agenda Cultural Programs Annual 
Update.  Heather Skeens Cultural Programs Supervision reviewed the past year of 
programing for the Hearst Center for the Arts.  She explained they have used a short 
term strategic roadmap for deeper engagement through exhibitions, book and film 
reviews and hands on activities.  Ms. Skeens stated they are coordinating efforts for 
free class material checkouts at the library.  There has been new growth in the class 
registrations and the Friends of the Hearst has had increased membership numbers as 
well. 

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll. Daryl Kruse 
moved to approve the bills and payroll as presented, Tom Blanford seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:14 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

33

ITEM  4.



34

ITEM  5.



35

ITEM  6.



36

ITEM  6.



37

ITEM  6.



38

ITEM  6.



39

ITEM  6.



40

ITEM  6.



41

ITEM  6.



42

ITEM  6.



43

ITEM  6.



44

ITEM  6.



45

ITEM  6.



46

ITEM  6.



47

ITEM  6.



48

ITEM  6.



49

ITEM  6.



50

ITEM  6.



51

ITEM  6.



52

ITEM  6.



53

ITEM  6.



54

ITEM  6.



55

ITEM  6.



56

ITEM  6.



57

ITEM  6.



58

ITEM  6.



59

ITEM  6.



60

ITEM  6.



61

ITEM  6.



62

ITEM  6.



63

ITEM  6.



64

ITEM  6.



65

ITEM  6.



66

ITEM  6.



67

ITEM  6.



68

ITEM  6.



69

ITEM  6.



70

ITEM  6.



71

ITEM  6.



72

ITEM  6.



73

ITEM  6.



74

ITEM  6.



75

ITEM  6.



76

ITEM  6.



77

ITEM  6.



78

ITEM  6.



79

ITEM  6.



80

ITEM  6.



81

ITEM  6.



82

ITEM  6.



83

ITEM  6.



84

ITEM  6.



85

ITEM  6.



86

ITEM  6.



87

ITEM  6.



88

ITEM  6.



89

ITEM  6.



90

ITEM  6.



91

ITEM  6.



92

ITEM  6.



93

ITEM  6.



94

ITEM  6.



95

ITEM  6.



96

ITEM  6.



97

ITEM  6.



98

ITEM  6.



99

ITEM  6.



100

ITEM  6.



101

ITEM  6.



102

ITEM  6.



103

ITEM  6.



104

ITEM  6.



105

ITEM  6.



106

ITEM  6.



107

ITEM  6.



108

ITEM  6.



109

ITEM  6.



110

ITEM  7.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 29, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Sidecar Coffee, 2215 College Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

b) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class B liquor, Class B native wine & 
outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

d) Great Wall, 2125 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

e) Casey's General Store, 5908 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - change 
in ownership. 

f) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 

g) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - change in 
ownership. 

h) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 

i) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue, Class E liquor - change in 
ownership. 

j) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary 
expansion of outdoor service area. (September 13-15, 2019) 

111

ITEM  8.



112

ITEM  9.



113

ITEM  9.



114

ITEM  9.



115

ITEM  9.



116

ITEM  9.



117

ITEM  9.



118

ITEM  9.



119

ITEM  9.



120

ITEM  9.



121

ITEM  9.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Recreation Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
FROM:  Bruce Verink, Recreation Division Manager 
 
DATE:  August 28, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: The Falls Aquatic Center – Open Pit and Dumpster screening project 
  CIP project Number 189 Contract 
 
On Wednesday August 21, 2019 at 10:00 AM, bids for this project were opened.  The 
City received three bids with the difference between the low and high of $3,668.  All 
three proposals were very competitive and fell under the architect’s preliminary estimate 
of $110,000.  
 
The Department of Community Development recommend the attached contract with 
Failor Hurley of Waterloo Iowa for $105,332 be approved so this project can move 
forward yet this fall with a completion date of October 31, 2019. 
 
Attached is a copy of the Bid tabulation for your review.  Included in the attached 
document is the standard AIA contract which Legal has reviewed.  Current contractor’s 
insurance requirements were included with the information sent to the bidders. Failor 
Hurley has provided all proof of insurance documents which have been submitted for 
staff’s approval.   
 
This project is for the removal of a chain link fence currently around a pump pit that will 
be replaced with block walls attached on one side to an existing building.  To construct 
a deck, per say, above the motors below thus increasing storage for the facility, and 
build a cement block screen to help hide the other two dumpsters located on site thus 
improving the overall aesthetics of the facility.  Attached is a picture of the current open 
pit. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development  
  
 
 

122

ITEM  10.



123

ITEM  10.



124

ITEM  10.



125

ITEM  10.



126

ITEM  10.



127

ITEM  10.



128

ITEM  10.



129

ITEM  10.



130

ITEM  10.



131

ITEM  10.



132

ITEM  10.



133

ITEM  10.



134

ITEM  10.



135

ITEM  10.



136

ITEM  10.



137

ITEM  10.



138

ITEM  10.



139

ITEM  10.



140

ITEM  10.



141

ITEM  10.



142

ITEM  10.



143

ITEM  10.



144

ITEM  10.



145

ITEM  10.



146

ITEM  10.



147

ITEM  10.



148

ITEM  10.



149

ITEM  10.



150

ITEM  10.



151

ITEM  10.



152

ITEM  10.



153

ITEM  10.



154

ITEM  10.



155

ITEM  10.



156

ITEM  10.



157

ITEM  10.



158

ITEM  10.



159

ITEM  10.



160

ITEM  10.



161

ITEM  10.



162

ITEM  10.



163

ITEM  10.



164

ITEM  10.



165

ITEM  10.



166

ITEM  10.



167

ITEM  10.



168

ITEM  10.



169

ITEM  10.



170

ITEM  10.



171

ITEM  10.



172

ITEM  10.



173

ITEM  10.



174

ITEM  10.



175

ITEM  10.



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Mayor Jim Brown and Cedar Falls City Council 

Kim Manning 

August28,2019 

Adoption of Visitors and Tourism Strategic Plan 

Thank you for your attention as I shared the Visitors and Tourism Strategic Plan for 
2019-2022 with you during the Committee of the Whole meeting on August 19, 2019. 

The plan is a result of input gathered from 108 surveys, 40+ stakeholders who attended 
focus group meetings, and the Visitors and Tourism Advisory Board. The final version of 
the plan was approved by the Visitors and Tourism Board on July 17, 2019. 

I request that you adopt the plan. We intend to review it annually and will come back to 
you with any future updates. 

Best regards. 

Cc: Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
Jennifer Rodenbeck, Finance and 
Business Operations Director 

Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 
Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community 
Development Director 

176

ITEM  11.



CEDAR FALLS 
Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau Strategic Plan for 2019-2022 
Revised August 19, 2019 

Mission: To foster, promote, market, and service our community as a quality destination. 

1dm 
....... ..,..o.ciw- ....... U....,...,olllarUNnl._ 

lltl 
... ! .... , 
z;,1-r~ 

177

ITEM  11.



CEDAR FALLS 2019-2022 Strategic Plan 

2019-2022 Target Audiences 
Page 

• • • t:11 

~ 

Ill 

Ii 
m pa; 

~ .. o~. ,, - - .. .. 

2 
1. Meetings, Conferences and Business Travel Marketing 

2 
2. Sports Related Marketing 

3 
3. Leisure Travel Marketing 

3 
4. Tourism Related Business and Organization Coordination and Collaboration 

5. Encourage Asset Development for Visitors and/or Residents 
4 

4 
6. Group Tour Marketing 

4 
7. Organization of Tourism Related Events 

5 
8. Increase Community Support and Resources for Tourism and the Bureau's Efforts 

llPage 

178

ITEM  11.



f 
CEDAR FALLS 2019-2022 Strategic Plan 

Goals & Objectives 

• I • Goal 1: Establish Cedar Falls as a premier destination for meetings, conferences and business travel. 

~ 

Objective 1.1 Create compelling content and publications to promote Cedar Falls as a quality destination for meetings. 

Objective 1.2 Promote Cedar Falls through paid advertisements in appropriate print, digital, social, broadcast and other media. 

Objective 1.3 Deliver 10 qualified leads to meeting or conference leads to Cedar Falls facilities annually. 

Objective 1.4 Develop services, products and programming to support meetings, conferences and like events. 

Objective 1.5 Create a nimble sponsorship program (modeled after competing communities) for offering financial incentives to 
prospective event organizers. 

* Goal 2: Maintain and enhance Cedar Falls as a preferred destination for sporting events. 

Objective 2.1 Support the Cedar Valley Sports Commission in growing sporting events in the Cedar Valley. 

Objective 2.2 Create compelling content and publications to promote Cedar Falls as a quality destination for sporting events. 

Objective 2.3 Promote Cedar Falls through paid advertisements in appropriate print, digital, social, broadcast and other media. 

21Page 
179

ITEM  11.



f 
CEDAR FALLS 2019-2022 Strategic Plan 

I 
,..... 

I Goal 3: Maintain and enhance Cedar Falls as a preferred destination for leisure travelers. 

Objective 3.1 Create compelling content and publications to promote Cedar Falls as a quality destination for leisure travelers. 

Objective 3.2 Promote Cedar Falls through paid advertisements in appropriate print, digital, social, broadcast and other media. 

Objective 3.3 Provide easy access to visitor and new resident information by staffing and maintaining the CFTVB Visitor Center 
and satellite information centers throughout the community. 

Objective 3.4 Elevate the customer service experienced within area restaurants, stores and hotels to levels that become a 
marketable asset for Cedar Falls. 

Objective 3.5 Raise awareness of and endorsements for visiting Cedar Falls among Iowa, Midwest and national travel writers by 
hosting at least six travel writers in 2019. 

Objective 3.6 Position Cedar Falls and the Cedar Valley as an annual must-do destination for Midwest bicyclists and cycling 
groups. 

~ ~,; f: Goal 4: Coordinate and collaborate with tourism related businesses and organizations 
t\ f • 

Objective 4.1 Create compelling content and publications targeted specifically to visitors, residents and stakeholders. 

Objective 4.2 Facilitate communications with members of the hospitality industry. 

Objective 4.3 Work with University of Northern Iowa to welcome and engage students, alumni and their families. 

3IPage 

180

ITEM  11.



f 
CEDAR FALLS 2019-2022 Strategic Plan 

Objective 4.4 Maintain awareness of trends and new technology through professional development opportunities. 

I _rt Goal 5: Communicate Tourism Impact and Encourage the Development of New Attractions and Pi! Assets that Would Enhance Cedar Falls as a Tourism Destination. 

Objective 5.1 Conduct an inventory and gap analysis of the community's existing tourism attractions and assets, competitors' 
current assets and planned projects, and opportunities for new projects in Cedar Falls by January 2021. 

Objective 5.2 Improve the quantity and quality of wayfinding on city streets for bicycles and automobiles. 

Objective 5.3 Seek and support unique capital improvements that will enhance our desirability to visitors. 

Objective 5.4 Use reserves for large capital tourism promotion and/or investments. 

© pa; Goal 6: Maintain and enhance Cedar Falls as a preferred destination for group tours. 

Objective 6.1 Create compelling content and publications to promote Cedar Falls as a quality destination for groups. 

Objective 6.2 Promote Cedar Falls through paid advertisements in appropriate print, digital, social, broadcast and other media. 

Objective 6.3 Generate 10 qualified leads to host groups annually. 

~ Goal 7: Ensure the community provides year-round events that appeal to diverse and continually 
1.:.(9 changing demographics 

Objective 7.1 Assist existing events to remain informed about the changing visitor demographics. 

4I Page 
181

ITEM  11.



CEDAR FALLS 2019-2022 Strategic Plan 

Objective 7.2 Support the development and expansion of events that do not compete with existing events. 

Objective 7.3 Provide volunteer management and event-planning and marketing assistance to volunteer-led festival and events. 

Objective 7.4 Engage in professional development opportunities to continue improving techniques and networking. 

~o~ I'; 
: : Goal 8: Increase Community Support and Resources for Tourism and the Bureau's Efforts - - 
Objective 8.1 Launch proactive education and awareness efforts to increase the community's and city's understanding, 
appreciation, and support for tourism and the Cedar Falls Tourism and Visitors Bureau. 

Objective 8.2 Develop and promote the use of metrics for measuring the impact and growth of tourism. 

Objective 8.3 Add a new full-time professional staff person to enable to the Bureau to enhance its marketing, sales and 
programming. 

Objective 8.4 Develop a manager succession plan to properly prepare for the transition to new staff leadership when the time 
arises. 
Objective 8.5 Provide development opportunities for staff. 

Objective 8.6 Advocate for 100% of CFTVB staff, volunteer and financial resources focused on visitor and tourism related 
marketing, sales, communication, asset advocacy, event coordination and support of economic development. 

SI Page 

182

ITEM  11.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Jim Brown and Cedar Falls City Council 

FROM: Kim Manning 

DATE: August 29, 2019 

SUBJECT: Approval of FY20 ZLR Ignition Contract to Promote Cedar Falls 

Please approve the attached contract to work with ZLR Ignition to promote Cedar Falls 
via social media and Google Search. 

We intent to spend a total of $25,000 - approximately $2, 100/month on Facebook, 
lnstagram, Twitter and Paid Search. 

The total cost of actual placements will be $19,765. The account management and 
reporting cost will amount to $5,235. This has been included in our FY20 media budget. 

Thank you for your support of this project. 

Best regards. 

Cc: Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
Jennifer Rodenbeck, Finance and 

Business Operations Director 
Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 
Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community 
Development Director 

183

ITEM  12.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered by and between Zimmerman, Laurent & Richardson, Inc. an 
Iowa Corporation, d/b/a ZLR Ignition 

303 Watson Powell Jr. Way, Suite 100, Des Moines, IA 50309 hereinafter referred to as "CONSULTANT" 
and City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT." 

IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES; TERM; EFFECTIVE DATE 

CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") in connection with CLIENT's 
project in accordance with the Digital Advertising Proposal set forth in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, to provide the creation and implementation of a digital advertising strategy and digital 
advertising plan, as more particularly described in the Digital Advertising Proposal set forth in 
Exhibit A attached hereto. 

The effective date of this Agreement ("Effective Date") shall be August 1, 2019. The initial term 
of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and shall terminate on July 31, 2020. If 
the Effective Date is other than August 1, 2019, then the initial term shall commence on such 
other date, and shall terminate one (1) year after such other Effective Date. 

II. CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement: 

(a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act on behalf of 
CONSULTANT and with whom CLIENT may consult at all reasonable times, and whose 
instructions, requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT as to all matters 
pertaining to this Agreement and the performance of the parties hereunder. 

(b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the time period mutually 
agreed upon, except for reasons beyond its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 

(c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted professional standards in 
existence at the time of performance of the Services. If during the two year period 
following the completion of Services, it is shown that there is an error in the Services 
solely as a result of CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, CONSULTANT shall 
re-perform such substandard Services as may be necessary to remedy such error at no 
cost to CLIENT. CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either express or implied and 
the parties' rights, liabilities, responsibilities, and remedies with respect to the quality of 
Services, including claims alleging negligence, breach of warranty and breach of 
contract, shall be exclusively those set forth herein. 

(d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for the protection of CLIENT, 
require from all vendors and subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures 
equipment, materials or services-for the project, guarantees shall be made available to 
CLIENT to the full extent of the terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with respect to 

1 

184

ITEM  12.



such equipment, and materials obtained from vendors or services from subcontractors, 
shall be limited to procuring guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors and 
rendering all reasonable assistance to CLIENT for the purpose of enforcing the same. 

(e) See also Exhibit D attached hereto which is incorporated into this Agreement. 

111. CLIENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful and expeditious completion of 
the Services: 

(a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT's requirements; and designate a person 
with authority to act on CLIENT's behalf on all matters concerning the Services. 

(b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all available data pertinent to the Services, and obtain 
additional reports, data and services as may be required for the project. CONSULTANT 
shall be entitled to rely upon all such information, data and the results of such other 
services in performing its Services hereunder. 

(c) See also Exhibit D attached hereto which is incorporated into this Agreement. 

IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements for Consultants for the City 
of Cedar Falls, "dated August 28, 2019, consisting of 5 pages, which are attached hereto, marked 
Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of this Agreement as if set out word for word herein. 

CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate of insurance containing all coverages, 
endorsements and other provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth in Exhibit 
B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit B and the other terms of this 
Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit B shall control. 

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy of policies that meet the provisions 
set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached 
hereto and marked Exhibit B. 

V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACT BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 
PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS. 

The provisions of the documents entitled "Standard Terms and Conditions for Contracts 
Between Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls," consisting 
of two pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and attached as Exhibit C. 

VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 

Compensation for the services shall be in an amount not to exceed Twenty-five thousand and 
no/100 Dollars ($25,000.00). 

2 

185

ITEM  12.



See Exhibit A attached hereto which is incorporated into this Agreement. 

Monthly payments shall be made upon completion of work by CONSULTANT, and acceptance by 
the CLIENT. CONSULTANT shall mail invoices to CLIENT upon completion of monthly tasks. 
Invoices shall include an itemization of the work for which payment is claimed. 

The maximum total amount payable by CLIENT under this Agreement is $25,000.00, and no 
greater amount shall be paid without advance written approval of CLIENT. 

CLIENT agrees to pay CONSULTANT the full amount of each such invoice within thirty (30) days 
after receipt thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item. CLIENT shall give 
CONSULTANT written notice of such disputed item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice 
and shall pay to CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the provisions 
hereof. CLIENT agrees to abide by any applicable statutory prompt pay provisions currently in 
effect. 

VII. TERMINATION 

CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any time upon fourteen (14) days 
written notice to CONSULTANT. The obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement 
may be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in the event of 
substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through 
no fault of the terminating party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, 
in the event of a non-monetary default, commenced reasonable actions to cure such failure. In 
either case, CONSULTANT will be paid for all Services rendered to the date of the termination. 
Compensation for the Services rendered to the date of the termination shall be on an hourly 
basis in accordance with the hourly fees of CONSULTANT which are in effect at the time the 
Services are performed. 

VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

(a) Instruments of service which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the property of CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for Services rendered. Any other use or reuse of original or altered files 
shall be at CLIENT's sole risk without liability or legal exposure to CONSULTANT and 
CLIENT agrees to release, defend and hold CONSULTANT harmless from and against all 
claims or suits asserted against CONSULTANT in the event such documents are used for 
a purpose different than originally prepared even though such claims or suits may be 
based on allegations of negligence by CONSULTANT. Nothing contained in this 
paragraph shall be construed as limiting or depriving CONSULTANT of its rights to use its 
basic knowledge and skills to design or carry out other projects or work for itself or 
others, whether or not such other projects or work are similar to the work to be 
performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

IX. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

3 

186

ITEM  12.



CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to the Services to be performed 
hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT not its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

X. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement and it the dispute cannot 
be settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the 
dispute to mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, 
that party shall notify the other party I writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the 
parties are unable to resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such 
dispute shall be submitted for mediation in accordance with the procedures and rules of the 
American Arbitration Association (or any successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for 
submitting the dispute to mediation can be charged if the parties mutually agree in writing to 
extend the time between receipt of notice and submission to mediation. The expenses of the 
mediator shall be shared 50 percent by CONSULTANT and 50 percent by the CLIENT. This 
requirement to seek mediation shall be a condition required before filling an action at law or in 
equity. However, prior to or during the negotiations or the mediation either party may initiate 
litigation that would otherwise be barred by a statute of limitations, and CONSULTANT may 
pursue any property liens or other rights it may have to obtain security for the payment of its 
invoices. 

XI. MISCELLANEOUS 

(a) This Agreement and all Exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the parties 
hereto and supersedes any oral or written representations, understandings, proposals, 
or communications heretofore entered into by or on account of the parties and may not 
be changed, modified, or amended except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the 
event of any conflict between this contract document and any of the exhibits hereto, 
the terms and conditions of Exhibit C shall control. In the event of any conflict among 
the exhibits, Exhibit C shall control. 

(b) This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 

(c) In the even CLIENT uses a purchase order form to administer this Agreement, the use of 
such form shall be for convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in conflict 
with the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted terms and conditions contained in 
or on such forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

(d) This agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than CLIENT and 
CONSULTANT and does not create any third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 

(e) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained in this Agreement or its 
exhibits limits the rights and remedies, including remedies related to damages, of either 
party that are available to either party under the law. 

4 

187

ITEM  12.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written 
below. 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

By: _ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

ZIMMERMAN, LAURENT & PRICHARDSON, INC., AN 
IOWA COU.N, D/B/ A ZLR IGNITION 

By: )1?l{tl1~ 
7 

Printed Name: ~}e;,oV\.M.A, 1/t,-0/,/ 

Title: V,tt {Jri Jc~ J L(< <'vrl Sl'.W\ce 
Date:_~?f/ .......... ' /,~}------o/~(-1----- 

Date: ------------- 

5 

188

ITEM  12.



EXHIBIT A 

ZLR >, IGNITION 

189

ITEM  12.



Media Recommendation 

MEDIA INSIGHTS CREATIVE STRATEGY 

Changes in consumer habits combined with new 
ways to access travel information has changed 
the way trips are planned. According to Google, 
global travelers are planning more short getaways 
(3 nights or less) over longer vacations in the next 
12 months. This sets up the ideal marketplace for 
Cedar Falls Tourism. Travelers are also less likely to 
request travel guides or use maps to navigate their 
destination. Instead travelers are looking to their 
friends' social channels for trip inspiration; reviews 
from influencers; and their own research online. 

MEDIA APPROACH 

With the shift to digital in trip planning, social 
media and paid search are key tactics to reaching 
users throughout the trip planning process. 

PLANNING PARAMETERS 

Target Audience: Leisure traveler 

• Demographic: Women aged 35 - 54 

Timing: July 2019-June 2020 

Digital media would be used to support four 
campaigns throughout the year: Main Street, 
Holidays, Girls' Weekend and Biking 

Leverage existing creative to allow for a majority 
of campaign dollars to go into actual media 
placement to ensure Cedar Falls is getting as much 
exposure throughout the year as possible. 

MEDIA STRATEGY 

Utilize cost-effective digital media to find travelers 
and drive them to the website to explore. 

GEOGRAPHY 

Target within a 150-mile radius of Cedar Falls, 
excluding Cedar Falls, and a 30-mile radius around 
Cedar Falls. 

CAMPAIGN TIMING 

JULY ! AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE 

PAID SEARCH 

FACEBOOK 

INSTAGRAM 

TWITTER 

■!Hi iiiH Ii·> 

■ Mb.IN STREET HOLIDAY HOOPL.<\ GIRLS' WCE,(ENO BIKING 

190

ITEM  12.



Media Recommendation Cont'd 

PAID SOCIAL MEDIA 

According to Forbes, one in five leisure travelers worldwide turn to social media platforms 
for inspiration on hotels, vacation activities, attractions and restaurants. Social media 
should be a key part of the Cedar Falls digital media plan to provide that inspiration. 

@ 

Face book is recommended as 
it is a click-driving social tactic 
and will bring new users to the 
Cedar Falls website. A recent 
Adweek survey reinforces that 
52% of Facebook users dream of 
vacations when they are using 
Facebook even when they 
aren't planning a specific trip. 

Link click ads 

This ad type would promote 
Cedar Falls and drive users 
to the landing page 

Link click ads allow 
advertisers to serve the ad 
across multiple placement 
types such as stories, in-feed 
desktop and in-feed mobile 

Facebook ads are 
recommended for the Main 
Street, Holidays, Girls' Weekend 
and Biking campaigns 

lnstagram is recommended to 
promote Cedar Falls and give 
users travel inspiration through 
photos on the platform. A 
Facebook study found that 
67% of travel enthusiasts use 
lnstagram to look for inspiration 
for new places to travel. 

Carousel ads 

Carousel ads would allow 
Cedar Falls to showcase 
multiple photos within 
a single ad and include 
a link to the website 

lnstagram ads are 
recommended for the Main 
Street, Holidays, Girls' Weekend 
and Biking campaigns 

Twitter is recommended 
to promote Cedar Falls as 
a new destination to the 
target audience. Nearly half 
of vacationers hear about 
destinations on Twitter 
according to an Adweek survey. 

• Summary card with 
large image 

This ad type would give 
Cedar Falls a full image, 
title. description and 
website link in a tweet 

Clicking on the image would 
drive users to the Cedar 
Falls website to explore 
their travel interests 

Twitter would be used 
to promote the Main 
Street, Girls' Weekend 
and Biking campaigns 

191

ITEM  12.



Media Recommendation Cont'd 

PAID SEARCH 

Paid search advertising is one of the primary drivers of conversions in leisure travel based on the Google 2017 
Travel Study. Paid search reaches users when they are actively searching for hotels, flights and destinations. 

Paid search works by bidding on and purchasing ads through a search engine on 
a per-click basis. For Cedar Falls, Google will be the search engine used. 

Paid search would run July through June with an additional emphasis on March through 
June during trip planning season. It 1s recommended to run year-round to engage with trip 
planners throughout the year. Text ads would promote the overall Cedar Falls brand. 

Measurement 

Measurement of media efforts is a vital piece of ZLR Ignition's media approach. Tracking media performance 
in the Ignition Report ensures the success of campaigns and guides tutu re planning decisions. 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

ZLR Ignition recommends monitoring the 
following key metrics for the digital campaign 
based on the objective of increasing website visits. 

CTR: clicks/impressions 

• Measures if the audience is 
interested in the ad creative 

Cost Per Click: total cost/clicks 

• Measures media efficiency 

Social Engagements - measures how people 
are participating in the conversation 

Engagement includes Twitter retweets, 
Facebook shares, Facebook comments 

Audience Growth - measures the 
speed at which your brand's following 
increases on social media 

Website Traffic - measures what tactics are 
driving interested individuals to the website 
and what landing pages interest them 

Website KPI Metrics - includes time on site, 
bounce rate and average pages visited by tactic 

INDUSTRY BENCHMARKS 

ZLR reviews and monitors industry averages to set 
benchmarks for campaign performance. For Cedar 
Falls, ZLR reviewed travel and leisure averages 
from WordStream.com. Using CTR and CPC as an 
example, ZLR has detailed the Travel and Leisure 
industry averages below. 

S0.6l 

O?O'il 
S0.38 

S.O.<-S 

~I ,~I 4.68.', - i;ACEBOOK TWITTEQ l.._.STAC.AAM PAID SEA.ACH 

■ CTR ■r<><: 

192

ITEM  12.



Budget Overview 

MEDIA 

Facebook 

lnstagram 

Twitter 

$4,550 

$4,460 

$1,080 

Paid Search $9,675 

ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING 

Ignition Report 

Account and Media Administration 

$600 

$4,635 

GRAND TOTAL $25,000 

City of Cedar Falls 

By: Date· 
(Signature - Name & Title) 

Please Print Name & Title: 

Zim~an, JaA'ne·n' and Rich~on, Inc. (dba ZLR Ignition) 

By_ _ •V\._J0~Nll~t ~,--JA1AJ_&4~ Date ---~J~J+LQ _ 
(Signature Norrie & tfe) 

Please Pc,nt Name & Title -···· n_MCJ'J±-,1-ly- l.1:?-tS:i_dt{llk· .... ·------- 

i"'PCWrliFT-"PY Y. (ONelCEi'Fl/,L ZLR IG'·IITIO\/ 7019 

193

ITEM  12.



08/28/2019 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
CONSULTANTS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term "contractor" as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 

1. All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa. All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide. 

2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement. A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 

3. Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of 
Insurance for all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or 
services pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 

4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 

5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement. 

6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City's option, shall allow City to 
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor's 
expense. 

7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 

, This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City. 

-, Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 
following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 

194

ITEM  12.



the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract. 

8. Errors & Omissions: If the contract's scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other negligent acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 
work completed or services performed under the contract. The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 

9. Separation of lnsured's Provision: If Contractor's liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured's provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 

10 Limits By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor's liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract. The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 

11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision: To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend (for all non-professional claims), 
indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, 
including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages 
which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents 
working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not limited to, 
damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death, 
and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor. It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way responsible for the 
injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the Contractor, its officers, 
employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor due to 
accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in person or 

195

ITEM  12.



property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the Contractor 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent caused by 
the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 

12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the Contractor or 
anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of subrogation or 
otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or any other 
casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor's employees. This 
provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect to loss 
or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out of the work 
performed under this contract. The Contractor's policies of insurance (except for 
Professional Liability) shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that 
such release shall not adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the 
right of the Contractor to recover thereunder. 

Completion Checklist 

□ Certificate of Liability Insurance 

196

ITEM  12.



EXHIBIT 1 - INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
Commercial General Liability 

General Aggregate 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit 
Personal and Advertising Injury Limit 
Each Occurrence Limit 
Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) 
Medical Payments 

$2,000,000 
$2,000,000 
$1,000,000 
$1,000,000 
$ 50,000 
$ 5,000 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit) $1,000,000 
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 

Standard Workers Compensation 
Statutory for Coverage A 
Employers Liability: 

Each Accident 
Each Employee - Disease 
Policy Limit - Disease 

$ 500,000 
$ 500,000 
$ 500,000 

Umbrella: $1,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 

Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 

197

ITEM  12.



ACORD$ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DA T'E {M'>4/0DIYY'IYJ 

1,........---' 
THIS CERTIFlCATE IS ISSUED AS A MAHER OF INFORMATION ONLY ANO CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S}, AUTHORIZED 
RC:PRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, ANO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holdor Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tho pollcy(lea) must bo ondoraed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to tho 
terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require 1m endorsement. A statement on thii certificate does not confer rl11hts to the 
cortlrlcatc holder In lieu of such ondorsomentjs). 

PROOUCfR ~~~~er 
PHONE --- [FAX Your Insurance Agoncy , .. ,,.. '"° r::-1\.. t~o):_ 

123 Main Streel ~~,,,..J~ ... - 
Anyfown, IA 00000 PRODUCER -- - - ---- 

~YOldERJD.L... --·· 

- INSUREJl!SJ IIHOROING COVEMCE --- NAlC_I 
INSURED _IMSUR~ n: Carrier should rcncc:1 ratinn or A- VIII or belier _ -- - ·- Business Nome ~SUB~RA · 

123 Main Street - 
INS\IKEH C: - - Anylown, Ii\ 0000 INstJRB\0; . ·- 
INSUR~ --- 
INS:.UREA F ~ 

COVERAGES 
THIS IS TO CF.RTIFY THAT TIU:: POUCIE:l OF INSURANCE LISTED OELOW IIAVr 0([,'j l&SUED TO THE INSURED NAMl;'U AllOVE ~OR HIE POLICY rF.RIOO 
INDICATED. NQT\11,lTHSTANOING N-IY REOVIRC:MENT. TrRM OR CONDI flON Of' ANY CON 11-lACT OK m HER OOCUMl:XI Willi RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED on MAY PrnTNN. THE INSUltANCI: AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HF.RF.IN IS SURJF.CT TO Al.L THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS or SUCH POLICIES. LIM/TS SHOWN MAY HAVF. AFEN REDUCED BY PAID Cl AIMS. 

INSA - --~POucvifff.'POL1CY£XP J.lR TYPE 01' INSURANCE ,.,_, ·-- l'OUCYHUMBEJl fMAllflflr.a:!l:J LIMiTS 

A GENERAL UABUTY 01/01/2015 01/01/2016 EA!,-1 l)(,(lJilR~NCf s 1,000.oao_ '-- Policy Number 
i;'&ij1s'gs 'te~~.i;~~-1 X COMMfRCUlt. Clf.NERl\l. LIAOlll rY IT Ix s -1(!!}.illl!l. 

_J CLAINS W.0€ ~ OCCU/1 MED EXP (My""• p<nOI') s "nnn '-- 
~ --- l'l:t<SONAL II AUV INJllflY ...! 1.QQQ,000 
1--- _ G [t,IEML AClOREOA IE $ 2 ooc coo rt "'=r~" I.IMfT rt PER: PffOCJUCTS - COMP.OP AGG $ 2.000,000 

POl ICY X '!\9; LOC I $ 

AUT01il08l.E UABII.ITY ' COM!lNtlJ SINOU, L1"41l A '-- I Polley Nurnbe< 01/01/2015 01/01f2016 ([• ac:cid0!1l 
$ 1,000,000 

X AN~ IIIJ10 rx1rY OOOIL Y INJURY (P"' pef\Ct 1) $ ~ 
1-- 

"'1.1 O~f'O lllJTOS 
OOOll Y IN./UI\Y (f-'•r a-ddonl) s 

SCHEDUL~O AUTOS PROPERTY O,,MIIG€ 

' 1-- "lf<Ell /\VTOS (POI Q<dd«\t) 

NON O'IINW AUTOS $ 

s 
A X UM~RF.ll A LIAn ~ x_j occon Polley Number 01/01/2015 01/01/2016 8\CH OCCUARl:NCl $ I 000 000 ,__ 

EXCESS UA!I C.:U\IMS-MAUt ex_:: C -'GOl-!!aUAl~ $ 1,000,000 - - --· --- 
O!:DUCTI8LE s .. - 
Rl:IEWION J $ 

A WOl!KEIIS COMl>l:NSA !ION 
Policy Number 01/01/2015 01/01/2016 x I .~J:~.¥.,1 ,Cl)/;'° 

4/;0 D,4PLOYE.RS' u.amLJ fY y / N 
A>IY PROPRIET()l(iPART1'E/Vf.l(fCUTIW n [x E.l. E,\CHACOOENT $ """ ntvi OFF IGERfM046EH EXCLLOf 07 N/11 
f1'1ndot.ory In Nit) E.L OISLASL • LA LMPI.OYE! s r.nn nnn 
1 yos. <IO<Cll ba "'"'"' E.L. DISc/\SE • f'OIJCY LIMIT s <:nn·nnn .;.r,,,.,, - 

Er•ors & Ornisstons r:: C Policy Number 01/01/2015 01/01/2016 Eac>i Occurence $1,000,0CO 

DESCRIPlJON OF OPl:MATIONS / I or.A TIO.~S /Va!ICL!~ (Alt•ch ACORD 191, Addlllon•I Rorrurk, S<:ho dute, if Dlote &pie<> 11 roqulredl 

Waiver of Subrogation under the Workers' Compensation and General Liability. 

CERTIFICATE NUNBER· REVISION NUMBER· 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

City of Cedar Falls SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCfc;S ne CIINCEU.EO BEFORE ™E 
EXPIRATION OATI: ffiEREOF. NOTICF. Wilt. DE PELIVE.REO 111 ACCOROANCE WITH TltE 

220 Clay Street POI.ICY PROVISIONS. 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 II un I 01112(]) Ra>f1ESE!,i TA nvs 

I 

CANCELLATION 

ACORD 26 (2009/09) 
© 1988- 2009 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

TI1e ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 
198

ITEM  12.



Exhibit C 

2/9/12 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN 
CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS 

This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors 
who perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract. The term, 
"Contractor," as used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other 
design professional providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 

1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 

2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 

3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services 
to be performed under this Contract. Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, 
or employees, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 

4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 

5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 

6. Severability. If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no 
provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 

7. Assignment. Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights 
or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent 
may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 

8. Survival of Obligations. All obligations and duties which by their nature 
extend beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 

9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial. This Contract shall be 
construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws 
of the State of Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules. The parties hereto agree that 
the exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall not be removed to federal 

141 Page 
199

ITEM  12.



court. The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to submit all 
disputes to a trial by judge alone. The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract 
shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual 
consent of both parties. 

10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Attachment A, shall constitute a 
default under this Contract. 

11. Attorneys' Fees. In the event of litigation, the City shall under no 
circumstances be obligated for payment of any attorneys' fees of Contractor or any other 
party, arising out of such litigation. 

12. Payment. Payment of Contractor's invoices shall be due no sooner than 
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice. In the event any invoices are not paid within 
thirty (30) days, the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by 
Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 

13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records 
under the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have 
no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 

14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether 
consequential, indirect, special, or punitive damages. 

15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor's liability to the City be 
limited to any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by 
the City to the Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided 
for in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Exhibit B. 

16. No waiver of the City's subrogation rights against the Contractor or any 
other party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, 
Attachment A. 

17. Limitations Period. There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by 
Iowa law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the 
Contractor or other party under the provisions of this Contract. 

18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved 
by the City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City. 

19. Warranties. Contractor represents and warrants that all services 
furnished to the City under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike 
manner, in accordance with the degree of skill and care that is required by current, good 
and sound practices applicable to the Contractor's industry or profession, and as 
otherwise required by applicable law. 

151 Page 
200

ITEM  12.



20. Force Majeure. Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other 
party for delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from 
such delays, that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, 
extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party. Each party will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 

16 IP age 201

ITEM  12.



EXHIBIT 0 

ZLR >~ IGNITION 

CLIENT LETTER OF AGREEMENT 

City of Cedar Falls, ("Client") is contracting with Zimmerman, Laurent and Richardson, Inc., 
dba ZLR Ignition, ("Agency") to be its agency of record for overall marketing communications. 

I. SCOPE OF RELATIONSHIP. 
While this agreement is in effect, Agency will not act as the marketing communications agency 
for a similar competing service without first having obtained written consent from Client. 

Should either party wish to terminate the relationship, written notice shall be given and the 
termination will take place 60 days from the date of receipt of the notification. If such 60 day 
notice is given, Agency shall only work on those matters specifically approved in writing by 
Client and, unless such specific approval is given, Agency shall cease any activities on behalf of 
Client. 

In the event of termination, Client will retain ownership of all materials produced by Agency, 
used or unused, provided Agency is paid in full for its services and out-of-pocket expenses and 
Agency will turn over such materials to Client. 

Agency agrees to keep all Client information, methodologies and plans in the strictest 
confidence during and after the tenure of this agreement. 

II. AGENCY COMPENSATION. 
It is agreed that Agency will be compensated based on the estimate(s) provided for specific 
project(s) and/or media plans and approved by a representative of Client; and/or the Agency's 
prevailing hourly rates. 

a. Below is a list of other possible activities Agency staff might incur while performing 
marketing projects for Client that will be charged at the hourly rate or agreed upon 
estimate. A list of hourly rates by service type is outlined in the attached rate schedule. 

i. Account service on non-media-related projects. 
ii. Art direction, layout, and design services. 
iii. Copywriting/editorial/proofreading services. 
iv. Final art and print production supervision services. 
v. Supervision of photography. 

City of Cedar Falls & ZLR Ignition Letter of Agreement 
Page 1 of 4 

202

ITEM  12.



vi. Radio production and supervision. 

vii. Television production and supervision. 

viii. Advertising and collateral materials and associated activities undertaken on 

behalf of Client by Agency. 

ix. Planning, administration and analysis of specifically assigned research projects. 

x. Development of themes, plans, concepts and outlines for seminars, employee 

meetings, training projects, trade shows and conventions. 

xi. Public relations counsel and plan execution. 

xii. Direct marketing activities. 

b. Other Outside Purchases: 
Other outside purchases relative to the completion of a specifically assigned project will 
be billed through Agency. This generally applies to printing, audio and video production 
and promotional items. It is acceptable for Client to be billed directly for those products 
and services from a third party vendor, if desired. 

c. General Billing Practices: 
i. For projects in which a detailed estimate is provided, the signature of a 

representative of Client will serve as authorization for Agency to commence 
work, per the approved estimate. New projects or media purchases are not 
initiated until estimates and media authorizations are signed by Client. 

ii. Monthly invoices will be provided to Client based on work and/or out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred for Client's project(s) for the prior month. 

iii. Invoices will be mailed on or about the 10th of each month to designated Client 
representative. 

iv. Past due invoices are assessed a 1.5% service charge for each 30 day period or 
fraction thereof each invoice is past due. 

v. Applicable taxes will be charged on all production invoices unless a tax-exempt 
certificate is filed with the agency. 

vi. Cash discounts offered to us by the media will be passed along to Client if 
payment is made within the terms of the discount. These discounts are 
surrendered if the invoice is not paid within 10 days of Client's receipt of 
Agency's invoice. 

vii. On Agency invoices that bear no cash discount, payment is due net 30 unless 
special arrangements are made at the beginning of the project for which the 
invoices apply. 

viii. If Client fails to reach the anticipated media frequency/bulk rate and is 
therefore short rated, short rates are billed to Client. 

City of Cedar Falls & ZLR Ignition Letter of Agreement 
Page 2 of 4 

203

ITEM  12.



ix. When Client exceeds the anticipated media frequency/bulk commitment and 

thereby earns a lower rate, all earned rebates are credited to Client. 

x. Magazines and outdoor boards will be billed on estimate in the month in which 

they close for orders. In most cases, this means Client will be invoiced 30 to 60 

days in advance of the actual run date because that is when the Agency is 

responsible for the purchase. 

xi. Radio, television, newspaper, magazine and internet advertising will be billed in 

the month in which it is run. 

xii. Any billing discrepancies will be issued in the month in which the media invoice 

is received by Agency. 

Ill. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITY. 

d. Client is responsible for the accuracy and completeness of information concerning your 

products and services which you furnish to us -- or approve after our submission -- for 

use in any communications vehicle. 

e. Client will indemnify Agency against any loss incurred as the result of any suit brought 

against Agency based upon any advertising or publicity which we prepared for Client 

and which Client approved before its production. 

f. Client will indemnify Agency against any loss sustained resulting from any claim, suit or 
proceeding brought against Agency for misuse of any materials produced under 
applicable union talent codes and misused by Client or Client's dealer/agent 
organization. 

g. Client agrees to assume Agency liability - - acting as Client's agent in purchasing the 
materials and services required to produce advertising on Client's behalf - - for all 
commitments, and to reimburse Agency for any expenses and losses sustained in 
connection with Client's advertising. 

h. Agency will endeavor to guard against any loss to Client through failure of media or 
suppliers to properly execute their commitments; however, Agency shall not be held 
responsible for any failure on media/suppliers' part. 

i. While Agency agrees to devote our best efforts to Client's interest, Client agrees to aid 
us in doing so by making available to us needed information pertaining to Client's 
business and to cooperate with us in expediting Client's work. 

j. Agency will indemnify Client for any loss incurred as a result of any claim, suit, or 
proceeding brought against Client in respect of negligent acts or omissions performed or 
omitted by Agency, insofar as such loss arises out of any activity performed by us under 
this letter of agreement. 

City of Cedar Falls & ZLR Ignition Letter of Agreement 

Page 3 of 4 

204

ITEM  12.



Client and Agency have fully reviewed and understand the terms and conditions of this Letter of 

Agreement. It is accepted and agreed to by: 

City of Cedar Falls 

By: Date: _ 

(Signature • Name & Title) 

Please Print Name & Title: _ 

City of Cedar Falls & ZLR Ignition Letter of Agreement 
Page 4 of 4 

205

ITEM  12.



ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/00/YYYY) 

~ 8/30/2019 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~2~i~cT Monica Lynch 
LMC Insurance & Risk Management, Inc. 

iitJ8NNEo Extl: 515-237-0141 I FAX 
4200 University Ave., Suite 200 IA/C Nol: 515-244-9535 

West Des Moines IA 50266-5945 iilJ~ss: monica.lynch@lmcins.com 
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A: EMCASCO Insurance Company 21407 
INSURED ZLRIGNl-01 INSURER B: AXIS Insurance Company 37273 
ZLR Ignition 

INSURERC: 303 Watson Powell Jr. Way, Suite 100 
Des Moines IA 55030 INSURER D: 

INSURER E: 
INSURER F: 

COVERAGES 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LTR INC,n wvn POLICY NUMBER IMM/DDIYYYY I IMM/0O/YYYYI LIMITS 

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y 5X22924 1/1/2019 1/1/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE S 2,000,000 - □ CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES !Ea occurrence) S 1,000,000 

- MED EXP (Any one person) S 10,000 

- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY so 
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 4,000,000 
~ 0PRO- [8]Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG S 4,000,000 POLICY JECT 

OTHER: s 
A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 5X22924 1/1/2019 1/1/2020 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT S 1,000,000 !Ea accicent) - 

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s - OWNED - SCHEDULED 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) S - HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE X AUTOS ONLY X AUTOS ONLY I Per accident) s - s 

A X UMBRELLA LIAB M OCCUR 5X22924 1/1/2019 1/1/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE S 1,000,000 - EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE S 1,000,000 

OED I X I RETENTIONS rn nnn s 
A WORKERS COMPENSATION y 5X22924 1/1/2019 1/1/2020 X I PER I I OTH- STATUTE ER AND EMPLOYERS" LIABILITY YIN 

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE □ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT S 500,000 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A 
(Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE· EA EMPLOYEE S 500,000 
If yes, describe under 

E.L. DISEASE · POLICY LIMIT S 500,000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 
B Professional & Media Liability MCN000087951901 1/1/2019 1/1/2020 Per Claim: $1,000,000 

Aggregate: $1,000,000 
Retention: $10,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 
Earlier Notice of Cancellation provided by us - Designated Entity - 30 Days per form IL7338 (01/13) 

Waiver of subrogation applies to the Workers Compensation policy per form WC000313 (04/84) 

Waiver of Subrogation applies to the General Liability Policy per form BP0497 (01 /06) 

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 322806308 REVISION NUMBER: 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street ]:Z:R:z;: Cedar Falls IA 50613 

I 

CANCELLATION 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 
206

ITEM  12.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 
OPERATIONS & 
MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

       FROM:    Brian Heath, O/M Division Manager 

 DATE: August 27, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Immediate Need Purchase 

 
 
 
The Public Works Department has an rapid need for the acquisition of an aerial 
boom truck for the purpose of removing ash trees. The reason for this immediate 
need is due to the boom failure of the department’s older truck. The failed unit in 
question is a 1998 model which was preliminarily scheduled for replacement in 
FY21. The failed boom apparatus of this truck is obsolete and no longer 
certifiable. This unit is a vital component of the ash tree removal program. 
 
Quotations were sought through the Sourcewell network of cooperative 
purchasing. Sourcewell is formerly know as Joint Purchasing Alliance, providing 
competitively solicited cooperative contracts for municipalities. A unit will be 
available from Altec Industries Inc. in October through this program at a cost of 
$146,718.00. Altec Industries is the same manufacturer that produced the City’s 
existing aerial which has proven to be a quality unit.  
 
The Public Works Department is seeking authorization to purchase the aerial 
apparatus according to the Accounting Policies & Procedures and Purchasing 
Manual; Section 10.02, Rapid Needs Purchases. The expenditure will be paid 
from General Revenue reserves. 
   
 
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have questions. 
 
 
 
 
CC: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

 

207

ITEM  13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Inspections Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, Building Official 
 
 DATE: August 29, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Invision Architecture, LTD   
  Professional Design Services Agreement 
  City Hall Master Planning and Renovation 
 
Attached you will find the Professional Services Agreement with Invision Architecture, 
LTD for the initial phase of the City Hall Master Planning and Renovation Project. 
 
This initial phase will be a study to determine an accurate scope of work to update and 
reutilize the vacant portion of City Hall.  The now vacant portion of City Hall (formally the 
police operations) will be where a heavy portion of the work will occur however other 
portions of City Hall will be redesigned as we shift various Departments and Divisions 
around to best utilize the available space.  This phase will end with a schematic plan 
and a cost estimate. 
 
The proposed Professional Services Agreement with Invision Architecture, LTD. will 
provide architectural services, mechanical and electrical engineering services for the 
schematic design of City Hall. The compensation for this agreement will be a fixed fee 
of $15,000. This funding will come from CIP #174 – City Hall Carpet Replacement and 
Repurpose of City Hall. 
 
After the completion of this phase we will bring forward another Professional Design 
Services Agreement which will take the project from Design Development to the 
completion of Construction. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval 
of the Professional Services Agreement with Invision Architecture, LTD. for completing 
the schematic design of the City Hall Remodel. If you have any questions or comments 
feel free to contact me.  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
   

 

208

ITEM  14.



������������	
�

�

�����
�
������������������������������ ����! ����������"#$��"�

%&'()

*

+%+,-./012&(,34546,7,8549),:;<=>?@ABCDCEFGHICEFGJICEFJGICEFFGICKLLGCMNOCKLEGCP=CQARCSTR>?UMNCVNWB?BXBRC;YCS>UA?BRUBW),+ZZ,['\](̂,[2̂2[_2̀),a+bc%cde,f]'̂,
+%+g,,-./012&(,'̂,h[.(2/(2̀,ij,k)l),m.hj['\](,nop,o&̀,%&(2[&o('.&oZ,f[2o('2̂),k&o0(].['q2̀,[2h[.̀0/('.&,.[,̀'̂(['i0('.&,.r,(]'̂,+%+g,,-./012&(s,.[,o&j,
h.[('.&,.r,'(s,1oj,[2̂0Z(,'&,̂2_2[2,/'_'Z,o&̀,/['1'&oZ,h2&oZ('2̂s,o&̀,p'ZZ,i2,h[.̂2/0(2̀,(.,(]2,1ot'101,2t(2&(,h.̂ '̂iZ2,0&̀2[,(]2,Zop)CQA?WCO;UXTRNBCuMWC
<>;OXUROCP=CSVSCW;YBuM>RCMBCEvwHEwLLCxQC;NCLJyKJyKLEFCXNOR>Cz>OR>C{;|KEF}KK}}JGCuA?UACR~<?>RWC;NCLvyKvyKLKLICMNOC?WCN;BCY;>C>RWM�R|
k̂ 2[,c.(2̂eC �JF}JGKH}v�

4

QA?WCO;UXTRNBCAMWC?T<;>BMNBC

�R@M�CU;NWR�XRNURW|C:;NWX�BMB?;NC

u?BACMNCMBB;>NR=C

?WCRNU;X>M@ROCu?BAC>RW<RUBCB;C

?BWCU;T<�RB?;NC;>CT;O?Y?UMB?;N|

���������������������������������������������������������������
�� ¡¢£¤¥¦§¡̈ ¥̈©ª«¬¡¥ª§¡®£ «̄¡ª ¥¡¬ª¤°±

	��²����������³����³�́��³µ�����������������������¶·���̧
�¹ª®¬§¡º¬»ªº¡¦«ª«¼¦§¡ª¥¥¤¬¦¦¡ª ¥¡£«̄¬¤¡̈ ½£¤®ª«̈£ ±

�¾�������¾�����¿�µµ����
�����¾µ���À������
�¾�����¿�µµ�Á�Â��Ã�Ä�Å�
��

����������³����³�̧
�¹ª®¬§¡º¬»ªº¡¦«ª«¼¦§¡ª¥¥¤¬¦¦¡ª ¥¡£«̄¬¤¡̈ ½£¤®ª«̈£ ±

�ÂÆÇÂÀÂ¶Æ���³����³����Á�ÈÉÊ���
�Ã���À�³������À�����Á�À���������
�Ë����µ��Á�Â��Ã���Å
��

����������µµ�·����Ì��Í�³�̧
�¹ª®¬§¡º£©ª«̈£ ¡ª ¥¡¥¬«ª̈º¬¥¡¥¬¦©¤̈Î«̈£ ±

¾�����¿�µµ��¾����Ï�µµ�Ð������Ìµ�������
����¾µ���À������
¾�����¿�µµ�Á�Â��Ã�Ä�Å�
��É���¾����������Ñ�����������ÒÒ���³��������µ����������������Ó���������¾����Ï�µµ���Ò���������
����Ò��Ô������µ���Õ�����Òµ���������������Ô�µ�Ò�������������Ö�������×��µ����Ø��Ù���������
�Ô���µµ�������������×��µ�������������Ú�ÁÃ�����Ø��

É���¶·����������³����³�������������µµ�·�Ø

209

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

�

]̂_̀abcdb̂e]fg̀ah

i fjf]f̂̀ bfjdcek̂ ]fcj

l êgmf]ag]nhbeahocjhf_f̀f]fah

p hgcoabcdb̂egmf]ag]nhb_̂hfgbhaeqfgah

r hsoòakaj]̂ b̀̂jtb̂ttf]fcĵ b̀haeqfgah

u cvjaenhbeahocjhf_f̀f]fah

w gch]bcdb]mabvcex

y gcozef{m]hb̂jtb̀fgajhah

| g̀ f̂khb̂jtbtfhos]ah

} ]aekfĵ]fcjbcebhshoajhfcj

i~ kfhgà`̂jacshboecqfhfcjh

ii gckoajĥ]fcj

il hoagf̂̀ b]aekhb̂jtbgcjtf]fcjh

ip hgcoabcdb]mab̂{eaakaj]

ê]fg̀abibbbfjf]f̂̀ bfjdcek̂ ]fcj
�bi�ib���������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�������� �¡¢�£�¡¤�¢ ¡¥�¥��¢¡�¤¦�¡¤¥��¢�¢ ��¡¤§��£�¢¡�¤������¥¢�¢�£�¤¢�¥̈� ��¥�©¤�¢��ªª«¡��¬«�©����©̈¤¤�®¤��¢�¢¡£���§�
�̄��̈¢¡�¤°©±

�bi�i�ib����²³���́��µ���������������¶��·���̧
��¹¤¥��¢�¢ ��º®¤��»¥�ª��¼��£¦�¡½�¤¢¡§¾�½��̈£�¤¢�¢¡�¤�¢ �¢��¥¢�¬«¡¥ �¥�¢ ��º®¤��»¥�ª��¼��£¦����¥¢�¢��¢ ��£�¤¤���¡¤�
® ¡� �¢ ��ª��¼��£�®¡««�¬��½�¿�«�ª�½°±

�¶�������³���������À���µ����Á���������Â����À��Ã�¶��������Ä������¶��������

�bi�i�lb����¶��·���́��µ�Ã���������������������̧
�¹½�¤¢¡§¾����½�¥��¡¬��ª��¢¡¤�¤¢�¡¤§��£�¢¡�¤��¬�̈¢�¢ ��Å��Æ��¢»¥�ª ¾¥¡��«�� ����¢��¡¥¢¡�¥¦�¥̈� ��¥�¥¡Ç�È�«���¢¡�¤È�
½¡£�¤¥¡�¤¥È�¼��¢�� ¤¡��«���ª��¢¥È�¥¡¢��¬�̈¤½��¡�¥È�¢�ª�¼��ª ¡��¥̈�¿�¾¥È�¢��§§¡���¤½�̈¢¡«¡¢¾�¥¢̈½¡�¥È��¿�¡«�¬¡«¡¢¾��§�
ª̈¬«¡���¤½�ª�¡¿�¢��̈¢¡«¡¢¡�¥��¤½�¥��¿¡��¥È�«�¼�«�½�¥��¡ª¢¡�¤��§�¢ ��¥¡¢�¦��¢�°±

���É�����Ê�����É��Ã�Ë���
����ÌÌÍ�É��Ã�������
����É�����Ê����Î����ÏÍÐ�Ñ

�bi�i�pb����²³���́���Á�������������É�����������Ò��ÓÎ�����������������������Ð��̧
�Å��¿¡½��¢�¢�«��¤½¦�¡§�¤�®¤¦���«¡¤��¡¢�£�¬���½�®¤°±

�Ô����µµ��������

210

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

]

_̂̀àab_cdefghiejklfminopoqmnerfrelosifmirfptilnjupnotifvowelntiefrmnelx

à yelosifqdmlefvowelntiefrmnelzfo{fmi|x

f}tnfmqqwopm~we

a� �tilnjupnotifptvveipeveinfrmnex

}tnfmqqwopm~wef
fffffffff
a� �u~lnminomwf�tvqwenotifrmneftjfrmnelx

f}tnfmqqwopm~wef

ab gndejfvowelntiefrmnelx

f�dmlef�f�mlnejf�wmiioisfmlfrelpjo~erfoif�jnopwef���mfolfminopoqmnerfntf~efptvqwenef~|fyepev~ejf�zf
����

_̂̀àa�_cdefghiejfoineirlfndef{twwthoisfqjtpujeveinfmirfrewo�ej|fvendtrf{tjfndef�jt�epnx
���������������������������� �����¡��¢����£���¤������������£���¥����¦�§§��������£�̈��£���������£�����§�£������£�
����©�£��ª�����¤�����������£������¥���§�� §��¢��� ��ª�¤��¥��£� �����������£������«¬

f}tnfmqqwopm~wef

_̂̀àa_cdefghiejklfminopoqmnerf�ulnmoim~wefg~�epno�ef{tjfndef�jt�epnx
������������������£�¢������®¦��£̄��°�������¢§��®¢±����¡����£�����²£�±���¥�������«¬

f}tnfmqqwopm~wef
ff

_̂̀àaà_³{fndefghiejforeino{oelfmf�ulnmoim~wefg~�epno�ezfndefghiejfmirf�jpdonepnfldmwwfptvqwenefmirfoiptjqtjmnef�³�f
ytpuveinf́��µ¶·���̧zf�ulnmoim~wef�jt�epnlf́¹do~onzfointfndolf�sjeeveinfntfre{oiefndefnejvlzfptironotilfmirf
lej�opelfjewmnerfntfndefghiejklf�ulnmoim~wefg~�epno�e�f³{f́��µ·���̧folfoiptjqtjmnerfointfndolfmsjeeveinzfndefghiejf
mirf�jpdonepnfldmwwfoiptjqtjmnefndefptvqwenerf́��µ·���̧fointfndefmsjeeveinlfhondfndefptiluwnminlfmirfptinjmpntjlf
qej{tjvoisflej�opelftjfºtj»foifmi|fhm|fmlltpomnerfhondfndef�ulnmoim~wefg~�epno�e�

_̂̀àa¼_cdefghiejforeino{oelfndef{twwthoisfjeqjeleinmno�efoifmpptjrmipefhondf�epnotif½��x
�¾��������¥����£���¥���������£�������������£������«¬
¿mvoef�mlnwef
f�on|ft{f�ermjfÀmwwlf
f���f�wm|f�njeenf
f�ermjfÀmwwlzf³�f½�Á��f
ff
ff

_̂̀àaÂ_cdefqejltilftjfeinonoelzfoifmrronotifntfndefghiejklfjeqjeleinmno�ezfhdtfmjefjeÃuojerfntfje�oehfndef�jpdonepnklf
lu~vonnmwlfntfndefghiejfmjefmlf{twwthlx
�¾��������¥����£���¥���������£�������������£������«¬

}tnfmqqwopm~we

_̂̀àaÄ_cdefghiejfldmwwfjenmoifndef{twwthoisfptiluwnminlfmirfptinjmpntjlx
�¾��������¥�§�¤�§�������¥����£���¥���������£�������������£������«¬

à Åetnepdiopmwf́isoieejx

211

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

]

_̂̀abccdefbgdha
aa
aa
aa
aa

ij keledamnoenhhpq

â_̀abccdefbgdhaa
aa
aa
aa
aa

ir s̀thpuaevabnwq
xyz{|}~��}�|���}���{��|~�|{}~��}���|�~�|��{}��|~z���}��}|��}�������

aa

���i�i����tha�pftèhf̀ae�hǹeveh�àthav_dd_�enoaphcph�hǹb̀elhaenabff_p�bnfha�èta�hf̀e_na���q
xyz{|}�~���}~����{{�}~��}�|���}���|~�|}z�����~|z����

a�e�a��pne�ua� �a
a ̂¡ � ŝ a�pftèhf̀�phua¢�£aaa
a¤¥¦a�wfb�_pha�̀phh̀ua��èha¦¥¦a
a§b̀hpd__ua �a¤¥̈¥�a
aa
aa
aa
aa

���i�i����tha�pftèhf̀a�tbddaph̀benàthaf_n��d̀bǹ�ae�hǹeveh�aena�hf̀e_n�a¦�¦�¦¦�¦abn�a¦�¦�¦¦��q
xyz{|}�~���}��©~�}{|~|�{�}~����{{�}~��}�|���}���|~�|}z�����~|z����

���i�i��i�ak_n��d̀bǹ�aph̀benh�a�n�hpaªb�efa�hplefh�q
i� �̀p�f̀�pbdamnoenhhpq

â_̀abccdefbgdhaa
aa
aa
aa
aa

« ij ¬hftbnefbdamnoenhhpqa¬s£�amnoenhhpenoa®a§eddacp_le�haohnhpbdaph�hlhd_c�hǹaenc�̀ab̀àtha
ghoennenoa_vàthacp_fh��av_pa�w�̀h�a_cc_p̀�nèeh�abn�ade�èb̀e_n��a
a
aa¬s£�amnoenhhpenoaaa
a�¦̄amb�̀ā̀ta�̀phh̀a
a§b̀hpd__ua �a¤¥̈¥�a
aa
aa

ir mdhf̀pefbdamnoenhhpqa¬s£�amnoenhhpenoa®a§eddacp_le�haohnhpbdaph�hlhd_c�hǹaenc�̀ab̀àthaghoennenoa
_vàthacp_fh��av_pa�w�̀h�a_cc_p̀�nèeh�abn�ade�èb̀e_n��

a¬s£�amnoenhhpenoaaa

212

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

]

_̂̀âbcdêaef̂gehiiê
ĵceihkllm̂nôpqrqŝ̂^̂
^̂
^̂
^̂
^̂

tuvwvwvvwxuylzd{keczed̂hiec|zi}̂{z}iĥg{~~ki�izeck̂gih�|�id�

�lêc~~k|�c�kî

tuvwvwvxu�efiĥnz|e|ck̂nz�lh�ce|lẑlẑ�f|�f̂efîo�hii�izê|d̂�cdi}�

�lêc~~k|�c�kî̂

tuvwxu�fî��ziĥcz}̂oh�f|ei�ê�c�̂hik�̂lẑefînz|e|ck̂nz�lh�ce|lz�̂�lef̂~che|idm̂fl�i�ihm̂hi�l�z|�îefcêefînz|e|ck̂
nz�lh�ce|lẑ�c�̂�ceih|ckk�̂�fcz�îcz}m̂|ẑefcêi�izem̂efî��ziĥcz}̂efîoh�f|ei�êdfckk̂c~~hl~h|ceik�̂c}�{dêefî
oh�f|ei�e�d̂dih�|�idm̂d�fi}{kî�lĥefîoh�f|ei�e�d̂dih�|�idm̂cz}̂efîoh�f|ei�e�d̂�l�~izdce|lz�̂�fî��ziĥdfckk̂c}�{dê
efî��zih�d̂�{}�iê�lĥefîyldêl�̂efîjlh�̂cz}̂efî��zih�d̂cze|�|~cei}̂}id|�ẑcz}̂�lzdeh{�e|lẑ�|kidelzidm̂cd̂
zi�iddch�m̂el̂c��l��l}ceî�ceih|ck̂�fcz�id̂|ẑefînz|e|ck̂nz�lh�ce|lz�

tuvw�u�fî~che|id̂dfckk̂c�hiî{~lẑ~hlel�lkd̂�l�ihz|z�̂efîehczd�|dd|lẑcz}̂{dîl�̂nzdeh{�ized̂l�̂gih�|�îlĥcz�̂lefiĥ
|z�lh�ce|lẑlĥ}l�{�izece|lẑ|ẑ}|�|eck̂�lh��̂�fî~che|id̂�|kk̂{dîonô�l�{�izêb_qs��_q̀sm̂�{|k}|z�̂
nz�lh�ce|lẑ�l}ik|z�̂cz}̂�|�|eck̂�ceĉb�f|�|em̂el̂idec�k|df̂efî~hlel�lkd̂�lĥefî}i�ikl~�izem̂{dim̂ehczd�|dd|lzm̂cz}̂
i��fcz�îl�̂}|�|eck̂}cec�

tuvw�wvuoz�̂{dîl�m̂lĥhik|cz�îlzm̂ckk̂lĥĉ~lhe|lẑl�̂ĉ�{|k}|z�̂|z�lh�ce|lẑ�l}ik̂�|efl{êc�hii�izêel̂~hlel�lkd̂
�l�ihz|z�̂efî{dîl�m̂cz}̂hik|cz�îlzm̂efî|z�lh�ce|lẑ�lzec|zi}̂|ẑefî�l}ik̂cz}̂�|efl{êfc�|z�̂efldî~hlel�lkd̂diê
�lhef̂|ẑonô�l�{�izêb_qs��_q̀sm̂�{|k}|z�̂nz�lh�ce|lẑ�l}ik|z�̂cz}̂�|�|eck̂�ceĉb�f|�|em̂cz}̂efîhi�{|d|eî
onô�l�{�izê�_q_��_q̀sm̂�hl�i�ê�{|k}|z�̂nz�lh�ce|lẑ�l}ik|z�̂�hlel�lk̂�lh�m̂dfckk̂�îcêefî{d|z�̂lĥhik�|z�̂
~che��d̂dlkîh|d�̂cz}̂�|efl{êk|c�|k|e�̂el̂efîlefiĥ~che�̂cz}̂|ed̂�lzehc�elhd̂lĥ�lzd{keczedm̂efîc{eflhd̂l�m̂lĥ�lzeh|�{elhd̂
elm̂efî�{|k}|z�̂|z�lh�ce|lẑ�l}ikm̂cz}̂ic�f̂l�̂efi|ĥc�ized̂cz}̂i�~kl�iid�

����� ¡uxuuu���¢��¡��£¤u�¡¤¥¦§¤�̈� ���¡¤
tuxwvu�fîoh�f|ei�êdfckk̂~hl�|}î~hl�idd|lzck̂dih�|�id̂cd̂diê�lhef̂|ẑef|d̂o�hii�ize�̂�fîoh�f|ei�êhi~hidized̂efcê|ê|d̂
~hl~ihk�̂k|�izdi}̂|ẑefî�{h|d}|�e|lẑ�fihîefî�hl�i�ê|d̂kl�cei}̂el̂~hl�|}îefîdih�|�id̂hi�{|hi}̂��̂ef|d̂o�hii�izem̂lĥ
dfckk̂�c{dîd{�f̂dih�|�id̂el̂�î~ih�lh�i}̂��̂c~~hl~h|ceik�̂k|�izdi}̂}id|�ẑ~hl�idd|lzckd�

tuxwxu�fîoh�f|ei�êdfckk̂~ih�lh�̂|ed̂dih�|�id̂�lzd|deizê�|ef̂efî~hl�idd|lzck̂d�|kk̂cz}̂�chîlh}|zch|k�̂~hl�|}i}̂��̂
ch�f|ei�ed̂~hc�e|�|z�̂|ẑefîdc�îlĥd|�|kcĥkl�ck|e�̂{z}iĥefîdc�îlĥd|�|kcĥ�|h�{�decz�id�̂�fîoh�f|ei�êdfckk̂
~ih�lh�̂|ed̂dih�|�id̂cd̂i�~i}|e|l{dk�̂cd̂|d̂�lzd|deizê�|ef̂d{�f̂~hl�idd|lzck̂d�|kk̂cz}̂�chîcz}̂efîlh}ihk�̂~hl�hidd̂l�̂
efî�hl�i�e�

tuxw�u�fîoh�f|ei�êdfckk̂|}ize|��̂ĉhi~hidizece|�îc{eflh|�i}̂el̂c�êlẑ�ifck�̂l�̂efîoh�f|ei�ê�|ef̂hid~i�êel̂efî
�hl�i�e�

tuxw©ub��i~ê�|ef̂efî��zih�d̂�zl�ki}�îcz}̂�lzdizem̂efîoh�f|ei�êdfckk̂zlêiz�c�î|ẑcz�̂c�e|�|e�m̂lĥc��i~êcz�̂
i�~kl��izem̂|zeihidêlĥ�lzeh|�{e|lẑefcê�l{k}̂hicdlzc�k�̂c~~icĥel̂�l�~hl�|dîefîoh�f|ei�e�d̂~hl�idd|lzck̂
�{}��izê�|ef̂hid~i�êel̂ef|d̂�hl�i�e�

tuxwªû̂�fîoh�f|ei�êdfckk̂�c|zec|ẑefî�lkkl�|z�̂|zd{hcz�î{ze|k̂eih�|zce|lẑl�̂ef|d̂o�hii�ize�̂n�̂cz�̂l�̂efî
hi�{|hi�ized̂diê�lhef̂�ikl�̂chî|ẑc}}|e|lẑel̂efîe�~id̂cz}̂k|�|ed̂efîoh�f|ei�êzlh�ckk�̂�c|zec|zdm̂efî��ziĥdfckk̂
~c�̂efîoh�f|ei�êcd̂diê�lhef̂|ẑgi�e|lẑ̀ �̀«�nzd{hcz�î¬i�{|hi�ized̂chîl{ek|zi}̂|ẑb�f|�|êô�̂nzd{hcz�î
¬i�{|hi�ized̂�lĥylzd{keczed̂�lĥefîy|e�̂l�̂yi}cĥ�ckkd�

213

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

]

_̂̀abac_deffghijklmngoghklmpjkqjljrsmtjrumveljismljfjrwmexmoermlgwwmrukommmmyzmmmm{mxehmgkiumeii|hhgoigmko}mmmmyzmmmm{mjomrugm
k~~hg~krgmxehmqe}jlsmjo�|hsmko}mvhevghrsm}kfk~g�

_̂̀abà_�|refeqjlgmpjkqjljrsmie�ghjo~m�gujilgwmetog}�mko}moeo�etog}m�gujilgwm|wg}�mqsmrugm�hiujrgirmtjrumveljism
ljfjrwmexmoermlgwwmrukommmmyzmmmm{mvghmkiij}gormxehmqe}jlsmjo�|hs�m}gkrumexmkosmvghweo�mko}mvhevghrsm}kfk~gmkhjwjo~me|rmexm
rugmetoghwujv�mfkjorgokoigmko}m|wgmexmruewgmferehm�gujilgw�mkleo~mtjrumkosmerughmwrkr|rehjlsmhg�|jhg}mk|refeqjlgm
ie�ghk~g�

_̂̀aba�_�ugm�hiujrgirmfksmkiujg�gmrugmhg�|jhg}mljfjrwmko}mie�ghk~gmxehmdeffghijklmngoghklmpjkqjljrsmko}m�|refeqjlgm
pjkqjljrsmruhe|~umkmiefqjokrjeomexmvhjfkhsmko}mg�igwwmehm|fqhgllkmljkqjljrsmjow|hkoig�mvhe�j}g}mw|iumvhjfkhsmko}m
g�igwwmehm|fqhgllkmljkqjljrsmjow|hkoigmveljijgwmhgw|lrmjomrugmwkfgmehm~hgkrghmie�ghk~gmkwmrugmie�ghk~gwmhg�|jhg}m|o}ghm
�girjeowm�����mko}m������mko}mjomoemg�gormwukllmkosmg�igwwmehm|fqhgllkmljkqjljrsmjow|hkoigmvhe�j}gmokhhetghmie�ghk~gm
rukomrugmvhjfkhsmveljis�m�ugmg�igwwmveljismwukllmoermhg�|jhgmrugmg�uk|wrjeomexmrugm|o}ghlsjo~mljfjrwmeolsmruhe|~umrugm
kir|klmvksfgormqsmrugm|o}ghlsjo~mjow|hghw�

_̂̀aba�_�eh�ghw�mdefvgowkrjeomkrmwrkr|rehsmljfjrw�

_̂̀abab_�fvlesghw�mpjkqjljrsmtjrumveljismljfjrwmoermlgwwmrukommmmyzmmmm{mgkiumkiij}gor�mmmmyzmmmm{mgkiumgfvlesgg�mko}mmmmyzmmmm{m
veljismljfjr�

_̂̀aba�_�hexgwwjeoklmpjkqjljrsmie�ghjo~mog~lj~gormkirw�mghhehwmko}mefjwwjeowmjomrugmvghxehfkoigmexmvhexgwwjeoklmwgh�jigwm
tjrumveljismljfjrwmexmoermlgwwmrukommmmyzmmmm{mvghmilkjfmko}mmmmyzmmmm{mjomrugmk~~hg~krg�

_̂̀aba�_����������_���� ¡�_¢£��¤������a_�emrugmx|llgwrmg�rgormvghfjrrg}mqsmlkt�mrugm�hiujrgirmwukllmik|wgmrugmvhjfkhsmko}m
g�igwwmehm|fqhgllkmveljigwmxehmdeffghijklmngoghklmpjkqjljrsmko}m�|refeqjlgmpjkqjljrsmremjoil|}gmrugm¥toghmkwmkom
k}}jrjeoklmjow|hg}mxehmilkjfwmik|wg}mjomtuelgmehmjomvkhrmqsmrugm�hiujrgir�wmog~lj~gormkirwmehmefjwwjeow�m�ugmk}}jrjeoklm
jow|hg}mie�ghk~gmwukllmqgmvhjfkhsmko}moeo�ieorhjq|rehsmremkosmexmrugm¥togh�wmjow|hkoigmveljijgwmko}mwukllmkvvlsmrem
qerumeo~ejo~mko}miefvlgrg}mevghkrjeow�

_̂̀aba¦_�ugm�hiujrgirmwukllmvhe�j}gmighrjxjikrgwmexmjow|hkoigmremrugm¥toghmrukrmg�j}goigmiefvljkoigmtjrumrugm
hg�|jhgfgorwmjomrujwm�girjeom����

�§̈�©ª«_�___¬©¢«_¢®_�§©̄�̈«©̈°¬_±�¬�©_¬«§²�©«¬
_̂�acm�ugm�hiujrgir�wm³kwjim�gh�jigwmieowjwrmexmruewgm}gwihjqg}mjomrujwm�hrjilgḿmko}mjoil|}gm|w|klmko}mi|wrefkhsm
wrh|ir|hkl�mfgiukojikl�mko}mglgirhjiklmgo~jogghjo~mwgh�jigw�m�gh�jigwmoermwgrmxehrumjomrujwm�hrjilgḿmkhgm�|vvlgfgorklmehm
�}}jrjeoklm�gh�jigw�

_̂�acacm�ugm�hiujrgirmwukllmfkok~gmrugm�hiujrgir�wmwgh�jigw�mhgwgkhiumkvvljikqlgm}gwj~omihjrghjk�mkrrgo}m�he�girm
fggrjo~w�mieff|ojikrgmtjrumfgfqghwmexmrugm�he�girmrgkf�mko}mhgvehrmvhe~hgwwmremrugm¥togh�

_̂�acàm�ugm�hiujrgirmwukllmieeh}jokrgmjrwmwgh�jigwmtjrumruewgmwgh�jigwmvhe�j}g}mqsmrugm¥toghmko}mrugm¥togh�wm
ieow|lrkorw�m�ugm�hiujrgirmwukllmqgmgorjrlg}mremhglsmeo�mko}mwukllmoermqgmhgwveowjqlgmxeh�mrugmkii|hkis�miefvlgrgogww�mko}m
rjfgljogwwmex�mwgh�jigwmko}mjoxehfkrjeomx|hojwug}mqsmrugm¥toghmko}mrugm¥togh�wmieow|lrkorw�m�ugm�hiujrgirmwukllm
vhe�j}gmvhefvrmthjrrgomoerjigmremrugm¥toghmjxmrugm�hiujrgirmqgiefgwmktkhgmexmkosmghheh�mefjwwjeo�mehmjoieowjwrgoismjom
w|iumwgh�jigwmehmjoxehfkrjeo�

_̂�aca�m�wmweeomkwmvhkirjikqlgmkxrghmrugm}krgmexmrujwm�~hggfgor�mrugm�hiujrgirmwukllmw|qfjrmxehmrugm¥togh�wmkvvhe�klmkm
wiug}|lgmxehmrugmvghxehfkoigmexmrugm�hiujrgir�wmwgh�jigw�m�ugmwiug}|lgmjojrjkllsmwukllmjoil|}gmkorjijvkrg}m}krgwmxehmrugm
ieffgoigfgormexmieowrh|irjeomko}mxehm�|qwrkorjklmdefvlgrjeomexmrugm�eh�mkwmwgrmxehrumjomrugmµojrjklmµoxehfkrjeo�m�ugm
wiug}|lgmwukllmjoil|}gmklletkoigwmxehmvghje}wmexmrjfgmhg�|jhg}mxehmrugm¥togh�wmhg�jgt�mxehmrugmvghxehfkoigmexmrugm
¥togh�wmieow|lrkorw�mko}mxehmkvvhe�klmexmw|qfjwwjeowmqsmk|ruehjrjgwmuk�jo~m�|hjw}jirjeome�ghmrugm�he�gir�m¥oigm
kvvhe�g}mqsmrugm¥togh�mrjfgmljfjrwmgwrkqljwug}mqsmrugmwiug}|lgmwukllmoer�mg�igvrmxehmhgkweokqlgmik|wg�mqgmg�igg}g}mqsm
rugm�hiujrgirmehm¥togh�m�jrumrugm¥togh�wmkvvhe�kl�mrugm�hiujrgirmwukllmk}�|wrmrugmwiug}|lg�mjxmogigwwkhs�mkwmrugm�he�girm
vheigg}wm|orjlmrugmieffgoigfgormexmieowrh|irjeo�

214

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

�

]̂_̀àbcdefcghiejkfikclemnncopkcqfchflrpoljqnfcsphcmoctuofhvlcwjhfikjxfcphclyqlkjkykjpozcphcsphckefctuofhvlcmiifrkmoifcpsc
opo{iposph|jo}c~ph�zc|mwfcphc}jxfocujkepykckefcghiejkfikvlcuhjkkfocmrrhpxmn�

]̂_̀à�cdefcghiejkfikclemnncipokmikc}pxfho|fokmncmykephjkjflchf�yjhfwckpcmrrhpxfckefc�polkhyikjpoc�piy|foklcmowc
fokjkjflcrhpxjwjo}cykjnjk�clfhxjiflckpckefc�hp�fik�cdefcghiejkfikclemnnchflrpowckpcmrrnjimqnfcwflj}ochf�yjhf|foklc
j|rplfwcq�ckeplfcmykephjkjflcmowcfokjkjfl�

]̂_̀à�cdefcghiejkfikclemnncmlljlkckefctuofhcjocipoofikjpocujkeckefctuofhvlchflrpoljqjnjk�csphcsjnjo}cwpiy|foklc
hf�yjhfwcsphckefcmrrhpxmncpsc}pxfho|fokmncmykephjkjflcemxjo}c�yhjlwjikjpocpxfhckefc�hp�fik�

]̂_̀�̂���������̂������̂�����̂��������
]̂_̀�̀acdefcghiejkfikclemnnchfxjfuckefcrhp}hm|cmowcpkefhcjosph|mkjpocsyhojlefwcq�ckefctuofhzcmowclemnnchfxjfucnmulzc
ipwflzcmowchf}ynmkjpolcmrrnjimqnfckpckefcghiejkfikvlclfhxjifl�

]̂_̀�̀�cdefcghiejkfikclemnncrhfrmhfcmcrhfnj|jomh�cfxmnymkjpocpsckefctuofhvlcrhp}hm|zcliefwynfzcqyw}fkcsphckefc�plkcpsc
kefc~ph�zc�hp�fikcljkfzckefcrhprplfwcrhpiyhf|fokcmowcwfnjxfh�c|fkepwzcmowcpkefhc�ojkjmnc�osph|mkjpozcfmiecjockfh|lcpsc
kefcpkefhzckpcmlifhkmjockefchf�yjhf|foklcpsckefc�hp�fik�cdefcghiejkfikclemnncopkjs�ckefctuofhcpsc���cmo�cjoipoljlkfoijflc
wjlipxfhfwcjockefcjosph|mkjpozcmowc���cpkefhcjosph|mkjpocphcipolynkjo}clfhxjiflckemkc|m�cqfchfmlpomqn�coffwfwcsphckefc
�hp�fik�

]̂_̀�̀_cdefcghiejkfikclemnncrhflfokcjklcrhfnj|jomh�cfxmnymkjpockpckefctuofhcmowclemnncwjliyllcujkeckefctuofhcmnkfhomkjxfc
mrrhpmieflckpcwflj}ocmowcipolkhyikjpocpsckefc�hp�fik�cdefcghiejkfikclemnnchfmiecmocyowfhlkmowjo}cujkeckefctuofhc
hf}mhwjo}ckefchf�yjhf|foklcpsckefc�hp�fik�

]̂_̀�̀bc�mlfwcpockefc�hp�fikchf�yjhf|foklcm}hffwcyrpocujkeckefctuofhzckefcghiejkfikclemnncrhfrmhfcmowcrhflfokzcsphckefc
tuofhvlcmrrhpxmnzcmcrhfnj|jomh�cwflj}ocjnnylkhmkjo}ckefclimnfcmowchfnmkjpolejrcpsckefc�hp�fikcip|rpofokl�

]̂_̀�̀�c�mlfwcpockefctuofhvlcmrrhpxmncpsckefcrhfnj|jomh�cwflj}ozckefcghiejkfikclemnncrhfrmhfc�ief|mkjic�flj}oc
�piy|foklcsphckefctuofhvlcmrrhpxmn�cdefc�ief|mkjic�flj}oc�piy|foklclemnncipoljlkcpscwhmujo}lcmowcpkefhc
wpiy|foklcjoinywjo}cmcljkfcrnmozcjscmrrhprhjmkfzcmowcrhfnj|jomh�cqyjnwjo}crnmolzclfikjpolcmowcfnfxmkjpol cmowc|m�c
joinywfclp|fcip|qjomkjpocpsclkyw�c|pwfnlzcrfhlrfikjxfcl�fkieflzcphcwj}jkmnchfrhflfokmkjpol�c�hfnj|jomh�clfnfikjpolcpsc
|m�phcqyjnwjo}cl�lkf|lcmowcipolkhyikjpoc|mkfhjmnlclemnncqfcopkfwcpockefcwhmujo}lcphcwflihjqfwcjocuhjkjo}�

]̂_̀�̀�̀acdefcghiejkfikclemnncipoljwfhclylkmjomqnfcwflj}ocmnkfhomkjxflzclyiecmlc|mkfhjmnciepjiflcmowcqyjnwjo}cphjfokmkjpozc
kp}fkefhcujkecpkefhcipoljwfhmkjpolcqmlfwcpocrhp}hm|cmowcmflkefkjilzcjocwfxfnprjo}cmcwflj}ockemkcjlcipoljlkfokcujkeckefc
tuofhvlcrhp}hm|zcliefwynfcmowcqyw}fkcsphckefc�plkcpsckefc~ph��cdefctuofhc|m�cpqkmjoc|phfcmwxmoifwclylkmjomqnfc
wflj}oclfhxjiflcmlcmc�yrrnf|fokmnc�fhxjifcyowfhc�fikjpoc¡�����

]̂_̀�̀�̀�cdefcghiejkfikclemnncipoljwfhckefcxmnyfcpscmnkfhomkjxfc|mkfhjmnlzcqyjnwjo}cl�lkf|lcmowcf�yjr|fokzckp}fkefhcujkec
pkefhcipoljwfhmkjpolcqmlfwcpocrhp}hm|cmowcmflkefkjilzcjocwfxfnprjo}cmcwflj}ocsphckefc�hp�fikckemkcjlcipoljlkfokcujkeckefc
tuofhvlcrhp}hm|zcliefwynfzcmowcqyw}fkcsphckefc�plkcpsckefc~ph��

]̂_̀�̀�cdefcghiejkfikclemnnclyq|jkckpckefctuofhcmocflkj|mkfcpsckefc�plkcpsckefc~ph�crhfrmhfwcjocmiiphwmoifcujkec
�fikjpoc¢�£�

]̂_̀�̀¤cdefcghiejkfikclemnnclyq|jkckefc�ief|mkjic�flj}oc�piy|foklckpckefctuofhzcmowchf�yflkckefctuofhvlcmrrhpxmn�

]̂_̀_̂������̂����¥¦§����̂�����̂��������
]̂_̀_̀ac�mlfwcpockefctuofhvlcmrrhpxmncpsckefc�ief|mkjic�flj}oc�piy|foklzcmowcpockefctuofhvlcmykephj̈mkjpocpscmo�c
mw�ylk|foklcjockefc�hp�fikchf�yjhf|foklcmowckefcqyw}fkcsphckefc�plkcpsckefc~ph�zckefcghiejkfikclemnncrhfrmhfc�flj}oc
�fxfnpr|fokc�piy|foklcsphckefctuofhvlcmrrhpxmn�cdefc�flj}oc�fxfnpr|fokc�piy|foklclemnncjnnylkhmkfcmowcwflihjqfc
kefcwfxfnpr|fokcpsckefcmrrhpxfwc�ief|mkjic�flj}oc�piy|foklcmowclemnncipoljlkcpscwhmujo}lcmowcpkefhcwpiy|foklc
joinywjo}crnmolzclfikjpolzcfnfxmkjpolzck�rjimncipolkhyikjpocwfkmjnlzcmowcwjm}hm||mkjicnm�pyklcpscqyjnwjo}cl�lkf|lckpcsj©c
mowcwflihjqfckefclj̈fcmowciemhmikfhcpsckefc�hp�fikcmlckpcmhiejkfikyhmnzclkhyikyhmnzc|fiemojimncmowcfnfikhjimncl�lkf|lzcmowc
pkefhcmrrhprhjmkfcfnf|fokl�cdefc�flj}oc�fxfnpr|fokc�piy|foklclemnncmnlpcjoinywfcpyknjofclrfijsjimkjpolckemkcjwfokjs�c
|m�phc|mkfhjmnlcmowcl�lkf|lcmowcflkmqnjlezcjoc}fofhmnzckefjhc�ymnjk�cnfxfnl�

215

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

]

_̂̀àabcdefcghiejkfikclemnncopqmkfckefcflkjrmkfcstckefcuslkcstckefcvshwcphfpmhfqcjxcmiishqmxifcyjkeczfikjsxc{|}|

_̂̀àà_defcghiejkfikclemnnclo~rjkckefc�flj�xc�f�fnsprfxkc�siorfxklcksckefc�yxfh�cmq�jlfckefc�yxfhcstcmx�c
mq�olkrfxklcksckefcflkjrmkfcstckefcuslkcstckefcvshw�cmxqchf�oflkckefc�yxfh�lcmpphs�mn|

_̂̀a�_������������_���������_�����_��������
_̂̀a�a�c�mlfqcsxckefc�yxfh�lcmpphs�mncstckefc�flj�xc�f�fnsprfxkc�siorfxkl�cmxqcsxckefc�yxfh�lcmokeshj�mkjsxcstc
mx�cmq�olkrfxklcjxckefc�hs�fikchf�ojhfrfxklcmxqckefc~oq�fkctshckefcuslkcstckefcvshw�ckefcghiejkfikclemnncphfpmhfc
usxlkhoikjsxc�siorfxklctshckefc�yxfh�lcmpphs�mn|cdefcusxlkhoikjsxc�siorfxklclemnncjnnolkhmkfcmxqcqflihj~fckefc
tohkefhcqf�fnsprfxkcstckefcmpphs�fqc�flj�xc�f�fnsprfxkc�siorfxklcmxqclemnncisxljlkcstc�hmyjx�lcmxqc
zpfijtjimkjsxlclfkkjx�ctshkecjxcqfkmjnckefc�omnjk�cnf�fnlcmxqcpfhtshrmxifcihjkfhjmcstcrmkfhjmnlcmxqcl�lkfrlcmxqcskefhc
hf�ojhfrfxklctshckefcisxlkhoikjsxcstckefcvshw|cdefc�yxfhcmxqcghiejkfikcmiwxsynfq�fckemk�cjxcshqfhckscpfhtshrckefc
vshw�ckefcusxkhmikshcyjnncphs�jqfcmqqjkjsxmncjxtshrmkjsx�cjxinoqjx�czespc�hmyjx�l�c�hsqoikc�mkm�czmrpnflcmxqcskefhc
ljrjnmhclo~rjkkmnl�cyejieckefcghiejkfikclemnnchf�jfycjxcmiishqmxifcyjkeczfikjsxc}|{|�|

_̂̀a�abcdefcghiejkfikclemnncjxishpshmkfckefcqflj�xchf�ojhfrfxklcstc�s�fhxrfxkmncmokeshjkjflcem�jx�c�ohjlqjikjsxcs�fhc
kefc�hs�fikcjxksckefcusxlkhoikjsxc�siorfxkl|

_̂̀a�àc�ohjx�ckefcqf�fnsprfxkcstckefcusxlkhoikjsxc�siorfxkl�ckefcghiejkfikclemnncmlljlkckefc�yxfhcjxckefc
qf�fnsprfxkcmxqcphfpmhmkjsxcstc� ¡cphsiohfrfxkcjxtshrmkjsxckemkcqflihj~flckefckjrf�cpnmif�cmxqcisxqjkjsxlcstc~jqqjx��c
jxinoqjx�c~jqqjx�cshcphspslmnctshrl¢c�£¡ckefctshrcstcm�hffrfxkc~fkyffxckefc�yxfhcmxqcusxkhmiksh¢cmxqc�}¡ckefc
usxqjkjsxlcstckefcusxkhmikctshcusxlkhoikjsxc�¤fxfhmn�czoppnfrfxkmh�cmxqcskefhcusxqjkjsxl¡|cdefcghiejkfikclemnncmnlsc
isrpjnfcmcphs�fikcrmxomnckemkcjxinoqflckefcusxqjkjsxlcstckefcusxkhmikctshcusxlkhoikjsxcmxqczpfijtjimkjsxl�cmxqcrm�c
jxinoqfc~jqqjx�chf�ojhfrfxklcmxqclmrpnfctshrl|

_̂̀a�a�cdefcghiejkfikclemnncopqmkfckefcflkjrmkfctshckefcuslkcstckefcvshwcphfpmhfqcjxcmiishqmxifcyjkeczfikjsxc{|}|

_̂̀a�a¥cdefcghiejkfikclemnnclo~rjkckefcusxlkhoikjsxc�siorfxklcksckefc�yxfh�cmq�jlfckefc�yxfhcstcmx�cmq�olkrfxklcksc
kefcflkjrmkfcstckefcuslkcstckefcvshw�ckmwfcmx�cmikjsxchf�ojhfqcoxqfhczfikjsxc{|¦�cmxqchf�oflkckefc�yxfh�lcmpphs�mn|

_̂̀a¥_�����������_�����_��������
_̂̀a¥a�_§�����̈
defcghiejkfikclemnncmlljlkckefc�yxfhcjxcflkm~njlejx�cmcnjlkcstcphslpfikj�fcisxkhmikshl|c©snnsyjx�ckefc�yxfh�lcmpphs�mnc
stckefcusxlkhoikjsxc�siorfxkl�ckefcghiejkfikclemnncmlljlkckefc�yxfhcjxc� ¡cs~kmjxjx�cfjkefhcisrpfkjkj�fc~jqlcshc
xf�skjmkfqcphspslmnl¢c�£¡cisxtjhrjx�chflpsxlj�fxfllcstc~jqlcshcphspslmnl¢c�}¡cqfkfhrjxjx�ckefcloiiflltonc~jqcshc
phspslmn�cjtcmx�¢cmxq�c��¡cmymhqjx�cmxqcphfpmhjx�cisxkhmiklctshcisxlkhoikjsx|

_̂̀a¥ab_���ª�������_«�¬¬��
_̂̀a¥aba�c�jqqjx�c�siorfxklclemnncisxljlkcstc~jqqjx�chf�ojhfrfxklcmxqcphspslfqcusxkhmikc�siorfxkl|

_̂̀a¥ababcdefcghiejkfikclemnncmlljlkckefc�yxfhcjxc~jqqjx�ckefc�hs�fikc~�®
a� tmijnjkmkjx�ckefcqjlkhj~okjsxcstc�jqqjx�c�siorfxklckscphslpfikj�fc~jqqfhl¢
ab sh�mxj�jx�cmxqcisxqoikjx�cmcphf̄~jqcisxtfhfxifctshcphslpfikj�fc~jqqfhl¢
à phfpmhjx�chflpsxlflcksc�oflkjsxlcthsrcphslpfikj�fc~jqqfhlcmxqcphs�jqjx�cinmhjtjimkjsxlcmxqc

jxkfhphfkmkjsxlcstckefc�jqqjx�c�siorfxklcksckefcphslpfikj�fc~jqqfhlcjxckefctshrcstcmqqfxqm¢cmxq�
a� sh�mxj�jx�cmxqcisxqoikjx�ckefcspfxjx�cstckefc~jql�cmxqclo~lf�ofxkn�cqsiorfxkjx�cmxqcqjlkhj~okjx�ckefc

~jqqjx�chflonkl�cmlcqjhfikfqc~�ckefc�yxfh|

_̂̀a¥abàc°tckefc�jqqjx�c�siorfxklcpfhrjkclo~lkjkokjsxl�copsxckefc�yxfh�lcyhjkkfxcmokeshj�mkjsx�ckefcghiejkfikclemnn�cmlc
mxcgqqjkjsxmnczfh�jif�cisxljqfhchf�oflklctshclo~lkjkokjsxlcmxqcphfpmhfcmxqcqjlkhj~okfcmqqfxqmcjqfxkjt�jx�cmpphs�fqc
lo~lkjkokjsxlckscmnncphslpfikj�fc~jqqfhl|

_̂̀a¥à_±�������¬_���ª���̈�
_̂̀a¥àa�ccc�hspslmnc�siorfxklclemnncisxljlkcstcphspslmnchf�ojhfrfxklcmxqcphspslfqcusxkhmikc�siorfxkl|

216

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

]

_̂__̀abc_defghijklemmnmo
paqrrstuv_pwxustytzcsr{_|rzsr}~r�_��_b�p��j�j�us��{�yst�u_qrrstuv_�_qrrs_cu{_��rrs�_xuc���t�_��_����rus_|scsr�_
����_��t�stuv��tr�{__�r�t�tycst�u
ca �us��{�yst�u�
~a����rys_|y�zr_x���}zst�u�
ya �r�t��_��t�stuv_��u{tst�u�
{a�c��_��t�{tuv_s�_�����_�u{r��scu{_s�r_��t�{tuv_urr{�_

baqrrstuv_b_wxustytzcsr{_|rzsr}~r�_b��_b�p��_�_�ty��������yr��_�r tr¡�����rys_qcsr�tc��
ca ¢�zr�_cu{_�rc��_�r tr¡
~a|y�r{��r
ya ����rys_��zryscst�u�
{a���v�c}��r�t�tycst�u
ra £zru_¤t�y���t�u
�a �{rust��_¥r�s_|srz�

à qrrstuv_̀_wxustytzcsr{_£ys�~r�_p¦�_b�p��_�_��rcsr_c_�t�t�u_���_§���_��s��r
ca ����rys_��c�tuv
~a���v�c}}tuv_�tuc�ẗr{
ya �c�t{csr_��cu
{a�u{r��scu{_¥r¡_���¡�_cu{_x{�cyruytr�
ra ¤t�y���_|�����u{tuv_|zcyr_cu{_|�zz��s_¥rr{�

�aqrrstuv_�_wxustytzcsr{_¥� r}~r�_p©�_b�p��_�_�r�stuv_s�r_£�sy�}r�
ca ¤rsct�r{_{t�y���t�u_�u_���
~a��u{�ys_|t}��cst�u�_�_�t�s�c�
ya |�c�r_s�r_¤r�tvu
{a�rz��s_��s_s�_ªrc{r���tz
ra |�c�r_¡ts�_��}}�uts�
�a |��tyts_�rr{~cy�

«¬®̄®®°¬��r_x�y�tsrys_��c��_c��t�s_s�r_£¡ur�_tu_�~sctutuv_z��z��c��_~�±
®² �cyt�tscstuv_s�r_{t�s�t~�st�u_��_���z��c�_¤�y�}rus�_���_{t�s�t~�st�u_s�_z���zryst r_y�us�cys���_cu{_

�r³�r�stuv_s�rt�_�rs��u_�z�u_y�}z�rst�u_��_s�r_urv�stcst�u_z��yr��́
®° ��vcuẗtuv_cu{_zc�stytzcstuv_tu_�r�ryst�u_tusr� tr¡�_¡ts�_z���zryst r_y�us�cys���́
® z�rzc�tuv_�r�z�u�r�_s�_³�r�st�u�_���}_z���zryst r_y�us�cys���_cu{_z�� t{tuv_y�c�t�tycst�u�_cu{_

tusr�z�rscst�u�_��_s�r_���z��c�_¤�y�}rus�_s�_s�r_z���zryst r_y�us�cys���_tu_s�r_���}_��_c{{ru{ć_cu{�
®µ zc�stytzcstuv_tu_urv�stcst�u�_¡ts�_z���zryst r_y�us�cys����_cu{_��~�r³�rus��_z�rzc�tuv_c_��}}c��_

�rz��s_��_s�r_urv�stcst�u_�r���s��_c�_{t�rysr{_~�_s�r_£¡ur�a

«¬®̄®®¬��_s�r_���z��c�_¤�y�}rus�_zr�}ts_��~�sts�st�u��_�z�u_s�r_£¡ur�¶�_¡�tssru_c�s���ẗcst�u�_s�r_x�y�tsrys_��c���_
c�_cu_x{{tst�uc�_|r� tyr�_y�u�t{r�_�r³�r�s�_���_��~�sts�st�u�_cu{_z�rzc�r_cu{_{t�s�t~�sr_c{{ru{c_t{rust��tuv_czz�� r{_
��~�sts�st�u�_s�_c��_z���zryst r_y�us�cys���a

«¬®·¬̧¹º»¼½¾¿¼À¹º¬ÁÂÃ»Ä¬ÅÄ½ÆÀ¿Ä»
«¬®·®²¬ÇÄºÄ½ÃÈ
«¬®·®²®²_��r_x�y�tsrys_��c��_z�� t{r_c{}tut�s�cst�u_��_s�r_��us�cys_~rs¡rru_s�r_£¡ur�_cu{_s�r_��us�cys��_c�_�rs_���s�_
~r��¡_cu{_tu_x�x_¤�y�}rus_xb�pÉ�b�pÊ�_�rur�c�_��u{tst�u�_��_s�r_��us�cys_���_��u�s��yst�ua_��_s�r_£¡ur�_cu{_
��us�cys��_}�{t��_x�x_¤�y�}rus_xb�p�b�pÊ�_s���r_}�{t�tycst�u�_��c��_u�s_c��rys_s�r_x�y�tsrys¶�_�r� tyr�_�u{r�_s�t�_
xv�rr}rus_�u�r��_s�r_£¡ur�_cu{_s�r_x�y�tsrys_c}ru{_s�t�_xv�rr}rusa

«¬®·®²®°_��r_x�y�tsrys_��c��_c{ t�r_cu{_y�u���s_¡ts�_s�r_£¡ur�_{��tuv_s�r_��u�s��yst�u_��c�r_|r� tyr�a_��r_x�y�tsrys_
��c��_�c r_c�s���ts�_s�_cys_�u_~r�c��_��_s�r_£¡ur�_�u��_s�_s�r_r�srus_z�� t{r{_tu_s�t�_xv�rr}rusa_��r_x�y�tsrys_��c��_
u�s_�c r_y�us���_� r��_y�c�vr_���_��_�r�z�u�t~t�ts�_���_s�r_y�u�s��yst�u_}rcu��_}rs��{��_sry�ut³�r��_�r³�ruyr�_��_
z��yr{��r��_��_���_�c�rs�_z�ryc�st�u�_cu{_z��v�c}�_tu_y�uuryst�u_¡ts�_s�r_�����_u��_��c��_s�r_x�y�tsrys_~r_�r�z�u�t~�r_
���_s�r_��us�cys��¶�_�ct���r_s�_zr����}_s�r_����_tu_cyy��{cuyr_¡ts�_s�r_�r³�t�r}rus�_��_s�r_��us�cys_¤�y�}rus�a_��r_
x�y�tsrys_��c��_~r_�r�z�u�t~�r_���_s�r_x�y�tsrys¶�_urv�tvrus_cys�_��_�}t��t�u��_~�s_��c��_u�s_�c r_y�us���_� r�_��_y�c�vr_

217

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

��

]̂_̀abc̀deaff̀b]g̀hìjidk]bdlhfì̂]j_̀amgd̀]j̀]nlddl]bd̀]̂̀geìo]bgjamg]j̀]j̀]̂̀abp̀]geij̀kijd]bd̀]j̀ibglglid̀kiĵ]jnlbq̀
k]jgl]bd̀]̂̀geìr]jst

uvwxyxzxwvv{|h}img̀g]̀{imgl]b̀~t�̀abc̀i�mikg̀ad̀kj]�lcic̀lb̀{imgl]b̀�t�t�t�_̀geì�jmelgimg�d̀jidk]bdlhlflgp̀g]̀kj]�lcì
o]bdgj|mgl]b̀�eadì{ij�lmid̀m]nnibmid̀�lgègeìa�ajc̀]̂̀geìo]bgjamg̀̂]j̀o]bdgj|mgl]b̀abc̀gijnlbagid̀]b̀geìcagì
geì�jmelgimg̀ldd|id̀geì̂lbaf̀oijgl̂lmagì̂]j̀�apnibgt

uvwxyx�v�����������v��v���v����
uvwxyx�xzv�eì�jmelgimg̀deaff̀�ldlg̀geìdlgìag̀lbgij�afd̀akkj]kjlagìg]̀geìdgaqì]̂̀m]bdgj|mgl]b_̀]j̀ad̀]geij�ldìji�|ljic̀
lb̀{imgl]b̀~t�t�_̀g]̀him]nìqibijaffp̀̂anlflaj̀�lgègeìkj]qjidd̀abc̀�|aflgp̀]̂̀geìk]jgl]b̀]̂̀geìr]js̀m]nkfigic_̀abc̀
g]̀cigijnlbi_̀lb̀qibijaf_̀l̂̀geìr]js̀]hdij�ic̀ld̀hilbq̀kiĵ]jnic̀lb̀ànabbij̀lbclmaglbq̀geag̀geìr]js_̀�eib̀̂|ffp̀
m]nkfigic_̀�lff̀hìlb̀amm]jcabmì�lgègeìo]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgdt̀�]�i�ij_̀geì�jmelgimg̀deaff̀b]g̀hìji�|ljic̀g]̀nasì
i�ea|dgl�ì]j̀m]bglb|]|d̀]b�dlgìlbdkimgl]bd̀g]̀meims̀geì�|aflgp̀]j̀�|abglgp̀]̂̀geìr]jst̀�b̀geìhadld̀]̂̀geìdlgì�ldlgd_̀
geì�jmelgimg̀deaff̀siik̀geì��bij̀jiad]bahfp̀lb̂]jnic̀ah]|g̀geìkj]qjidd̀abc̀�|aflgp̀]̂̀geìk]jgl]b̀]̂̀geìr]js̀
m]nkfigic_̀abc̀kj]nkgfp̀jik]jg̀g]̀geì��bij̀ ¡¢̀sb]�b̀ci�lagl]bd̀̂j]ǹgeìo]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgd_̀ �¢̀sb]�b̀
ci�lagl]bd̀̂j]ǹgeìn]dg̀jimibg̀m]bdgj|mgl]b̀dmeic|fìd|hnlggic̀hp̀geìo]bgjamg]j_̀abc̀ �¢̀cîimgd̀abc̀cîlmlibmlid̀
]hdij�ic̀lb̀geìr]jst

uvwxyx�x�̀�eì�jmelgimg̀ead̀geìa|ge]jlgp̀g]̀ji}img̀r]js̀geag̀c]id̀b]g̀m]b̂]jǹg]̀geìo]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgdt̀reibi�ij̀
geì�jmelgimg̀m]bdlcijd̀lg̀bimiddajp̀]j̀ac�ldahfi_̀geì�jmelgimg̀deaff̀ea�ìgeìa|ge]jlgp̀g]̀ji�|ljìlbdkimgl]b̀]j̀gidglbq̀
]̂̀geìr]js̀lb̀amm]jcabmì�lgègeìkj]�ldl]bd̀]̂̀geìo]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgd_̀�eigeij̀]j̀b]g̀geìr]js̀ld̀̂ahjlmagic_̀
lbdgaffic̀]j̀m]nkfigict̀�]�i�ij_̀bilgeij̀geld̀a|ge]jlgp̀]̂̀geì�jmelgimg̀b]j̀àcimldl]b̀nacìlb̀q]]c̀̂algèilgeij̀g]̀
i�ijmldì]j̀b]g̀g]̀i�ijmldìd|mèa|ge]jlgp̀deaff̀ql�ìjldìg]̀àc|gp̀]j̀jidk]bdlhlflgp̀]̂̀geì�jmelgimg̀g]̀geìo]bgjamg]j_̀
{|hm]bgjamg]jd_̀d|kkflijd_̀geilj̀aqibgd̀]j̀inkf]piid_̀]j̀]geij̀kijd]bd̀]j̀ibglglid̀kiĵ]jnlbq̀k]jgl]bd̀]̂̀geìr]jst

uvwxyx�xẁ�eì�jmelgimg̀deaff̀lbgijkjig̀abc̀cimlcìnaggijd̀m]bmijblbq̀kiĵ]jnabmì|bcij_̀abc̀ji�|ljinibgd̀]̂_̀geì
o]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgd̀]b̀�jlggib̀ji�|idg̀]̂̀ilgeij̀geì��bij̀]j̀o]bgjamg]jt̀�eì�jmelgimg�d̀jidk]bdìg]̀d|mèji�|idgd̀
deaff̀hìnacìlb̀�jlglbq̀�lgelb̀abp̀glnìflnlgd̀aqjiic̀|k]b̀]j̀]geij�ldì�lgèjiad]bahfìkj]nkgbiddt

uvwxyx�x£v̀¤bgijkjigagl]bd̀abc̀cimldl]bd̀]̂̀geì�jmelgimg̀deaff̀hìm]bdldgibg̀�lgègeìlbgibg̀]̂_̀abc̀jiad]bahfp̀lb̂ijahfì
ĵ]n_̀geìo]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgd̀abc̀deaff̀hìlb̀�jlglbq̀]j̀lb̀geì̂]jǹ]̂̀cja�lbqdt̀reib̀naslbq̀d|mèlbgijkjigagl]bd̀
abc̀cimldl]bd_̀geì�jmelgimg̀deaff̀ibcia�]j̀g]̀dim|jì̂algê|f̀kiĵ]jnabmìhp̀h]gè��bij̀abc̀o]bgjamg]j_̀deaff̀b]g̀
de]�̀kajglaflgp̀g]̀ilgeij_̀abc̀deaff̀b]g̀hìflahfì̂]j̀jid|fgd̀]̂̀lbgijkjigagl]bd̀]j̀cimldl]bd̀jibcijic̀lb̀q]]c̀̂alget̀�eì
�jmelgimg�d̀cimldl]bd̀]b̀naggijd̀jifaglbq̀g]̀aidgeiglm̀î̂img̀deaff̀hì̂lbaf̀l̂̀m]bdldgibg̀�lgègeìlbgibg̀i�kjiddic̀lb̀geì
o]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgdt

uvwxyx�x¥̀̀¦bfidd̀geì��bij̀abc̀o]bgjamg]j̀cidlqbagìab]geij̀kijd]b̀g]̀dij�ìad̀ab̀¤blglaf̀�imldl]b̀§asij_̀ad̀geag̀gijǹ
ld̀cîlbic̀lb̀�¤�̀�]m|nibg̀��̈¡©�̈¡ª_̀geì�jmelgimg̀deaff̀jibcij̀lblglaf̀cimldl]bd̀]b̀ofalnd̀hig�iib̀geì��bij̀abc̀
o]bgjamg]j̀ad̀kj]�lcic̀lb̀geìo]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgdt

uvwxyxwv«������¬����v���v�®̄���v��v«�����¬���
uvwxyxwxzv�eì�jmelgimg̀deaff̀ji�li�̀abc̀mijgl̂p̀geìan]|bgd̀c|ìgeìo]bgjamg]j̀abc̀deaff̀ldd|ìmijgl̂lmagid̀lb̀d|mè
an]|bgdt̀�eì�jmelgimg�d̀mijgl̂lmagl]b̀̂]j̀kapnibg̀deaff̀m]bdglg|gìàjikjidibgagl]b̀g]̀geì��bij_̀hadic̀]b̀geì
�jmelgimg�d̀i�af|agl]b̀]̂̀geìr]js̀ad̀kj]�lcic̀lb̀{imgl]b̀�t�t�̀abc̀]b̀geìcagàm]nkjldlbq̀geìo]bgjamg]j�d̀
�kkflmagl]b̀̂]j̀�apnibg_̀geag_̀g]̀geìhidg̀]̂̀geì�jmelgimg�d̀sb]�ficqi_̀lb̂]jnagl]b̀abc̀hiflî_̀geìr]js̀ead̀
kj]qjiddic̀g]̀geìk]lbg̀lbclmagic_̀geì�|aflgp̀]̂̀geìr]js̀ld̀lb̀amm]jcabmì�lgègeìo]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgd_̀abc̀geag̀geì
o]bgjamg]j̀ld̀ibglgfic̀g]̀kapnibg̀lb̀geìan]|bg̀mijgl̂lict̀�eì̂]jiq]lbq̀jikjidibgagl]bd̀ajìd|h}img̀g]̀ ¡¢̀ab̀i�af|agl]b̀
]̂̀geìr]js̀̂]j̀m]b̂]jnabmì�lgègeìo]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgd̀|k]b̀{|hdgabglaf̀o]nkfigl]b_̀ �¢̀jid|fgd̀]̂̀d|hdi�|ibg̀
gidgd̀abc̀lbdkimgl]bd_̀ �¢̀m]jjimgl]b̀]̂̀nlb]j̀ci�lagl]bd̀̂j]ǹgeìo]bgjamg̀�]m|nibgd̀kjl]j̀g]̀m]nkfigl]b_̀abc̀ ~¢̀
dkiml̂lm̀�|afl̂lmagl]bd̀i�kjiddic̀hp̀geì�jmelgimgt

uvwxyxwx�̀�eìldd|abmì]̂̀àoijgl̂lmagì̂]j̀�apnibg̀deaff̀b]g̀hìàjikjidibgagl]b̀geag̀geì�jmelgimg̀ead̀ ¡¢̀nacì
i�ea|dgl�ì]j̀m]bglb|]|d̀]b�dlgìlbdkimgl]bd̀g]̀meims̀geì�|aflgp̀]j̀�|abglgp̀]̂̀geìr]js_̀ �¢̀ji�li�ic̀m]bdgj|mgl]b̀
niabd_̀nige]cd_̀gimebl�|id_̀di�|ibmid̀]j̀kj]mic|jid_̀ �¢̀ji�li�ic̀m]klid̀]̂̀ji�|ldlgl]bd̀jimil�ic̀̂j]ǹ
{|hm]bgjamg]jd̀abc̀d|kkflijd̀abc̀]geij̀cagàji�|idgic̀hp̀geì��bij̀g]̀d|hdgabglagìgeìo]bgjamg]j�d̀jlqeg̀g]̀kapnibg_̀

218

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

��

]̂_̀ab_cdef̂gchifj_k]l_]̂_m]̂_lkcg_nôn]df_gkf_p]iĝceg]̂_kcd_odfj_q]ifr_n̂fsh]odtr_nchj_]i_cee]oig_]m_gkf_p]iĝceg_
uoqv

wxyz{zyzy_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_qchigchi_c_̂fe]̂j_]m_gkf_}nnthecgh]id_cij_pf̂ghmhecgfd_m]̂_~crqfigv

wxyz{z�x����������
wxyz{z�z�x|kf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_̂fshfl_gkf_p]iĝceg]̂�d_do�qhggct_dekfjotf_cij_dkctt_i]g_oîfcd]ic�tr_jftcr_]̂_lhgkk]tj_
cnn̂]sct_]m_gkf_dekfjotfv_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg�d_cegh]i_hi_̂fshflhi�_do�qhggctd_dkctt_�f_gc�fi_hi_cee]̂jcief_lhgk_gkf_
cnn̂]sfj_do�qhggct_dekfjotf_]̂�_hi_gkf_c�dfief_]m_ci_cnn̂]sfj_do�qhggct_dekfjotf�_lhgk_̂fcd]ic�tf_n̂]qngifdd_lkhtf_
ctt]lhi�_dommhehfig_ghqf�_hi_gkf_}̂ekhgfeg�d_n̂]mfddh]ict_�oj�qfig�_g]_nf̂qhg_cjf�ocgf_̂fshflv

wxyz{z�z�_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_̂fshfl_cij_cnn̂]sf�_]̂_gc�f_]gkf̂_cnn̂]n̂hcgf_cegh]i_on]i�_gkf_p]iĝceg]̂�d_do�qhggctd_
doek_cd_uk]n_�̂clhi�d�_~̂]joeg_�cgc_cij_ucqntfd�_�og_]itr_m]̂_gkf_thqhgfj_nôn]df_]m_ekfe�hi�_m]̂_e]im]̂qcief_lhgk_
him]̂qcgh]i_�hsfi_cij_gkf_jfdh�i_e]iefng_f�n̂fddfj_hi_gkf_p]iĝceg_�]eoqfigdv_�fshfl_]m_doek_do�qhggctd_hd_i]g_m]̂_
gkf_nôn]df_]m_jfgf̂qhihi�_gkf_ceeôcer_cij_e]qntfgfifdd_]m_]gkf̂_him]̂qcgh]i_doek_cd_jhqfidh]id�_�ocighghfd�_cij_
hidgcttcgh]i_]̂_nf̂m]̂qcief_]m_f�ohnqfig_]̂_drdgfqd�_lkhek_ĉf_gkf_p]iĝceg]̂�d_̂fdn]idh�hthgrv_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg�d_̂fshfl_
dkctt_i]g_e]idghgogf_cnn̂]sct_]m_dcmfgr_n̂fecogh]id_]̂_e]idĝoegh]i_qfcid�_qfgk]jd�_gfekih�ofd�_df�ofiefd_]̂_
n̂]efjôfdv_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg�d_cnn̂]sct_]m_c_dnfehmhe_hgfq_dkctt_i]g_hijhecgf_cnn̂]sct_]m_ci_cddfq�tr_]m_lkhek_gkf_hgfq_hd_
c_e]qn]ifigv

wxyz{z�zy_�m_gkf_p]iĝceg_�]eoqfigd_dnfehmhecttr_̂f�oĥf_gkf_p]iĝceg]̂_g]_n̂]shjf_n̂]mfddh]ict_jfdh�i_df̂shefd_]̂_
ef̂ghmhecgh]id_�r_c_jfdh�i_n̂]mfddh]ict_̂ftcgfj_g]_drdgfqd�_qcgf̂hctd�_]̂_f�ohnqfig�_gkf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_dnfehmr_gkf_
cnn̂]n̂hcgf_nf̂m]̂qcief_cij_jfdh�i_êhgf̂hc_gkcg_doek_df̂shefd_qodg_dcghdmrv_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_̂fshfl_cij_gc�f_
cnn̂]n̂hcgf_cegh]i_]i_uk]n_�̂clhi�d_cij_]gkf̂_do�qhggctd_̂ftcgfj_g]_gkf_�]̂�_jfdh�ifj_]̂_ef̂ghmhfj_�r_gkf_
p]iĝceg]̂�d_jfdh�i_n̂]mfddh]ict�_n̂]shjfj_gkf_do�qhggctd_�fĉ_doek_n̂]mfddh]ict�d_dfct_cij_dh�icgôf_lkfi_do�qhggfj_
g]_gkf_}̂ekhgfegv_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg�d_̂fshfl_dkctt_�f_m]̂_gkf_thqhgfj_nôn]df_]m_ekfe�hi�_m]̂_e]im]̂qcief_lhgk_him]̂qcgh]i_
�hsfi_cij_gkf_jfdh�i_e]iefng_f�n̂fddfj_hi_gkf_p]iĝceg_�]eoqfigdv_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_�f_fighgtfj_g]_̂ftr_on]i�_cij_
dkctt_i]g_�f_̂fdn]idh�tf_m]̂�_gkf_cjf�ocer_cij_ceeôcer_]m_gkf_df̂shefd�_ef̂ghmhecgh]id�_cij_cnn̂]sctd_nf̂m]̂qfj_]̂_
n̂]shjfj_�r_doek_jfdh�i_n̂]mfddh]ictdv

wxyz{z�z�_uo��feg_g]_ufegh]i_av��_gkf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_̂fshfl_cij_̂fdn]ij_g]_̂f�ofdgd_m]̂_him]̂qcgh]i_c�]og_gkf_p]iĝceg_
�]eoqfigdv_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_dfg_m]̂gk�_hi_gkf_p]iĝceg_�]eoqfigd�_gkf_̂f�oĥfqfigd_m]̂_̂f�ofdgd_m]̂_him]̂qcgh]iv_
�f�ofdgd_m]̂_him]̂qcgh]i_dkctt_hietojf�_cg_c_qhihqoq�_c_jfgchtfj_l̂hggfi_dgcgfqfig_gkcg_hijhecgfd_gkf_dnfehmhe_�̂clhi�d_
]̂_unfehmhecgh]id_hi_iffj_]m_etĉhmhecgh]i_cij_gkf_icgôf_]m_gkf_etĉhmhecgh]i_̂f�ofdgfjv_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg�d_̂fdn]idf_g]_doek_
f̂�ofdgd_dkctt_�f_qcjf_hi_l̂hghi�_lhgkhi_cir_ghqf_thqhgd_c�̂ffj_on]i�_]̂_]gkf̂lhdf_lhgk_̂fcd]ic�tf_n̂]qngifddv_�m_
cnn̂]n̂hcgf�_gkf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_n̂fnĉf_cij_hddof_donntfqfigct_�̂clhi�d_cij_unfehmhecgh]id_hi_̂fdn]idf_g]_gkf_
f̂�ofdgd_m]̂_him]̂qcgh]iv

wxyz{z�z�_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_qchigchi_c_̂fe]̂j_]m_do�qhggctd_cij_e]nhfd_]m_do�qhggctd_donnthfj_�r_gkf_p]iĝceg]̂_hi_
cee]̂jcief_lhgk_gkf_̂f�oĥfqfigd_]m_gkf_p]iĝceg_�]eoqfigdv

wxyz{z�x�������x��x���x�� ¡
wxyz{z�z�_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg_qcr_]̂jf̂_qhi]̂_ekci�fd_hi_gkf_�]̂�_gkcg_ĉf_e]idhdgfig_lhgk_gkf_higfig_]m_gkf_p]iĝceg_
�]eoqfigd_cij_j]_i]g_his]tsf_ci_cj�odgqfig_hi_gkf_p]iĝceg_uoq_]̂_ci_f�gfidh]i_]m_gkf_p]iĝceg_|hqfv_uo��feg_g]_
ufegh]i_av��_gkf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_n̂fnĉf_pkci�f_¢̂jf̂d_cij_p]idĝoegh]i_pkci�f_�ĥfeghsfd_m]̂_gkf_¢lif̂�d_cnn̂]sct_
cij_f�feogh]i_hi_cee]̂jcief_lhgk_gkf_p]iĝceg_�]eoqfigdv

wxyz{z�z�_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt_qchigchi_̂fe]̂jd_̂ftcghsf_g]_ekci�fd_hi_gkf_�]̂�v

wxyz{z{x£ �¤�¥�x���¦������
wxyz{z{z�_|kf_}̂ekhgfeg_dkctt§

z� e]ijoeg_hidnfegh]id_g]_jfgf̂qhif_gkf_jcgf_]̂_jcgfd_]m_uo�dgcighct_p]qntfgh]i_cij_gkf_jcgf_]m_mhict_
e]qntfgh]ï

z� hddof_pf̂ghmhecgfd_]m_uo�dgcighct_p]qntfgh]ï
zy m]̂lĉj_g]_gkf_¢lif̂�_m]̂_gkf_¢lif̂�d_̂fshfl_cij_̂fe]̂jd�_l̂hggfi_lĉ̂cighfd_cij_̂ftcgfj_j]eoqfigd_

f̂�oĥfj_�r_gkf_p]iĝceg_�]eoqfigd_cij_̂fefhsfj_m̂]q_gkf_p]iĝceg]̂̈_cij�

219

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

��

]̂ _̀̀abcdce_fdgchbij_e_kdjbcelicmdnobfjcpd̀bqcarlfcdce_fdgc_f̀rbkj_lfc_fq_kdj_fscjtdjucjlcjtbcpb̀jclecjtbc
vikt_jbkjẁcxflygbqsbuc_feliodj_lfucdfqcpbg_beucjtbczlixcklorg_b̀cy_jtcjtbcib{a_ibobfj̀clecjtbc
hlfjidkjc|lkaobfj̀}

~��]�]�]�c�tbcvikt_jbkjẁc_f̀rbkj_lf̀c̀tdggcpbcklfqakjbqcy_jtcjtbc�yfbicjlcktbkxcklfeliodfkbclecjtbczlixcy_jtcjtbc
ib{a_ibobfj̀clecjtbchlfjidkjc|lkaobfj̀cdfqcjlc�bi_encjtbcdkkaidkncdfqcklorgbjbfb̀̀clecjtbcg_̀jc̀apo_jjbqcpncjtbc
hlfjidkjlicleczlixcjlcpbcklorgbjbqclickliibkjbq}

~��]�]�]��ztbfc�ap̀jdfj_dgchlorgbj_lfctd̀cpbbfcdkt_b�bqucjtbcvikt_jbkjc̀tdggc_feliocjtbc�yfbicdplajcjtbcpdgdfkbclec
jtbchlfjidkjc�aocibod_f_fscjlcpbcrd_qcjtbchlfjidkjliuc_fkgaq_fscjtbcdolafjcjlcpbcibjd_fbqceilocjtbchlfjidkjc�aouc_ec
dfnucelice_fdgcklorgbj_lfclickliibkj_lfclecjtbczlix}

~��]�]�]̂c�tbcvikt_jbkjc̀tdggceliydiqcjlcjtbc�yfbicjtbcelggly_fsc_feliodj_lfcibkb_�bqceilocjtbchlfjidkjli�c���cklf̀bfjc
lec̀aibjnclic̀aibj_b̀uc_ecdfnucjlcibqakj_lfc_fclicrdij_dgcibgbd̀bclecibjd_fdsbclicjtbcodx_fsclece_fdgcrdnobfj�c���cdee_qd�_j̀uc
ibkb_rj̀ucibgbd̀b̀cdfqcyd_�bìclecg_bf̀uclicplfq̀c_fqbof_en_fscjtbc�yfbicdsd_f̀jcg_bf̀�cdfqc���cdfncljtbic
qlkaobfjdj_lfcib{a_ibqclecjtbchlfjidkjlicafqbicjtbchlfjidkjc|lkaobfj̀}

~��]�]�]���rlfcib{ab̀jclecjtbc�yfbiucdfqcri_licjlcjtbcb�r_idj_lfcleclfbcnbdiceilocjtbcqdjbclec�ap̀jdfj_dgchlorgbj_lfuc
jtbcvikt_jbkjc̀tdggucy_jtlajcdqq_j_lfdgcklorbf̀dj_lfucklfqakjcdcobbj_fscy_jtcjtbc�yfbicjlcib�_bycjtbcedk_g_jnc
lrbidj_lf̀cdfqcrbieliodfkb}

��������̂���������������������������������������
~�̂] ��¡¢¢£¤¥¤¦§̈£��¤©ª«¬¤
~�̂] ] ��tbc̀bi�_kb̀cg_̀jbqcpbglycdibcfljc_fkgaqbqc_fc®d̀_kc�bi�_kb̀cpajcodncpbcib{a_ibqcelicjtbcmil̄bkj}c�tbcvikt_jbkjc
t̀dggcril�_qbcjtbcg_̀jbqc�arrgbobfjdgc�bi�_kb̀clfgnc_ec̀rbk_e_kdggncqb̀_sfdjbqc_fcjtbcjdpgbcpbglycd̀cjtbcvikt_jbkjẁc
ib̀rlf̀_p_g_jnucdfqcjtbc�yfbic̀tdggcklorbf̀djbcjtbcvikt_jbkjcd̀cril�_qbqc_fc�bkj_lfc��}�}c�fgb̀̀cljtbiy_̀bc
r̀bk_e_kdggncdqqib̀̀bqc_fcjt_̀cvsibbobfjuc_ecfb_jtbicjtbc�yfbicflicjtbcvikt_jbkjc_̀cqb̀_sfdjbqucjtbcrdij_b̀cdsibbcjtdjcjtbc
g_̀jbqc�arrgbobfjdgc�bi�_kbc_̀cfljcpb_fscril�_qbqcelicjtbcmil̄bkj}
°±²³́µ¶·̧²¹̧º²¹»¼½º̧́²½̧¾³¹¿ÀÁÁÂ²Ã²¶̧·Â¹¿²¼Ä́½²³¹·¶Å¹̧º²¹ÆÇ¶²¼¾³¹¿ÀÁÁÂ²Ã²¶̧·Â¹¿²¼Ä́½²³¹¼²ÈÀ́¼²Å¹ÉÊ¼¹̧º²¹Ë¼ÊÌ²½̧¹ÍÎ¹
¶́Ǻ½·̧́¶µ¹Çº²̧º²¼¹̧º²¹»¼½º̧́²½̧¹Ê¼¹ÆÇ¶²¼¹³º·ÂÂ¹Í²¹¼²³ÁÊ¶³́ÍÂ²¹ÉÊ¼¹Á¼ÊÄ́Ǻ¶µ¹̧º²¹́Å²¶̧́É́²Å¹¿ÀÁÁÂ²Ã²¶̧·Â¹¿²¼Ä́½²Ï¹
Ð¶³²¼̧¹·¹Å²³½¼́Á̧́Ê¶¹ÊÉ¹̧º²¹¿ÀÁÁÂ²Ã²¶̧·Â¹¿²¼Ä́½²³¹́¶¹¿²½̧́Ê¶¹ÑÏÒÏÓ¹Í²ÂÊÇ¹Ê¼¹·̧̧·½º¹̧º²¹Å²³½¼́Á̧́Ê¶¹ÊÉ¹³²¼Ä́½²³¹·³¹·¶¹
²Ôº́Í̧́¹̧Ê¹̧º́³¹»µ¼²²Ã²¶̧ÏÕ

�¡¢¢£¤¥¤¦§̈£��¤©ª«¬¤ �¤¢Ö¦«×«£«§Ø
°»¼½º̧́²½̧Ù¹ÆÇ¶²¼Ù¹Ê¼¹¶Ȩ̂¹Á¼ÊÄ́Å²ÅÕ

~�̂] ] ]  milsidoo_fs Ú_stcgb�bgcrilsidoo_fsc_fkgaqbqcc

~�̂] ] ]� Ûagj_rgbcribg_o_fdincqb̀_sf̀ ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ]� Ûbd̀aibqcqidy_fs̀ ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ]̂ æ�_̀j_fscedk_g_j_b̀c̀ai�bǹ
çåèåáéêßëìãêäãèíßåâéêìéÞãÝèßàáÝâãäåäßîïßðáñòãÞåñÞßãèß

óéôÞåáßõêéèèãèí

~�̂] ] ]� �_jbcb�dgadj_lfcdfqcrgdff_fs ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ]� ®a_gq_fscöfeliodj_lfcÛlqbgcodfdsbobfjc
ib̀rlf̀_p_g_j_b̀

ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ]÷ |b�bglrobfjclec®a_gq_fscöfeliodj_lfcÛlqbg̀celic
rl̀jcklf̀jiakj_lfcàb

ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ]ø h_�_gcbfs_fbbi_fs ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ]ù údfq̀kdrbcqb̀_sf ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ] û vikt_jbkjaidgc_fjbi_licqb̀_sf ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ]   üdgabcdfdgǹ_̀ ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ] � |bjd_gbqckl̀jcb̀j_odj_fscpbnlfqcjtdjc
ib{a_ibqc_fc�bkj_lfcý}�

ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ] � �fþ̀_jbcril̄bkjcibrib̀bfjdj_lf ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

~�̂] ] ] ̂ hlfeliobqcqlkaobfj̀celicklf̀jiakj_lf ÜÝÞßàáÝâãäåä

220

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

�]

_̂̀ àbcbdefaĝbhijkbl mbl̀ndljojajep
qrstuvwxtwyz{|}xsyz~sz}~wz�s~�v�x��

�g�������� ��������������������������� ������������

�g�������� ������������������������������ ���� ¡�¢£¤¥¤

�g�������¦ §������������̈����©������ ���� ¡�¢£¤¥¤

�g�������ª «���©��̈����������������� ���� ¡�¢£¤¥¤

�g�������¬ ��������©������������� ���� ¡�¢£¤¥¤

�g������®̄ ���°�����±����������������²��°��³����±��
�����©�����

���� ¡�¢£¤¥¤

�g������®� �©���́ �́���������µ����������� ������������

�g������®® ¶������̈����©������������©������ ������������

�g������®· �̧́ �́�������� ���� ¡�¢£¤¥¤

�g������®� ¶�������¹©��§��º����¶��������������������¶�������
»¼½¼¾

������������

�g������®� «��������¿���������������� ���� ¡�¢£¤¥¤

�g������®� À�©���©��¹������¿���� ���� ¡�¢£¤¥¤

�g������®¦ Á�������������������� ������������

�g������®ª «��������Â�²�����°����Â������Ã���́ ���������� ������������

�g������®¬ ³�°���������������������¹̈�������©�̈�̧����©����� ������������

�g������·̄ ³�°���¶���©�́����©�¶������� ���� ¡�¢£¤¥¤

�g����®gÄblkhj̀ejndgnÅĝ_̀ àbcbdefaĝbhijkbl
�g����®��g���������������²����°�¶���©�́����©�¶�������������²�������¶�������»¼½¼½�����°�����°�����±����������¹�©��̈����
���������¹�©��¼
qÆxÇtsvÈxzv}z�xwÉvÊzwuxzrstuvwxtwËÇzÌÍ��ÊxÎx}wÉÊzÌxs�vtxÇzv�x}wvÏvx�zv}zÌxtwv~}zÐÑÒÑÒz~syzvÏzÇxwzÏ~swuzv}zÉ}zxÓuvÈvwyz
v�x}wvÏÔzwuxzxÓuvÈvwÑzÕuxzrÖrz�ÍÈÊvÇuxÇzÉz}ÍÎÈxsz~ÏzÌwÉ}�És�z×~sÎz~ÏzrstuvwxtwËÇzÌxs�vtxÇz�~tÍÎx}wÇzwuÉwztÉ}zÈxz
v}tÊÍ�x�zÉÇzÉ}zxÓuvÈvwzw~z�xÇtsvÈxzwuxzrstuvwxtwËÇzÌÍ��ÊxÎx}wÉÊzÌxs�vtxÇÑ�

��

�g����®�®g���������������²����°�¶���©�́����©�¶�������������²�������¶�������»¼½¼½�����°��³����±����������¹�©��̈����
���������¹�©��¼
qÆxÇtsvÈxzv}z�xwÉvÊzwuxz{|}xsËÇzÌÍ��ÊxÎx}wÉÊzÌxs�vtxÇzv�x}wvÏvx�zv}zÌxtwv~}zÐÑÒÑÒz~syzvÏzÇxwzÏ~swuzv}zÉ}zxÓuvÈvwyzv�x}wvÏÔz
wuxzxÓuvÈvwÑ�

��

�g����·�Ø²��°��³�����������²������¶�������¹©��³¹º���������������©��½Â��°�����°�������°�©©��������Â������¶���©�́����©�
¶������Â��°��¶�������¹�©��̈�¶����������Ã����������Ø��Ù���́ ����ÚÛÜ»ÝÞÛÜ½ßÂ�¶�������¹©��§��º�����Úà°�¹��Â������°���
����°��������́���¼�°��³������°�©©���́ ���������°�����°���������������������¶�������½½¼Û¼

�g��®gáhkâjebkeãlgáääjejndfaĝbhijkbl
°�����°������́�̈������������������©�¶���������²�����à���������²��°��������́�������°��������©���������°�������́���¼�
Úà�����²��������������Ã��������������°��²��©���²��°�����°�����Â���̈����������©�¶����������������������������������°��°���
¶�������»¼Û��°�©©������©���°�����°�����������́ ����������������������¶�������½½¼¾����������������������º���́��������°��
���°�����±����°���©�¼

�g��®���å�����������æ�����°�������������²��́��°��²�©©���������������©�¶�������Â��°�����°�������°�©©�����²̈��°��³�����
���°��������¹©�����́ ������������à�©�����°��²��������������́ ������������������������°������¼�°�����°�������°�©©�����
��������������������°��²�©©���������������©�¶������������©��°�����°����������������°��³����±�������������°���æ�����ç

221

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

�]

_̂ àbcdeafghaeaffdijiakglmgjgenjhoagdhginagphdidjqgphrsbtjidshugvbacdswfgdhfibweidshfgsbgjvvbscjqfgodcahglmg
inagxyhabugsbgjgtjiabdjqgenjhoagdhginagzbs{aeigdheqwkdhogfd|aug}wjqdimugestvqa~dimuginagxyhab�fg
fenakwqagsbglwkoaigrsbg�sfigsrginag�sb�ugsbgvbsewbatahigsbgkaqdcabmgtainsk�

�̂ àbcdeafghaeaffdijiakglmginagahjeitahigsbgbacdfdshgsrgeskafugqjyfugsbgbaowqjidshfugdheqwkdhogenjhodhogsbg
akdidhogvbacdswfqmgvbavjbakgphfibwtahifgsrg̀abcdea�

�̂ �njhodhogsbgakdidhogvbacdswfqmgvbavjbakgphfibwtahifgsrg̀abcdeaghaeaffdijiakglmgsrrdedjqgdhiabvbaijidshfg
srgjvvqdejlqageskafugqjyfgsbgbaowqjidshfginjigjbagadinabg�j�geshibjbmgisgfvaedrdegdhiabvbaijidshfglmginag
jvvqdejlqagjwinsbdidafgnjcdhog{wbdfkdeidshgtjkagvbdsbgisginagdffwjheagsrginaglwdqkdhogvabtdiugsbg�l�g
eshibjbmgisgba}wdbatahifgsrginagphfibwtahifgsrg̀abcdeagynahginsfagphfibwtahifgsrg̀abcdeagyabag
vbavjbakgdhgjeesbkjheagydinginagjvvqdejlqagfijhkjbkgsrgejba�

�̂ àbcdeafghaeaffdijiakglmgkaedfdshfgsrginagxyhabghsigbahkabakgdhgjgidtaqmgtjhhabgsbgjhmgsinabgrjdqwbagsrg
vabrsbtjheagshginagvjbigsrginagxyhabgsbginagxyhab�fgeshfwqijhifgsbgeshibjeisbf�

�̂ zbavjbdhogkdodijqgtskaqfgsbgsinabgkafdohgksewtahijidshgrsbgibjhftdffdshgisginagxyhab�fgeshfwqijhifg
jhkgeshibjeisbfugsbgisgsinabgxyhab�jwinsbd|akgbaedvdahif�

�̂ zbavjbjidshgsrgkafdohgjhkgksewtahijidshgrsbgjqiabhjiagldkgsbgvbsvsfjqgba}wafifgvbsvsfakglmginagxyhab�
�̂ zbavjbjidshgrsbugjhkgjiiahkjheagjiugjgvwlqdegvbafahijidshugtaaidhogsbgnajbdho�
�̂ zbavjbjidshgrsbugjhkgjiiahkjheagjiugjgkdfvwiagbafsqwidshgvbseaakdhogsbgqaojqgvbseaakdhouga~eavigynabag

inag�bendiaeigdfgvjbimginabais�
�̂ �cjqwjidshgsrginag}wjqdrdejidshfgsrgahididafgvbscdkdhogldkfgsbgvbsvsfjqf�
_̂� �shfwqijidshgesheabhdhogbavqjeatahigsrg�sb�gbafwqidhogrbstgrdbagsbgsinabgejwfagkwbdhogeshfibweidsh�g

sbu
_̂_ �ffdfijheagisginagphdidjqg�aedfdshg�j�abugdrgsinabginjhginag�bendiaei�

���̂�̂���sgjcsdkgkaqjmgdhginag�shfibweidshgznjfauginag�bendiaeigfnjqqgvbscdkaginagrsqqsydhog�kkdidshjqg̀abcdeafughsidrmg
inagxyhabgydingbajfshjlqagvbstvihaffugjhkga~vqjdhginagrjeifgjhkgedbewtfijheafgodcdhogbdfagisginaghaak�gprugwvshg
baeadvigsrginag�bendiaei�fghsideauginagxyhabgkaiabtdhafginjigjqqgsbgvjbifgsrginagfabcdeafgjbaghsigba}wdbakuginagxyhabgfnjqqg
odcagvbstvigybdiiahghsideagisginag�bendiaeigsrginagxyhab�fgkaiabtdhjidsh�g�nagxyhabgfnjqqgestvahfjiaginag�bendiaeig
rsbginagfabcdeafgvbscdkakgvbdsbgisginag�bendiaei�fgbaeadvigsrginagxyhab�fghsidea�

_̂ �acdaydhogjg�shibjeisb�fgfwltdiijqgswigsrgfa}waheagrbstginagfwltdiijqgfenakwqagjvvbscakglmginag
�bendiaei�

�̂ �afvshkdhogisginag�shibjeisb�fgba}wafifgrsbgdhrsbtjidshginjigjbaghsigvbavjbakgdhgjeesbkjheagydinginag
�shibjeig�sewtahifgsbgynabagfwengdhrsbtjidshgdfgjcjdqjlqagisginag�shibjeisbgrbstgjgejbarwqgfiwkmgjhkg
estvjbdfshgsrginag�shibjeig�sewtahifugrdaqkgeshkdidshfugsinabgxyhab�vbscdkakgdhrsbtjidshug
�shibjeisb�vbavjbakgessbkdhjidshgkbjydhofugsbgvbdsbgzbs{aeigesbbafvshkaheagsbgksewtahijidsh�

�̂ zbavjbdhog�njhoagxbkabfgjhkg�shfibweidshg�njhoag�dbaeidcafginjigba}wdbagacjqwjidshgsrg�shibjeisb�fg
vbsvsfjqfgjhkgfwvvsbidhogkjijugsbginagvbavjbjidshgsbgbacdfdshgsrgphfibwtahifgsrg̀abcdea�

�̂ �cjqwjidhogjhga~iahfdcaghwtlabgsrg�qjdtfgjfginagphdidjqg�aedfdshg�j�ab�gsbu
�̂ �cjqwjidhogfwlfidiwidshfgvbsvsfakglmginagxyhabgsbg�shibjeisbgjhkgtj�dhogfwlfa}wahigbacdfdshfgisg

phfibwtahifgsrg̀abcdeagbafwqidhoginabarbst�

���̂�̂���nag�bendiaeigfnjqqgvbscdkag�shfibweidshgznjfag̀abcdeafga~eaakdhoginagqdtdifgfaigrsbinglaqsygjfg�kkdidshjqg
àbcdeaf�g�nahginagqdtdifglaqsygjbagbajenakuginag�bendiaeigfnjqqghsidrmginagxyhab�

_̂ ggg�gggg�gbacdayfgsrgajeng̀nsvg�bjydhougzbskweig�jijgdiatugfjtvqagjhkgfdtdqjbgfwltdiijqfgsrginag
�shibjeisb

�̂ ggg�gggg�gcdfdifgisginagfdiaglmginag�bendiaeigkwbdhogeshfibweidsh
�̂ ggg�gggg�gdhfvaeidshfgrsbgjhmgvsbidshgsrginag�sb�gisgkaiabtdhagynainabgfwengvsbidshgsrginag�sb�gdfg

fwlfijhidjqqmgestvqaiagdhgjeesbkjheagydinginagba}wdbatahifgsrginag�shibjeig�sewtahif
�̂ ggg�gggg�gdhfvaeidshfgrsbgjhmgvsbidshgsrginag�sb�gisgkaiabtdhagrdhjqgestvqaidsh�̂

���̂�̂���~eavigrsbgfabcdeafgba}wdbakgwhkabg̀aeidshg�������gjhkginsfagfabcdeafginjigksghsiga~eaakginagqdtdifgfaigrsbingdhg
àeidshg�����ug�shfibweidshgznjfag̀abcdeafgvbscdkakgtsbaginjhg� gkjmfgjriabg�¡�ginagkjiagsrg̀wlfijhidjqg�stvqaidshgsrg
inag�sb�gsbg���ginagdhdidjqgkjiagsrg̀wlfijhidjqg�stvqaidshgdkahidrdakgdhginagjobaatahiglaiyaahginagxyhabgjhkg
�shibjeisbugyndenacabgdfgajbqdabugfnjqqglagestvahfjiakgjfg�kkdidshjqg̀abcdeafgisginaga~iahiginag�bendiaeigdhewbfg
jkkdidshjqgesfigdhgvbscdkdhoginsfag�shfibweidshgznjfag̀abcdeaf�

222

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

�]

_̂̀abacdefdghidjiklmnijdnolikipdqrdghmjdstkiiuivgdhwlidvogdqiivdnouxyigipdzmghmvdd{o|kdd}dd~dd�duovghjdofdghidpwgidofd
ghmjdstkiiuivg�dghko|thdvodfw|ygdofdghidsknhmging�di�givjmovdofdghidsknhmging�jdjiklmnijdqirovpdghwgdgmuidjhwyydqid
nouxivjwgipdwjdsppmgmovwyd�iklmnij�

�������_c___�������_����������������
_̂ca�d�vyijjdoghikzmjidxkolmpipdfokd|vpikdghmjdstkiiuivg�dghid�zvikdjhwyydxkolmpidmvfokuwgmovdmvdwdgmuiyrduwvvikd
kitwkpmvtdki�|mkiuivgjdfokdwvpdymumgwgmovjdovdghid�ko�ing�dmvny|pmvtdwdzkmggivdxkotkwu�dzhmnhdjhwyydjigdfokghdghid
�zvik�jdoq�ingmlij�djnhip|yi�dnovjgkwmvgjdwvpdnkmgikmw�dmvny|pmvtdjxwnidki�|mkiuivgjdwvpdkiywgmovjhmxj�dfyi�mqmymgr�d
i�xwvpwqmymgr�djxinmwydi�|mxuivg�djrjgiuj�dwvpdjmgidki�|mkiuivgj�

_̂cabd�hid�zvikdjhwyydijgwqymjhdghid�zvik�jdq|ptigdfokdghid�ko�ing�dmvny|pmvtd}��dghidq|ptigdfokdghid�ojgdofdghid�ok�d
wjdpifmvipdmvd�ingmovd����d} �dghid�zvik�jdoghikdnojgj�dwvp�d}¡�dkiwjovwqyidnovgmvtivnmijdkiywgipdgodwyydofdghijidnojgj�d
�hid�zvikdjhwyyd|xpwgidghid�zvik�jdq|ptigdfokdghid�ko�ingdwjdvinijjwkrdghko|tho|gdghidp|kwgmovdofdghid�ko�ingd|vgmyd
fmvwydnouxyigmov�defdghid�zvikdjmtvmfmnwvgyrdmvnkiwjijdokdpinkiwjijdghid�zvik�jdq|ptigdfokdghid�ojgdofdghid�ok��dghid
�zvikdjhwyydvogmfrdghidsknhmging�d�hid�zvikdwvpdghidsknhmgingdjhwyydghikiwfgikdwtkiidgodwdnokkijxovpmvtdnhwvtidmvdghid
�ko�ing�jdjnoxidwvpd�|wymgr�

_̂ca¢d�hid�zvikdjhwyydmpivgmfrdwdkixkijivgwgmlidw|ghokm£ipdgodwngdovdghid�zvik�jdqihwyfdzmghdkijxingdgodghid�ko�ing�d�hid
�zvikdjhwyydkivpikdpinmjmovjdwvpdwxxkolidghidsknhmging�jdj|qumggwyjdmvdwdgmuiyrduwvvikdmvdokpikdgodwlompd|vkiwjovwqyid
piywrdmvdghidokpikyrdwvpdji�|ivgmwydxkotkijjdofdghidsknhmging�jdjiklmnij�

_̂càd�hid�zvikdjhwyydf|kvmjhdj|klirjdgodpijnkmqidxhrjmnwydnhwkwngikmjgmnj�dyitwydymumgwgmovjdwvpd|gmymgrdyonwgmovjdfokdghid
jmgidofdghid�ko�ing�dwvpdwdzkmggivdyitwydpijnkmxgmovdofdghidjmgi�d�hidj|klirjdwvpdyitwydmvfokuwgmovdjhwyydmvny|pi�dwjd
wxxymnwqyi�dtkwpijdwvpdymvijdofdjgkiigj�dwyyirj�dxwliuivgjdwvpdwp�omvmvtdxkoxikgrdwvpdjgk|ng|kij�dpijmtvwgipdzigywvpj�d
wp�wnivgdpkwmvwti�dkmthgj¤of¤zwr�dkijgkmngmovj�diwjiuivgj�divnkownhuivgj�d£ovmvt�dpiipdkijgkmngmovj�dqo|vpwkmijdwvpd
novgo|kjdofdghidjmgi�dyonwgmovj�dpmuivjmovj�dwvpdoghikdvinijjwkrdpwgwdzmghdkijxingdgodi�mjgmvtdq|mypmvtj�doghikd
muxkoliuivgjdwvpdgkiij�dwvpdmvfokuwgmovdnovnikvmvtdwlwmywqyid|gmymgrdjiklmnijdwvpdymvij�dqoghdx|qymndwvpdxkmlwgi�d
wqolidwvpdqiyozdtkwpi�dmvny|pmvtdmvlikgjdwvpdpixghj�dsyydghidmvfokuwgmovdovdghidj|klirdjhwyydqidkifikivnipdgodwd�ko�ingd
qivnhuwk��

_̂cacd�hid�zvikdjhwyydf|kvmjhdjiklmnijdofdtioginhvmnwydivtmviikj�dzhmnhduwrdmvny|pidgijgdqokmvtj�dgijgdxmgj�d
pigikumvwgmovjdofdjomydqiwkmvtdlwy|ij�dxiknoywgmovdgijgj�dilwy|wgmovjdofdhw£wkpo|jduwgikmwyj�djimjumndilwy|wgmov�dtko|vpd
nokkojmovdgijgjdwvpdkijmjgmlmgrdgijgj�dmvny|pmvtdvinijjwkrdoxikwgmovjdfokdwvgmnmxwgmvtdj|qjomydnovpmgmovj�dzmghdzkmggivd
kixokgjdwvpdwxxkoxkmwgidkinouuivpwgmovj�

_̂ca¥_�hid�zvikdjhwyydxkolmpidghid�|xxyiuivgwyd�iklmnijdpijmtvwgipdwjdghid�zvik�jdkijxovjmqmymgrdmvd�ingmovd~�����

_̂ca¦defdghid�zvikdmpivgmfmipdwd�|jgwmvwqyid�q�ingmlidmvdskgmnyid��dghid�zvikdjhwyydf|yfmyydmgjdkijxovjmqmymgmijdwjdki�|mkipd
mvdsesd§on|uivgd̈ ©~ª« ©�¬�d�|jgwmvwqyid�ko�ingjd̈�hmqmg�dwggwnhipdgodghmjdstkiiuivg�

_̂cad�hid�zvikdjhwyydnookpmvwgidghidjiklmnijdofdmgjdozvdnovj|ygwvgjdzmghdghojidjiklmnijdxkolmpipdqrdghidsknhmging�d
�xovdghidsknhmging�jdki�|ijg�dghid�zvikdjhwyydf|kvmjhdnoxmijdofdghidjnoxidofdjiklmnijdmvdghidnovgkwngjdqigziivdghid
�zvikdwvpdghid�zvik�jdnovj|ygwvgj�d�hid�zvikdjhwyydf|kvmjhdghidjiklmnijdofdnovj|ygwvgjdoghikdghwvdghojidpijmtvwgipdwjd
ghidkijxovjmqmymgrdofdghidsknhmgingdmvdghmjdstkiiuivg�dokdw|ghokm£idghidsknhmgingdgodf|kvmjhdghiudwjdwvdsppmgmovwyd
�iklmni�dzhivdghidsknhmgingdki�|ijgjdj|nhdjiklmnijdwvpdpiuovjgkwgijdghwgdghirdwkidkiwjovwqyrdki�|mkipdqrdghidjnoxidofd
ghid�ko�ing�d�hid�zvikdjhwyydki�|mkidghwgdmgjdnovj|ygwvgjdwvpdnovgkwngokjduwmvgwmvdmvj|kwvni�dmvny|pmvtdxkofijjmovwyd
ymwqmymgrdmvj|kwvni�dwjdwxxkoxkmwgidgodghidjiklmnijdokdzok�dxkolmpip�

_̂ca®d�hid�zvikdjhwyydf|kvmjhdgijgj�dmvjxingmovjdwvpdkixokgjdki�|mkipdqrdywzdokdghid�ovgkwngd§on|uivgj�dj|nhdwjd
jgk|ng|kwy�duinhwvmnwy�dwvpdnhiumnwydgijgj�dgijgjdfokdwmkdwvpdzwgikdxoyy|gmov�dwvpdgijgjdfokdhw£wkpo|jduwgikmwyj�

_̂ca�̄d�hid�zvikdjhwyydf|kvmjhdwyydyitwy�dmvj|kwvnidwvpdwnno|vgmvtdjiklmnij�dmvny|pmvtdw|pmgmvtdjiklmnij�dghwgduwrdqid
kiwjovwqyrdvinijjwkrdwgdwvrdgmuidfokdghid�ko�ingdgoduiigdghid�zvik�jdviipjdwvpdmvgikijgj�

_̂ca��_�hid�zvikdjhwyydxkolmpidxkouxgdzkmggivdvogmnidgodghidsknhmgingdmfdghid�zvikdqinouijdwzwkidofdwvrdfw|ygdokd
pifingdmvdghid�ko�ing�dmvny|pmvtdikkokj�doumjjmovjdokdmvnovjmjgivnmijdmvdghidsknhmging�jdevjgk|uivgjdofd�iklmni�

223

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

�]

_̂̀abc_defghijfkglemnngojpnqrfgsefgtkpeosfpsgojgmnngpuvvqjopmsoujlgiosegsefgwujskmpsukgsemsgkfnmsfgsugukgmxxfpsgsefg
tkpeosfpsylglfkzopflgukg{kuxflloujmngkfl{ujlo|onosofl}gdefghijfkglemnng{kuv{sn~gjusox~gsefgtkpeosfpsguxgsefglq|lsmjpfguxg
mj~grokfpsgpuvvqjopmsoujlg|fsiffjgsefghijfkgmjrgsefgwujskmpsukgusefkiolfgkfnmsoj�gsugsefg�ku�fps}gwuvvqjopmsoujlg
|~gmjrgiosegsefgtkpeosfpsylgpujlqnsmjslglemnng|fgsekuq�egsefgtkpeosfps}

_̂̀ab�_�fxukfgf�fpqsoj�gsefgwujskmpsgxukgwujlskqpsouj�gsefghijfkglemnngpuukrojmsfgsefgtkpeosfpsylgrqsoflgmjrg
kfl{ujlo|onosoflglfsgxuksegojgsefgwujskmpsgxukgwujlskqpsoujgiosegsefgtkpeosfpsylglfkzopflglfsgxuksegojgseolgt�kffvfjs}gdefg
hijfkglemnng{kuzorfgsefgtkpeosfpsgmgpu{~guxgsefgf�fpqsfrgm�kffvfjsg|fsiffjgsefghijfkgmjrgwujskmpsuk�gojpnqroj�gsefg
�fjfkmngwujrosoujlguxgsefgwujskmpsgxukgwujlskqpsouj}

_̂̀ab�gdefghijfkglemnng{kuzorfgsefgtkpeosfpsgmppfllgsugsefg�ku�fpsglosfg{koukgsugpuvvfjpfvfjsguxgsefg�uk�gmjrglemnng
u|no�msfgsefgwujskmpsukgsug{kuzorfgsefgtkpeosfpsgmppfllgsugsefg�uk�giefkfzfkgosgolgojg{kf{mkmsoujgukg{ku�kfll}

_̂̀ab̀g�oseojg��grm~lgmxsfkgkfpfo{sguxgmgikossfjgkf�qflsgxkuvgsefgtkpeosfps�gsefghijfkglemnngxqkjolegsefgkf�qflsfrg
ojxukvmsoujgmlgjfpfllmk~gmjrgkfnfzmjsgxukgsefgtkpeosfpsgsugfzmnqmsf�g�ozfgjusopfgux�gukgfjxukpfgnofjgko�esl}

�������_�___����_��_���_����
_̂�abg�ukg{qk{ulflguxgseolgt�kffvfjs�gsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk�glemnng|fgsefgsusmngpulsgsugsefghijfkgsugpujlskqpsgmnngfnfvfjslg
uxgsefg�ku�fpsgrflo�jfrgukgl{fpoxofrg|~gsefgtkpeosfpsgmjrglemnngojpnqrfgpujskmpsuklyg�fjfkmngpujrosoujlgpulsl�guzfkefmrg
mjrg{kuxos}gdefgwulsguxgsefg�uk�gmnlugojpnqrflgsefgkfmlujm|nfgzmnqfguxgnm|uk�gvmsfkomnl�gmjrgf�qo{vfjs�grujmsfrgsu�gukg
usefkiolfgxqkjolefrg|~�gsefghijfk}gdefgwulsguxgsefg�uk�gruflgjusgojpnqrfgsefgpuv{fjlmsoujguxgsefgtkpeosfps�gsefgpulslg
uxgsefgnmjr�gko�esl�ux�im~�gxojmjpoj��gukgpujsoj�fjpoflgxukgpemj�flgojgsefg�uk��gukgusefkgpulslgsemsgmkfgsefg
kfl{ujlo|onos~guxgsefghijfk}

_̂�acgdefghijfkylg|qr�fsgxukgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk�golg{kuzorfrgojg�josomng�jxukvmsouj�gmjrglemnng|fgmr�qlsfrgsekuq�euqsg
sefg�ku�fpsgmlgkf�qokfrgqjrfkg�fpsoujlg�} �g¡}¢gmjrg¡}�}g£zmnqmsoujlguxgsefghijfkylg|qr�fsgxukgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk��g
mjrgsefg{kfnovojmk~gflsovmsfguxgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk�gmjrgq{rmsfrgflsovmsflguxgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk��g{kf{mkfrg|~gsefg
tkpeosfps�gkf{kflfjsgsefgtkpeosfpsylg�qr�vfjsgmlgmgrflo�jg{kuxflloujmn}g�sgolgkfpu�jo¤fr�geuifzfk�gsemsgjfosefkgsefg
tkpeosfpsgjukgsefghijfkgemlgpujskunguzfkgsefgpulsguxgnm|uk�gvmsfkomnl�gukgf�qo{vfjs�gsefgwujskmpsukylgvfseurlguxg
rfsfkvojoj�g|org{kopfl�gukgpuv{fsosozfg|orroj��gvmk�fs�gukgjf�usomsoj�gpujrosoujl}gtppukroj�n~�gsefgtkpeosfpsgpmjjusg
mjrgruflgjusgimkkmjsgukgkf{kflfjsgsemsg|orlgukgjf�usomsfrg{kopflgionngjusgzmk~gxkuvgsefghijfkylg|qr�fsgxukgsefgwulsguxg
sefg�uk��gukgxkuvgmj~gflsovmsfguxgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk��gukgfzmnqmsouj�g{kf{mkfrgukgm�kffrgsug|~gsefgtkpeosfps}

_̂�a�g�jg{kf{mkoj�gflsovmsflguxgsefgwulsguxg�uk��gsefgtkpeosfpsglemnng|fg{fkvossfrgsugojpnqrfgpujsoj�fjpoflgxukgrflo�j�g
|orroj��gmjrg{kopfgflpmnmsouj�gsugrfsfkvojfgiemsgvmsfkomnl�gf�qo{vfjs�gpuv{ujfjsgl~lsfvl�gmjrgs~{flguxgpujlskqpsoujg
mkfgsug|fgojpnqrfrgojgsefgwujskmpsg¥upqvfjsl�gsugkfpuvvfjrgkfmlujm|nfgmr�qlsvfjslgojgsefg{ku�kmvgmjrglpu{fguxgsefg
�ku�fps�gmjrgsugojpnqrfgrflo�jgmnsfkjmsflgmlgvm~g|fgjfpfllmk~gsugmr�qlsgsefgflsovmsfrgwulsguxgsefg�uk�gsugvffsgsefg
hijfkylg|qr�fs}gdefgtkpeosfpsylgflsovmsfguxgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk�glemnng|fg|mlfrgujgpqkkfjsgmkfm�gzunqvfgukglovonmkg
pujpf{sqmngflsovmsoj�gsfpejo�qfl}g�xgsefghijfkgkf�qokflgmgrfsmonfrgflsovmsfguxgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk��gsefgtkpeosfpsglemnng
{kuzorfglqpegmjgflsovmsf�goxgorfjsoxofrgmlgsefgtkpeosfpsylgkfl{ujlo|onos~gojg�fpsoujg¢}�}��gmlgmg�q{{nfvfjsmng�fkzopf}

_̂�a�_�x�gsekuq�egjugxmqnsguxgsefgtkpeosfps�gsefg�kupqkfvfjsg�emlfgemlgjusgpuvvfjpfrgioseojg¦§grm~lgmxsfkgsefg
tkpeosfpsglq|voslgsefgwujlskqpsoujg¥upqvfjslgsugsefghijfk�gsefghijfkylg|qr�fsgxukgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk�glemnng|fg
mr�qlsfrgsugkfxnfpsgpemj�flgojgsefg�fjfkmngnfzfnguxg{kopflgojgsefgm{{nopm|nfgpujlskqpsoujgvmk�fs}

_̂�à_�xgmsgmj~gsovfgsefgtkpeosfpsylgflsovmsfguxgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk�gf�pffrlgsefghijfkylg|qr�fsgxukgsefgwulsguxgsefg
�uk��gsefgtkpeosfpsglemnngvm�fgm{{ku{komsfgkfpuvvfjrmsoujlgsugsefghijfkgsugmr�qlsgsefg�ku�fpsylglo¤f�g�qmnos~�gukg
|qr�fsgxukgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk��gmjrgsefghijfkglemnngpuu{fkmsfgiosegsefgtkpeosfpsgojgvm�oj�glqpegmr�qlsvfjsl}

_̂�a�_�xgsefghijfkylg|qr�fsgxukgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk�gmsgsefgpujpnqloujguxgsefgwujlskqpsoujg¥upqvfjslg�emlfg�fkzopflg
olgf�pffrfrg|~gsefgnuiflsg|ujmgxorfg|orgukgjf�usomsfrg{ku{ulmn�gsefghijfkglemnn

ab �ozfgikossfjgm{{kuzmnguxgmjgojpkfmlfgojgsefg|qr�fsgxukgsefgwulsguxgsefg�uk��
ac mqseuko¤fgkf|orroj�gukgkfjf�usomsoj�guxgsefg�ku�fpsgioseojgmgkfmlujm|nfgsovf�
a� sfkvojmsfgojgmppukrmjpfgioseg�fpsoujg¦}��

224

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

��

]̂ _̀abc̀defghg_c̀ai_gjagjkalmbj_gkbgnamko_dkagjkapmcqkbgarmcsmhtnadbcrknacmauehf_gvahdamkue_mkwagcamkwebka
gjkaxcdgacyagjkazcm{|acmn

]} _trfktk̀gah̀vacgjkmategehffvahbbkrgh~fkahfgkm̀hg_ok�

���]���yagjka�ìkmabjccdkdagcarmcbkkwaèwkma�kbg_c̀a�����nagjkalmbj_gkbgadjhffatcw_yvagjkaxc̀dgmebg_c̀a�cbetk̀gdahda
k̀bkddhmvagcabctrfvai_gjagjka�ìkm�da~ewskgaycmagjkaxcdgacyagjkazcm{ahgagjkabc̀bfed_c̀acyagjkaxc̀dgmebg_c̀a
�cbetk̀gdapjhdka�kmo_bkdnacmagjka~ewskgahdahwqedgkwaèwkma�kbg_c̀a������a�yagjka�ìkmamkue_mkdagjkalmbj_gkbgagca
tcw_yvagjkaxc̀dgmebg_c̀a�cbetk̀gda~kbhedkagjkafcikdga~c̀hay_wka~_wacmàkscg_hgkwarmcrcdhfak�bkkwdagjka�ìkm�da
~ewskgaycmagjkaxcdgacyagjkazcm{awekagcathm{kgabc̀w_g_c̀dagjkalmbj_gkbgabcefwàcgamkhdc̀h~fvah̀g_b_rhgknagjka�ìkma
djhffabctrk̀dhgkagjkalmbj_gkbgaycmagjkatcw_y_bhg_c̀dahdah̀alww_g_c̀hfa�kmo_bkaremdeh̀gagca�kbg_c̀a����|acgjkmi_dkagjka
lmbj_gkbg�dadkmo_bkdaycmatcw_yv_̀sagjkaxc̀dgmebg_c̀a�cbetk̀gdadjhffa~kai_gjcegahww_g_c̀hfabctrk̀dhg_c̀�a�̀ah̀va
kok̀gnagjkalmbj_gkbg�datcw_y_bhg_c̀acyagjkaxc̀dgmebg_c̀a�cbetk̀gdadjhffa~kagjkaf_t_gacyagjkalmbj_gkbg�damkdrc̀d_~_f_gva
èwkmagj_dalmg_bfka��

�����������������������������������
���]�a�jkalmbj_gkbgah̀wagjka�ìkmaihmmh̀gagjhga_̀agmh̀dt_gg_̀sa�̀dgmetk̀gdacya�kmo_bknacmah̀vacgjkma_̀ycmthg_c̀nagjka
gmh̀dt_gg_̀sarhmgva_dagjkabcrvm_sjgacìkmacyadebja_̀ycmthg_c̀acmajhdarkmt_dd_c̀aymctagjkabcrvm_sjgacìkmagcagmh̀dt_ga
debja_̀ycmthg_c̀aycma_gdaedkac̀agjkapmcqkbg�

���]�a�jkalmbj_gkbgah̀wagjkalmbj_gkbg�dabc̀defgh̀gdadjhffa~kawkktkwagjkahegjcmdah̀wacìkmdacyagjk_mamkdrkbg_oka
�̀dgmetk̀gdacya�kmo_bkna_̀bfew_̀sagjka�mhi_̀sdah̀wa�rkb_y_bhg_c̀dnah̀wadjhffamkgh_̀ahffabcttc̀afhinadghgegcmvah̀wa
cgjkmamkdkmokwam_sjgdna_̀bfew_̀sabcrvm_sjgd�a�e~t_dd_c̀acmaw_dgm_~eg_c̀acya�̀dgmetk̀gdacya�kmo_bkagcatkkgacyy_b_hfa
mksefhgcmvamkue_mktk̀gdacmaycmad_t_fhmaremrcdkda_̀abc̀ k̀bg_c̀ai_gjagjkapmcqkbga_dàcgagca~kabc̀dgmekwahdare~f_bhg_c̀a_̀a
wkmcshg_c̀acyagjkamkdkmokwam_sjgdacyagjkalmbj_gkbgah̀wagjkalmbj_gkbg�dabc̀defgh̀gd�

���] a�jkalmbj_gkbgasmh̀gdagcagjka�ìkmahàc̀k�bfed_okaf_bk̀dkagcaedkagjkalmbj_gkbg�da�̀dgmetk̀gdacya�kmo_bkadcfkfvah̀wa
k�bfed_okfvaycmaremrcdkdacyabc̀dgmebg_̀snaed_̀snath_̀gh_̀_̀snahfgkm_̀sah̀wahww_̀sagcagjkapmcqkbgnarmco_wkwagjhgagjka
�ìkmade~dgh̀g_hffvarkmycmtda_gdac~f_shg_c̀daèwkmagj_dalsmkktk̀gna_̀bfew_̀sarmctrgarhvtk̀gacyahffadetdaweka
remdeh̀gagcalmg_bfka¡ah̀walmg_bfka���a�jkalmbj_gkbgadjhffac~gh_̀ad_t_fhmàc̀k�bfed_okaf_bk̀dkdaymctagjkalmbj_gkbg�da
bc̀defgh̀gdabc̀d_dgk̀gai_gjagj_dalsmkktk̀g�a�jkaf_bk̀dkasmh̀gkwaèwkmagj_dadkbg_c̀arkmt_gdagjka�ìkmagcahegjcm_¢kagjka
xc̀gmhbgcmna�e~bc̀gmhbgcmdna�e~£de~bc̀gmhbgcmdnah̀waderrf_kmdnahdaikffahdagjka�ìkm�dabc̀defgh̀gdah̀wadkrhmhgka
bc̀gmhbgcmdnagcamkrmcwebkahrrf_bh~fkarcmg_c̀dacyagjka�̀dgmetk̀gdacya�kmo_bknade~qkbgagcah̀varmcgcbcfdakdgh~f_djkwa
remdeh̀gagca�kbg_c̀a���nadcfkfvah̀wak�bfed_okfvaycmaedka_̀arkmycmt_̀sadkmo_bkdacmabc̀dgmebg_c̀aycmagjkapmcqkbg�a�yagjka
lmbj_gkbgam_sjgyeffvagkmt_̀hgkdagj_dalsmkktk̀gaycmabhedkahdarmco_wkwa_̀a�kbg_c̀a¡��nagjkaf_bk̀dkasmh̀gkwa_̀agj_da�kbg_c̀a
¤��adjhffagkmt_̀hgk�

���] ]���̀agjkakok̀gagjka�ìkmaedkdagjka�̀dgmetk̀gdacya�kmo_bkai_gjcegamkgh_̀_̀sagjkahegjcmdacyagjka�̀dgmetk̀gdacya
�kmo_bknagjka�ìkmamkfkhdkdagjkalmbj_gkbgah̀walmbj_gkbg�dabc̀defgh̀g¥d¦aymctahffabfh_tdah̀wabhedkdacyahbg_c̀ahm_d_̀sa
ymctadebjaedkd�a�jka�ìkmnagcagjkak�gk̀garkmt_ggkwa~vafhinayemgjkmahsmkkdagca_̀wkt̀ _yvah̀wajcfwajhmtfkddagjka
lmbj_gkbgah̀wa_gdabc̀defgh̀gdaymctahffabcdgdah̀wak�rk̀dkdna_̀bfew_̀sagjkabcdgacyawkyk̀dknamkfhgkwagcabfh_tdah̀wabhedkdacya
hbg_c̀ahddkmgkwa~vah̀vagj_mwarkmdc̀acmak̀g_gvagcagjkak�gk̀gadebjabcdgdah̀wak�rk̀dkdahm_dkaymctagjka�ìkm�daedkacyagjka
�̀dgmetk̀gdacya�kmo_bkaèwkmagj_da�kbg_c̀a¤�����a�jkagkmtdacyagj_da�kbg_c̀a¤����adjhffàcgahrrfva_yagjka�ìkmam_sjgyeffva
gkmt_̀hgkdagj_dalsmkktk̀gaycmabhedkaèwkma�kbg_c̀a¡���

���]̂a§�bkrgaycmagjkaf_bk̀dkdasmh̀gkwa_̀agj_dalmg_bfka¤nàcacgjkmaf_bk̀dkacmam_sjgadjhffa~kawkktkwasmh̀gkwacma_trf_kwaèwkma
gj_dalsmkktk̀g�a�jka�ìkmadjhffàcgahdd_s̀nawkfkshgknade~f_bk̀dknarfkwskacmacgjkmi_dkagmh̀dykmah̀vaf_bk̀dkasmh̀gkwa
jkmk_̀agcah̀cgjkmarhmgvai_gjcegagjkarm_cmaim_ggk̀ahsmkktk̀gacyagjkalmbj_gkbg�al̀vaèhegjcm_¢kwaedkacyagjka�̀dgmetk̀gda
cya�kmo_bkadjhffa~kahgagjka�ìkm�dadcfkam_d{ah̀wai_gjcegaf_h~_f_gvagcagjkalmbj_gkbgah̀wagjkalmbj_gkbg�dabc̀defgh̀gd�

���]}a§�bkrgahdacgjkmi_dkadghgkwa_̀a�kbg_c̀a¤��nagjkarmco_d_c̀dacyagj_dalmg_bfka¤adjhffademo_okagjkagkmt_̀hg_c̀acyagj_da
lsmkktk̀g�

��������̈�������©����������ª���
��̈]���«¬«®̄
��̈]�]���jka�ìkmah̀walmbj_gkbgadjhffabcttk̀bkahffabfh_tdah̀wabhedkdacyahbg_c̀ahsh_̀dgagjkacgjkmah̀wahm_d_̀sacegacyacma
mkfhgkwagcagj_dalsmkktk̀gnaijkgjkma_̀abc̀gmhbgnagcmgnacmacgjkmi_dkna_̀ahbbcmwh̀bkai_gjagjkamkue_mktk̀gdacyagjka~_̀w_̀sa

225

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

�]

_̂̀abcdefd̀ghbc_giejdckĝèdhdlcd̂e_ieck_̀emnfddjdiceoîep_ck_ieckdeadf_ĝèadl_q_d̂erseoaah_lorhdehopterbce_ieoise
lòdeigcejgfdeckoieuvesdof̀eoqcdfeckdêocdegqewbr̀coic_ohexgjahdc_giegqeckdeygfz{e|kde}pidfeoîemflk_cdlcepo_~deohhe
lho_j̀eoîelob̀d̀egqeolc_gieigcelgjjdild̂e_ieollgf̂oildep_ckeck_̀ewdlc_gie�{u{u{

��������|geckded�cdicêojond̀eofdelg~dfd̂erseafgadfcse_ìbfoildteckde}pidfeoîemflk_cdlcepo_~deohhef_nkc̀eono_ìcedolke
gckdfeoîeono_ìceckdelgicfolcgf̀telgìbhcoic̀teondic̀teoîedjahgsdd̀egqeckdegckdfeqgfêojond̀ted�ldacèblkef_nkc̀eòe
ckdsejoseko~decgeckdeafgldd̂ ègqèblke_ìbfoildeòèdceqgfcke_iem�me�glbjdicem�vu��vu�te�didfohexgî_c_gìegqeckde
xgicfolceqgfexgìcfblc_gi{e|kde}pidfegfeckdemflk_cdlcteòeoaafgaf_ocdtèkohhefd�b_fdegqeckdelgicfolcgf̀telgìbhcoic̀te
ondic̀teoîedjahgsdd̀egqeoisegqeckdjtè_j_hofepo_~df̀e_ieqo~gfegqeckdegckdfeaofc_d̀edibjdfocd̂ekdfd_i{

��������|kdemflk_cdlceoîe}pidfepo_~delgìd�bdic_ohêojond̀eqgfelho_j̀tê_̀abcd̀tegfegckdfejoccdf̀e_ie�bd̀c_gite
of_̀_inegbcegqegfefdhoc_inecgeck_̀emnfddjdic{e|k_̀ejbcbohepo_~dfe_̀eoaah_lorhdtep_ckgbceh_j_coc_gitecgeohhelgìd�bdic_ohe
ôjond̀êbdecged_ckdfeaofcs�̀ecdfj_ioc_giegqeck_̀emnfddjdicted�ldaceòèadl_q_lohhseafg~_̂d̂e_iewdlc_gie�{�{

���������������
��������miselho_jtê_̀abcdegfegckdfejoccdfe_ie�bd̀c_gieof_̀_inegbcegqegfefdhocd̂ecgeck_̀emnfddjdicèkohherdèbr�dlcecge
jd̂_oc_gieòeoelgî_c_gieafdld̂dicecger_î_inê_̀abcdefd̀ghbc_gi{e�qèblkejoccdfefdhocd̀ecgegfe_̀eckdèbr�dlcegqeoeh_die
of_̀_inegbcegqeckdemflk_cdlc�̀èdf~_ld̀teckdemflk_cdlcejoseafgldd̂e_ieollgf̂oildep_ckeoaah_lorhdehopecgelgjahsep_ckeckde
h_dieigc_ldegfeq_h_inêdôh_id̀eaf_gfecgefd̀ghbc_giegqeckdejoccdfersejd̂_oc_giegferser_î_inê_̀abcdefd̀ghbc_gi{

�������e|kde}pidfeoîemflk_cdlcèkohhedîdo~gfecgefd̀gh~delho_j̀tê_̀abcd̀eoîegckdfejoccdf̀e_ie�bd̀c_gierdcpddieckdje
rsejd̂_oc_gitepk_lktebihd̀̀eckdeaofc_d̀ejbcbohhseonfddegckdfp_̀dtèkohherdeôj_i_̀cdfd̂erseckdemjdf_loiemfr_cfoc_gie
m̀ g̀l_oc_gie_ieollgf̂oildep_cke_c̀exgìcfblc_gie�îb̀cfse�d̂_oc_gie�fgld̂bfd̀e_iedqqdlcegieckdêocdegqeck_̀e
mnfddjdic{emefd�bd̀ceqgfejd̂_oc_gièkohherdejôde_iepf_c_intêdh_~dfd̂ecgeckdegckdfeaofcsecgeck_̀emnfddjdicteoîeq_hd̂e
p_ckeckdeadf̀giegfedic_cseôj_i_̀cdf_ineckdejd̂_oc_gi{e|kdefd�bd̀cejoserdejôdelgilbffdichsep_ckeckdeq_h_inegqeoe
lgjaho_icegfegckdfeoaafgaf_ocdêdjoîeqgfer_î_inê_̀abcdefd̀ghbc_gierbcte_ièblked~dictejd̂_oc_gièkohheafgldd̂e_ie
ô~oildegqer_î_inê_̀abcdefd̀ghbc_gieafgldd̂_iǹtepk_lkèkohherdècosd̂eadî_inejd̂_oc_gieqgfeoeadf_ĝegqe�vêos̀e
qfgjeckdêocdegqeq_h_intebihd̀̀ ècosd̂eqgfeoehgindfeadf_ĝerseonfddjdicegqeckdeaofc_d̀egfelgbfcegf̂df{e�qeoieofr_cfoc_gie
afgldd̂_ine_̀ècosd̂eabf̀boicecgeck_̀èdlc_giteckdeaofc_d̀ejoseigidckdhd̀̀eafgldd̂ecgeckdèdhdlc_giegqeckdeofr_cfocgf�̀�e
oîeonfddebagieoèlkd̂bhdeqgfehocdfeafgldd̂_iǹ{

�������e|kdeaofc_d̀èkohhèkofdeckdejd̂_ocgf�̀eqddeoîeoiseq_h_ineqdd̀ed�bohhs{e|kdejd̂_oc_gièkohherdekdĥe_ieckdeaholde
pkdfdeckde�fg�dlce_̀ehglocd̂tebihd̀̀eoigckdfehgloc_gie_̀ejbcbohhseonfdd̂ebagi{emnfddjdic̀efdolkd̂e_iejd̂_oc_gièkohhe
rdediqgfldorhdeòèdcchdjdiceonfddjdic̀e_ieoiselgbfceko~_ine�bf_̀̂_lc_gieckdfdgq{

�������e�qeckdeaofc_d̀êgeigcefd̀gh~deoê_̀abcdeckfgbnkejd̂_oc_gieabf̀boicecgeck_̀ewdlc_gie�{�teckdejdckĝegqer_î_ine
_̂̀abcdefd̀ghbc_gièkohherdeckdeqghhgp_in 
¡¢£¤¥¦§̈£¤§©ªª«¬ª«©̈¤§®¬̄°±

²�ee�³ mfr_cfoc_gieabf̀boicecgewdlc_gie�{́egqeck_̀emnfddjdic

²��ee�³ µ_c_noc_gie_ieoelgbfcegqelgjadcdice�bf_̀̂_lc_gi

²�ee�³ }ckdf e¡¶ª¤¥·̧±

ee

�qeckde}pidfeoîemflk_cdlcêgeigcèdhdlceoejdckĝegqer_î_inê_̀abcdefd̀ghbc_gitegfêgeigcèbr̀d�bdichseonfdde_ie
pf_c_inecgeoer_î_inê_̀abcdefd̀ghbc_giejdckĝegckdfeckoieh_c_noc_giteckdê_̀abcdep_hherdefd̀gh~d̂e_ieoelgbfcegqelgjadcdice
�bf_̀̂_lc_gi{

������¹º»��º�����
���������qeckdeaofc_d̀eko~dèdhdlcd̂eofr_cfoc_gieòeckdejdckĝeqgfer_î_inê_̀abcdefd̀ghbc_gie_ieck_̀emnfddjdicteoise
lho_jtê_̀abcdegfegckdfejoccdfe_ie�bd̀c_gieof_̀_inegbcegqegfefdhocd̂ecgeck_̀emnfddjdicèbr�dlcecgterbceigcefd̀gh~d̂erste
jd̂_oc_gièkohherdèbr�dlcecgeofr_cfoc_gitepk_lktebihd̀̀eckdeaofc_d̀ejbcbohhseonfddegckdfp_̀dtèkohherdeôj_i_̀cdfd̂erse

226

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

�]

_̂̀abc̀defghabdiêdĝejhabkkjfeĝejhaehagffjdlghf̀amê_aêkanjhk̂dof̂ejhaphlok̂dqabdiêdĝejharos̀kaehàtt̀f̂ajhâ_̀a
lĝ̀ajtâ_ekabud̀̀ c̀ ĥvabal̀cghlatjdagdiêdĝejhak_gssaìacgl̀aehamdêehuwal̀sex̀d̀lâjâ_̀aĵ_̀daygd̂qâjâ_eka
bud̀̀ c̀ ĥwaghlates̀lamê_â_̀aỳdkjhajdàĥêqaglcehek̂̀dehuâ_̀agdiêdĝejhv

z{|}~}�}�{bal̀cghlatjdagdiêdĝejhak_gssaìacgl̀ahjàgdsèdâ_ghafjhfodd̀ĥsqamê_â_̀atesehuajtagad̀�òk̂atjdac̀leĝejhwa
iôaehahjàx̀ĥak_gssaêaìacgl̀agt̂̀dâ_̀alĝ̀am_̀hâ_̀aehk̂êôejhajtas̀ugsajdà�oêgis̀aydjf̀ l̀ehukaigk̀lajhâ_̀afsgecwa
lekyồajdaĵ_̀dacĝ̂ d̀aeha�òk̂ejhamjoslaìaigdd̀laiqâ_̀agyysefgis̀ak̂ĝồ ajtasecêĝejhkva�jdak̂ĝồ ajtasecêĝejhka
yodyjk̀kwad̀f̀eŷajtagamdề̂ hal̀cghlatjdagdiêdĝejhaiqâ_̀aỳdkjhajdàĥêqaglcehek̂̀dehuâ_̀agdiêdĝejhak_gssa
fjhk̂êồ â_̀aehk̂êôejhajtas̀ugsajdà�oêgis̀aydjf̀ l̀ehukaigk̀lajhâ_̀afsgecwalekyồajdaĵ_̀dacĝ̂ d̀aeha�òk̂ejhv

z{|}~}�a�_̀atjd̀ujehuagud̀̀ c̀ ĥâjagdiêdĝ̀waghlaĵ_̀dagud̀̀ c̀ ĥkâjagdiêdĝ̀amê_aghagllêejhgsaỳdkjhajdàĥêqalosqa
fjhk̀ĥ̀lâjaiqaygd̂èkâjâ_ekabud̀̀ c̀ ĥwak_gssaìakỳfetefgssqàhtjdf̀gis̀aehagffjdlghf̀amê_agyysefgis̀asgmaehaghqa
fjod̂a_gxehua�odeklef̂ejhâ_̀d̀jtv

z{|}~}~a�_̀agmgdlad̀hl̀d̀laiqâ_̀agdiêdĝjd�k�ak_gssaìatehgswaghla�oluc̀ ĥacgqaìàĥ̀ d̀laoyjhaêaehagffjdlghf̀amê_a
gyysefgis̀asgmaehaghqafjod̂a_gxehua�odeklef̂ejhâ_̀d̀jtv

z{|}~}�{�������������{��{�������
z{|}~}�}�a�ê_̀daygd̂qwaĝaêkakjs̀alekfd̀̂ejhwacgqafjhkjselĝ̀aghagdiêdĝejhafjhlof̂̀laohl̀dâ_ekabud̀̀ c̀ ĥamê_aghqa
ĵ_̀dagdiêdĝejhâjam_ef_aêaekagaygd̂qaydjxel̀lâ_ĝa���â_̀agdiêdĝejhagud̀̀ c̀ ĥaujx̀dhehuâ_̀aĵ_̀dagdiêdĝejha
ỳdcêkafjhkjselĝejh�a���â_̀agdiêdĝejhkâjaìafjhkjselĝ̀lakoik̂gĥegssqaehxjsx̀afjccjha�òk̂ejhkajtasgmajdatgf̂�a
ghla���â_̀agdiêdĝejhkàcysjqacĝ̀degssqakecesgdaydjf̀lodgsados̀kaghlac̀ _̂jlkatjdak̀s̀f̂ehuagdiêdĝjd�k�v

z{|}~}�}�a�ê_̀daygd̂qwaĝaêkakjs̀alekfd̀̂ejhwacgqaehfsol̀aiqa�jehl̀daỳdkjhkajdàĥêèkakoik̂gĥegssqaehxjsx̀laehaga
fjccjha�òk̂ejhajtasgmajdatgf̂am_jk̀ayd̀k̀hf̀aekad̀�oed̀laetafjcys̀̂ àd̀sètaekâjaìagffjdl̀laehagdiêdĝejhwaydjxel̀la
_̂ĝâ_̀aygd̂qakjou_̂âjaìa�jeh̀lafjhk̀ĥkaehamdêehuâjakof_a�jehl̀dvanjhk̀ĥâjagdiêdĝejhaehxjsxehuaghagllêejhgsa
ỳdkjhajdàĥêqak_gssahĵafjhk̂êồ afjhk̀ĥâjagdiêdĝejhajtaghqafsgecwalekyồajdaĵ_̀dacĝ̂ d̀aeha�òk̂ejhahĵa
l̀kfdeìlaehâ_̀amdề̂ hafjhk̀ĥv

z{|}~}�}~a�_̀a�mh̀daghlabdf_ềf̂audgĥâjaghqaỳdkjhajdàĥêqacgl̀agaygd̂qâjaghagdiêdĝejhafjhlof̂̀laohl̀dâ_eka
�̀f̂ejha�v�wam_̀ _̂̀daiqa�jehl̀dajdafjhkjselĝejhwâ_̀akgc̀adeu_̂kajta�jehl̀daghlafjhkjselĝejhagkâ_̀a�mh̀daghla
bdf_ềf̂aohl̀dâ_ekabud̀̀ c̀ ĥv

z{|}�a�_̀aydjxekejhkajtâ_ekabd̂efs̀a�ak_gssakodxex̀â_̀ầdcehĝejhajtâ_ekabud̀̀ c̀ ĥv

����� ¡{¢{{{�¡�£�¤���¥¤{¥�{¦§¦̈¡¤¦�¥¤
z{¢}�aptâ_̀a�mh̀datgeskâjacg©̀aygqc̀ ĥkâjâ_̀abdf_ềf̂aehagffjdlghf̀amê_â_ekabud̀̀ c̀ ĥwakof_atgesod̀ak_gssaìa
fjhkel̀d̀lakoik̂gĥegsahjhỳdtjdcghf̀aghlafgok̀atjdầdcehĝejhajdwaĝâ_̀abdf_ềf̂ªkajŷejhwafgok̀atjdakokỳhkejhajta
ỳdtjdcghf̀ajtak̀dxef̀kaohl̀dâ_ekabud̀̀ c̀ ĥvaptâ_̀abdf_ềf̂às̀f̂kâjakokỳhlak̀dxef̀kwâ_̀abdf_ềf̂ak_gssauex̀a
k̀x̀halgqkªamdề̂ hahĵef̀âjâ_̀a�mh̀daìtjd̀akokỳhlehuak̀dxef̀kvaphâ_̀àx̀ĥajtagakokỳhkejhajtak̀dxef̀kwâ_̀a
bdf_ềf̂ak_gssa_gx̀ahjasegiesêqâjâ_̀a�mh̀datjdal̀sgqajdalgcgùafgok̀lâ_̀a�mh̀daìfgok̀ajtakof_akokỳhkejhajta
k̀dxef̀kva«̀tjd̀ad̀kocehuak̀dxef̀kwâ_̀a�mh̀dak_gssaygqâ_̀abdf_ềf̂agssakockalòaydejdâjakokỳhkejhaghlaghqa
¬̀ỳhk̀kaehfodd̀laehâ_̀aeĥ̀ddoŷejhaghlad̀kocŷejhajtâ_̀abdf_ềf̂ªkak̀dxef̀kva�_̀abdf_ềf̂ªkat̀̀katjdâ_̀a
d̀cgehehuak̀dxef̀kaghlâ_̀âec̀akf_̀los̀kak_gssaìà�oêgisqagl�ok̂̀lv

z{¢}�aptâ_̀a�mh̀dakokỳhlkâ_̀adj�̀f̂wâ_̀abdf_ềf̂ak_gssaìafjcỳhkĝ̀latjdak̀dxef̀kaỳdtjdc̀laydejdâjahĵef̀ajta
kof_akokỳhkejhva®_̀hâ_̀adj�̀f̂aekad̀koc̀lwâ_̀abdf_ềf̂ak_gssaìafjcỳhkĝ̀latjdà¬ỳhk̀kaehfodd̀laehâ_̀a
eĥ̀ddoŷejhaghlad̀kocŷejhajtâ_̀abdf_ềf̂ªkak̀dxef̀kva�_̀abdf_ềf̂ªkat̀̀katjdâ_̀ad̀cgehehuak̀dxef̀kaghlâ_̀âec̀a
kf_̀los̀kak_gssaìà�oêgisqagl�ok̂̀lv

z{¢}~aptâ_̀a�mh̀dakokỳhlkâ_̀adj�̀f̂atjdacjd̀â_ghā°afocosĝex̀algqkatjdad̀gkjhkaĵ_̀dâ_ghâ_̀atgoŝajtâ_̀a
bdf_ềf̂wâ_̀abdf_ềf̂acgqầdcehĝ̀â_ekabud̀̀ c̀ ĥaiqauexehuahĵas̀kkâ_ghak̀x̀halgqkªamdề̂ hahĵef̀va

z{¢}�a�ê_̀daygd̂qacgqầdcehĝ̀â_ekabud̀̀ c̀ ĥaoyjhahĵas̀kkâ_ghak̀x̀halgqkªamdề̂ hahĵef̀ak_joslâ_̀aĵ_̀daygd̂qa
tgesakoik̂gĥegssqâjaỳdtjdcaehagffjdlghf̀amê_â_̀ầdckajtâ_ekabud̀̀ c̀ ĥâ_djou_ahjatgoŝajtâ_̀aygd̂qaehêeĝehuâ_̀a
^̀dcehĝejhv

227

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

��

]̂_̀abcdebfgheibjklbmeijnhkmebmdnobpqieejehmbrsthbhtmbueoobmdkhboevehbwkloxbginmmehbhtmnyebmtbmdebpiydnmeymbztibmdeb
fgheixobythvehnehyebkhwbgnmdtrmbykroe{

]̂_̀|b}zbmdebfgheibmeijnhkmeobmdnobpqieejehmbztibnmobythvehnehyebsriorkhmbmtb~eymnthb�{��btibmdebpiydnmeymbmeijnhkmeob
mdnobpqieejehmbsriorkhmbmtb~eymnthb�{��bmdebfgheibodkuubytjsehokmebmdebpiydnmeymbztiboeivnyeobseiztijewbsintibmtb
meijnhkmnth�b�enj�riok�ueb��sehoeobnhyriiew�bkhwbytomobkmmin�rmk�uebmtbmeijnhkmnth�bnhyurwnhqbmdebytomobkmmin�rmk�uebmtb
mdebpiydnmeymxobmeijnhkmnthbtzbythorumkhmbkqieejehmo{

]̂_̀�b}hbkwwnmnthbmtbkhlbkjtrhmobsknwbrhweib~eymnthb�{��bnzbmdebfgheibmeijnhkmeobmdnobpqieejehmbztibnmobythvehnehyeb
sriorkhmbmtb~eymnthb�{��btibmdebpiydnmeymbmeijnhkmeobmdnobpqieejehmbsriorkhmbmtb~eymnthb�{��bmdebfgheibodkuubsklbmtbmdeb
piydnmeymbmdebztuutgnhqbzeeo�
����������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����� ������������������������������
�������������¡¢

£̀ ceijnhkmnthb¤ee�

b¥tmbkssunyk�ueb

¦̀ §nyehonhqb¤eebnzbmdebfgheibnhmehwobmtbythmnhrebronhqbmdebpiydnmeymxob}homirjehmobtzb~eivnye�

b¥tmbkssunyk�ueb

]̂_̀̈ �̂�yesmbkobtmdeignoebe�sieooulbsitvnwewbdeienh�bmdnobpqieejehmbodkuubmeijnhkmebtheblekibzitjbmdebwkmebtzb
~r�omkhmnkub©tjsuemnth{

]̂_̀_̂cdebfgheixobinqdmobmtbroebmdebpiydnmeymxob}homirjehmobtzb~eivnyebnhbmdebevehmbtzbkbmeijnhkmnthbtzbmdnobpqieejehmb
kieboembztimdbnhbpimnyuebªbkhwb~eymnthb�{ª{

«¬®̄°±̂£²̂̂³̂®́̄ ±°°«µ±¶·́^̧¬¶¹®́®¶µ́
]̂£²̀£bcdnobpqieejehmbodkuub�ebqtveihewb�lbmdebukgbtzbmdebsukyebgdeiebmdebºit»eymbnobutykmew�be�yurwnhqbmdkmb
»rinownymnthxobydtnyebtzbukgbirueo{b}zbmdebskimneobdkveboeueymewbki�nmikmnthbkobmdebjemdtwbtzb�nhwnhqbwnosrmebieoturmnth�bmdeb
¤eweikubpi�nmikmnthbpymbodkuubqtveihb~eymnthb¼{�{

]̂£²̀¦bceijobnhbmdnobpqieejehmbodkuubdkvebmdebokjebjekhnhqbkobmdtoebnhbp}pb½tyrjehmbp¾¿ÀÁ¾¿Àª�bÂeheikub
©thwnmnthobtzbmdeb©thmikymbztib©thomirymnth{

]̂£²̀Ãbcdebfgheibkhwbpiydnmeym�bieoseymnveul�b�nhwbmdejoeuveo�bmdenibkqehmo�boryyeootio�bkoonqho�bkhwbueqkub
iesieoehmkmnveobmtbmdnobpqieejehm{b¥enmdeibmdebfgheibhtibmdebpiydnmeymbodkuubkoonqhbmdnobpqieejehmbgnmdtrmbmdebginmmehb
ythoehmbtzbmdebtmdei�be�yesmbmdkmbmdebfgheibjklbkoonqhbmdnobpqieejehmbmtbkbuehweibsitvnwnhqbznhkhynhqbztibmdebºit»eymb
nzbmdebuehweibkqieeobmtbkoorjebmdebfgheixobinqdmobkhwbt�unqkmnthobrhweibmdnobpqieejehm�bnhyurwnhqbkhlbskljehmobwrebmtb
mdebpiydnmeymb�lbmdebfgheibsintibmtbmdebkoonqhjehm{

]̂£²̀Äb}zbmdebfgheibieÅreomobmdebpiydnmeymbmtbe�eyrmebyeimnznykmeo�bmdebsitstoewbukhqrkqebtzborydbyeimnznykmeobodkuub�eb
or�jnmmewbmtbmdebpiydnmeymbztibievnegbkmbuekombÀÆbwklobsintibmtbmdebieÅreomewbwkmeobtzbe�eyrmnth{b}zbmdebfgheibieÅreomob
mdebpiydnmeymbmtbe�eyrmebythoehmobiekothk�ulbieÅrniewbmtbzkynunmkmebkoonqhjehmbmtbkbuehwei�bmdebpiydnmeymbodkuube�eyrmeb
kuuborydbythoehmobmdkmbkiebythonomehmbgnmdbmdnobpqieejehm�bsitvnwewbmdebsitstoewbythoehmbnobor�jnmmewbmtbmdebpiydnmeymb
ztibievnegbkmbuekombÀÆbwklobsintibmtbe�eyrmnth{bcdebpiydnmeymbodkuubhtmb�ebieÅrniewbmtbe�eyrmebyeimnznykmeobtibythoehmob
mdkmbgtruwbieÅrniebÇhtguewqe�boeivnyeo�btibieosthon�nunmneob�elthwbmdeboytsebtzbmdnobpqieejehm{

]̂£²̀ab¥tmdnhqbythmknhewbnhbmdnobpqieejehmbodkuubyiekmebkbythmikymrkubieukmnthodnsbgnmd�btibkbykroebtzbkymnthbnhbzkvtibtz�b
kbmdniwbskimlbkqknhombenmdeibmdebfgheibtibpiydnmeym{

]̂£²̀|bÈhueoobtmdeignoebieÅrniewbnhbmdnobpqieejehm�bmdebpiydnmeymbodkuubdkvebhtbieosthon�nunmlbztibmdebwnoytveil�b
sieoehye�bdkhwunhq�biejtvkubtibwnostokubtz�btibe�storiebtzbseiothobmt�bdkÉkiwtrobjkmeinkuobtibmt�nybor�omkhyeobnhbkhlb
ztijbkmbmdebºit»eymbonme{

228

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

��

]̂_̀abcdefcghiejkfikclemnncemofckefchjpekckqcjrinstfcueqkqphmuejicqhcmhkjlkjichfuhflfrkmkjqrlcqvckefctfljprcqvckefcwhqxfikc
myqrpckefcghiejkfikzlcuhqyqkjqrmncmrtcuhqvflljqrmncymkfhjmnl{cdefcghiejkfikclemnnc|fcpjofrchfmlqrm|nfcmiifllckqckefc
iqyunfkftcwhqxfikckqcym}fclsiechfuhflfrkmkjqrl{c~q�fofh�ckefcghiejkfikzlcymkfhjmnlclemnncrqkcjrinstfckefc��rfhzlc
iqrvjtfrkjmncqhcuhquhjfkmh�cjrvqhymkjqrcjvckefc��rfhcemlcuhfojqsln�cmtojlftckefcghiejkfikcjrc�hjkjrpcqvckefclufijvjic
jrvqhymkjqrciqrljtfhftc|�ckefc��rfhckqc|fciqrvjtfrkjmncqhcuhquhjfkmh�{cdefc��rfhclemnncuhqojtfcuhqvflljqrmncihftjkcvqhc
kefcghiejkfikcjrckefc��rfhzlcuhqyqkjqrmncymkfhjmnlcvqhckefcwhqxfik{�dejlc�fikjqrc��{�clemnnclshojofckefckfhyjrmkjqrcqvc
kejlcgphffyfrkcsrnfllckefc��rfhckfhyjrmkflckejlcgphffyfrkcvqhcimslfcushlsmrkckqc�fikjqrc�{�{

]̂_̀a�c�vckefcghiejkfikcqhc��rfhchfifjoflcjrvqhymkjqrclufijvjimnn�ctfljprmkftcmlc�iqrvjtfrkjmn�cqhc�|sljrfllc
uhquhjfkmh���ckefchfifjojrpcumhk�clemnnc}ffuclsiecjrvqhymkjqrclkhjikn�ciqrvjtfrkjmncmrtclemnncrqkctjlinqlfcjkckqcmr�cqkefhc
ufhlqrcf�ifukcmlclfkcvqhkecjrc�fikjqrc��{�{�{cdejlc�fikjqrc��{�clemnnclshojofckefckfhyjrmkjqrcqvckejlcgphffyfrk{

]̂_̀a�a_cdefchfifjojrpcumhk�cym�ctjlinqlfc�iqrvjtfrkjmn�cqhc�|sljrfllcuhquhjfkmh��cjrvqhymkjqrcmvkfhc�ctm�lzcrqkjifckqc
kefcqkefhcumhk��c�efrchf�sjhftc|�cnm��cmh|jkhmkqhzlcqhtfh�cqhciqshkcqhtfh�cjrinstjrpcmcls|uqfrmcqhcqkefhcvqhycqvc
iqyusnlqh�cnfpmncuhqifllcjllsftc|�cmciqshkcqhcpqofhryfrkmncfrkjk��cqhckqckefcf�kfrkclsiecjrvqhymkjqrcjlchfmlqrm|n�c
rfifllmh�cvqhckefchfifjojrpcumhk�ckqctfvfrtcjklfnvcjrcmr�ctjluskf{cdefchfifjojrpcumhk�cym�cmnlqctjlinqlfclsiec
jrvqhymkjqrckqcjklcfyunq�ffl�ciqrlsnkmrkl�cqhciqrkhmikqhlcjrcqhtfhckqcufhvqhyclfhojiflcqhc�qh}clqnfn�cmrtcf�insljofn�c
vqhckefcwhqxfik�cuhqojtftckeqlfcfyunq�ffl�ciqrlsnkmrklcmrtciqrkhmikqhlcmhfcls|xfikckqckefchflkhjikjqrlcqrckefctjlinqlshfc
mrtcslfcqvclsiecjrvqhymkjqrcmlclfkcvqhkecjrckejlc�fikjqrc��{�{

]̂_̀a�cdefcjromnjtjk�cqvcmr�cuhqojljqrcqvckefcgphffyfrkclemnncrqkcjromnjtmkfckefcgphffyfrkcqhcjklchfymjrjrpcuhqojljqrl{c
�vcjkcjlctfkfhyjrftckemkcmr�cuhqojljqrcqvckefcgphffyfrkcojqnmkflcmr�cnm��cqhcjlcqkefh�jlfcjromnjtcqhcsrfrvqhifm|nf�ckefrc
kemkcuhqojljqrclemnnc|fchfojlftckqckefcf�kfrkcrfifllmh�ckqcym}fckemkcuhqojljqrcnfpmncmrtcfrvqhifm|nf{c�rclsiecimlfckefc
gphffyfrkclemnnc|fciqrlkhsft�ckqckefcvsnnflkcf�kfrkcufhyjkkftc|�cnm��ckqcpjofcfvvfikckqckefcumhkjflzcjrkfrkjqrlcmrtc
ushuqlflcjrcf�fiskjrpckefcgphffyfrk{

�������̂__̂̂�̂�����������
]̂__a_̂�qhckefcghiejkfikzlc�mljic�fhojiflctflihj|ftcsrtfhcghkjinfc��ckefc��rfhclemnnciqyufrlmkfckefcghiejkfikcmlc
vqnnq�l 

a_ �kjusnmkftc�sy
¡¢£¤¥¦§�̈©ª«£§¬

cwemlfc��cmlkfhcwnmrrjrpc®c̄syuc�syc�ffcqvc°�±����{
ccc

a² wfhifrkmpfc�mljl
¡¢£¤¥¦§�³¥¦́¥£§̈µ¥�¶̈·«¥¬

ccçccc¹cºcqvckefc��rfhzlc|stpfkcvqhckefc»qlkcqvckefc¼qh}�cml�imnisnmkftcjrcmiiqhtmrifc�jkec�fikjqrc��{½{

a¾ �kefh
¡¿¥¤́¦ÀÁ¥�§Â¥�©¥§ÂªÃ�ªÄ�́ª©³¥£¤̈§Àª£¬

cc

]̂__a²̂�qhckefcghiejkfikzlc�suunfyfrkmnc�fhojiflctfljprmkftcjrc�fikjqrc�{�{�cmrtcvqhcmr�c�slkmjrm|jnjk�c�fhojiflc
hf�sjhftcushlsmrkckqc�fikjqrc�{�{��ckefc��rfhclemnnciqyufrlmkfckefcghiejkfikcmlcvqnnq�l 
¡¢£¤¥¦§�̈©ª«£§�ªÄÅ�ª¦�Á̈¤À¤�Äª¦Å�́ª©³¥£¤̈§Àª£Æ�¢Ä�£¥́¥¤¤̈¦ÇÅ�·À¤§�¤³¥́ÀÄÀ́�¤¥¦¶À́¥¤�§ª�ÈÂÀ́Â�³̈¦§À́«·̈¦�©¥§ÂªÃ¤�ªÄ�
ª́©³¥£¤̈§Àª£�̈³³·ÇÆ¬

c�fflc�jnnc|fcrfpqkjmkftc|mlftcqrckefck�ufcqvcmttjkjqrmnclfhojifchf�sflkft{cc�ffclkhsikshfc�jnnc|fctfkfhyjrftc|mlftcqrc
kefcliqufcqvckefc�qh}{cc

229

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

��

]̂__̀âbcdefgghihcjklemndohpnqeirkiesktekdhqnegudhjveirnepcudqnecweirnexdcynpizehjplughjveircqneujgndemnpihcje{|}zeirne
~�jndeqrkllepcs�njqkineirnefdprhinpiekqewcllc�q�
�����������������������������������������������

ebnnqe�hlle�nejnvcihkinge�kqngecjeirneit�necwekgghihcjkleqndohpnedn�unqing|eebnneqidupiudne�hlle�negnindshjnge�kqngecje
irneqpc�necweirne�cd�|ee

]̂__̀�̂�cs�njqkihcjewcdemu��lnsnjiklekjgefgghihcjklemndohpnqecweirnefdprhinpi�qepcjqulikjiqe�rnjejciehjplugngehje
mnpihcje��|}ecde��|�zeqrklle�neirnekscujiehjochpngeiceirnefdprhinpie�luqeeinjee�ndpnjie�ee��e ¡zecdekqewcllc�q�
����������������������������������������¢��£��¤�����¥�������¦�����¥������������������§���¦������¦����£̈ �̈�����¦�
§��©������

ee

]̂__̀ª̂«rnjepcs�njqkihcjewcde¬kqhpemndohpnqehqe�kqngecjekeqih�ulkingequsecdeke�ndpnjikvne�kqhqzeirne�dc�cdihcjecwe
pcs�njqkihcjewcdenkpre�rkqnecweqndohpnqeqrklle�nekqewcllc�q�

mprnskihpenqhvjexrkqn �ndpnjiee�  ¡
nqhvjenonlc�snjiexrkqn �ndpnjiee�  ¡
�cjqidupihcjecpusnjiqe
xrkqn

�ndpnjiee�  ¡

xdcpudnsnjiexrkqn �ndpnjiee�  ¡
�cjqidupihcjexrkqn �ndpnjiee�  ¡

®cikle¬kqhpe�cs�njqkihcje cjnerujgdnge �ndpnjiee� ���e  ¡

]̂__̀̄ «̂rnjepcs�njqkihcjehgnjihwhngehjemnpihcje��|�ehqecjeke�ndpnjikvne�kqhqze�dcvdnqqe�ktsnjiqewcdenkpre�rkqnecwe
¬kqhpemndohpnqeqrklle�nepklpulkinge�tesulih�lthjveirne�ndpnjikvnqehgnjihwhngehjeirhqefdihplne�teirne~�jnd�qescqiednpnjie
�ugvniewcdeirne�cqiecweirne«cd�|e�cs�njqkihcje�khgehje�dnohcuqe�dcvdnqqe�ktsnjiqeqrkllejcie�nekgyuqinge�kqngecje
qu�qn�unjieu�gkinqeiceirne~�jnd�qe�ugvniewcdeirne�cqiecweirne«cd�|

]̂__̀̄ _̀̂«rnjepcs�njqkihcjehqecjeke�ndpnjikvne�kqhqekjgekjte�cdihcjqecweirnexdcynpiekdnegnlningecdecirnd�hqnejcie
pcjqidupingzepcs�njqkihcjewcdeircqne�cdihcjqecweirnexdcynpieqrklle�ne�ktk�lneiceirnen°injieqndohpnqekdne�ndwcdsngecje
ircqne�cdihcjq|e®rnefdprhinpieqrklle�nenjihilngeicepcs�njqkihcjehjekppcdgkjpne�hireirhqefvdnnsnjiewcdeklleqndohpnqe
�ndwcdsnge�rnirndecdejcieirne�cjqidupihcjexrkqnehqepcssnjpng|

]̂__̀±̂®rnercudlte�hllhjvedkinqewcdeqndohpnqecweirnefdprhinpiekjgeirnefdprhinpi�qepcjqulikjiqekdneqniewcdire�nlc�|e®rne
dkinqeqrklle�nekgyuqingehjekppcdgkjpne�hireirnefdprhinpi�qekjgefdprhinpi�qepcjqulikjiq�ejcdsklednohn�e�dkpihpnq|
�������¦����¦��������¤�����²¤��������¤���¦³���¦¦��¢������������������¤�����¦�́��

eµ°rh�hie¬e

¶·̧¹º»¼¼̂º½̂¾¿À¼Áº½» Â¿À¼̂ÃÄÅ̀ÅÅÆ
ee

]̂__̀Ç̂¾º·̧¼ÈÉ¿ÀÊºÈ̂Ëº½̂Â¼Ê·ÌÍ½É¿Ì¹¼̂¶Î̧¼ÈÉ¼É
]̂__̀Ç̀_̂Ïnhs�udqk�lneµ°�njqnqekdnehjekgghihcjeicepcs�njqkihcjewcde¬kqhpzemu��lnsnjiklzekjgefgghihcjklemndohpnqekjge
hjplugnen°�njqnqehjpuddnge�teirnefdprhinpiekjgeirnefdprhinpi�qepcjqulikjiqeghdnpiltednlkingeiceirnexdcynpizekqewcllc�q�

_̀ ®dkjq�cdikihcjekjgekuircdhÐngefuircdhÐngecuiÑcwÑic�jeidkonlekjgequ�qhqinjpnÒ
Ó̀ Ôcjveghqikjpneqndohpnqzegnghpkingenghpkingegkikekjgepcssujhpkihcjeqndohpnqzeinlnpcjwndnjpnqzexdcynpie

�n�eqhinqzekjgen°idkjniqÒ
à xndshiihjvekjgecirndewnnqedn�uhdnge�tekuircdhihnqerkohjveyudhqghpihcjecondeirnexdcynpiÒ
�̀ xdhjihjvzedn�dcgupihcjqze�lciqzekjgeqikjgkdgewcdsegcpusnjiqÒ
ª̀ xcqikvnzerkjglhjvzekjgegnlhondtÒ
`̄ µ°�njqnecwecondihsne�cd�edn�uhdhjverhvrndeirkjednvulkdedkinqzehwekuircdhÐngehjekgokjpne�teirne~�jndÒ

230

ITEM  14.



�����

�

�����	
������������������������������� !"#$� !"%$� !%"$� !!"$�&''"�()*�&' "�+��,�-�./-��0()�1)2���3�-��4�.�0���-0�2���55�6�78�9�696:;��<�=>�>?@�A8�9�
���B���	
������9�C6	�
�;�DE�F�G��H	CE6�78��IJK�J�;����6�J��	�J5�A6J��9��F�J��8	6�L;�6C6	;�
��	��	6�;�9�6�D���	��	M��8�9����B���	
����N�	6�J�E�
C	6��	��	M���N��JE�69�5�����9:6�
�:�5�J�;�
6����J5�C�J5��9N�J�;�K�55�D�C6	9
��;��	��8��JO�����O����C	99�D5���;6��8�5JK��,��2�*�03/-)��P(2�
���*30-*�+��.1.�2�4�P(�-�(�� QR# R''�S,��)�'%T&%T&' !�3)*-��U�*-��V�W& !X&&XX%"�P��0��-Y���-2��)�'QT&QT&'&'$�()*��2�)���4����-2(Z-W
F96�>	�9@� [%!X%"&#XQ\

�]

_̂ àbcadebfghijklgemnoipqcaoghipqmrstjghijdquaggeqbnoijkqvqfdnjklhinbcijdagabvnveqbipnvadenogi
dawtagvacixlivkaiyzbadiqdidawtedaciuqdivkai{dq|amv}

~̂ �uidawtedacixlivkaiyzbadhinbcizevkivkaiyzbad�gijdeqdizdevvabinjjdq�nohivkai�dmkevamv�gimqbgtovnbvg�i
a�jabgagiquijdquaggeqbnoioenxeoevliebgtdnbmaicacemnvacia�motge�aolivqivkegi{dq|amvhiqdivkaia�jabgaiqui
ncceveqbnoiebgtdnbmaimq�adnfaiqdioepevgiebia�maggiquivknvibqdpnoolipnebvnebacixlivkai�dmkevamv�gi
mqbgtovnbvg}

�̂ �ooivn�agioa�eaciqbijdquaggeqbnoigad�emaginbciqbidaepxtdgnxoaia�jabgag}
�̂� �evaiquuemaia�jabgag}
�̂� àfegvdnveqbiuaaginbcinbliqvkadiuaagimkndfacixlivkai�adveulebfi�tvkqdevliqdixliqvkadiabveveagingi

bamaggndlivqinmkea�aivkai�tgvnebnxoaiyx|amve�a}inbch
�̂� yvkadigepeondi{dq|amvsdaonvacia�jabcevtdag�

����̂~̂���qdìaepxtdgnxoai��jabgagivkaimqpjabgnveqbigknooixaivkaia�jabgagiebmtddacixlivkai�dmkevamvinbcivkai
�dmkevamv�gimqbgtovnbvgijotgiiiijadmabvi�iiii��iquivkaia�jabgagiebmtddac�
mqbgtovnbvg�i
����̂�����������������������̂i�uivkaivljaginbcioepevgiquimq�adnfaidawtedaciebi�amveqbi�� indaiebincceveqbivqivkaivljaginbci
oepevgivkai�dmkevamvibqdpnoolipnebvnebghivkaiyzbadigknooijnlivkai�dmkevamviuqdivkaincceveqbnoimqgvgiebmtddacixlivkai
�dmkevamviuqdivkaincceveqbnoimq�adnfagingigaviuqdvkixaoqz¡
¢£¤¥¦§̈©̈ª¦©«¬¬̈®¤«̄©°®±¦§«²¦¥©̈ª¦©³§°ª̈¦°̈©¥©§¦́µ§¦¬©̈®©®¶̈«¤©¤©®§¬¦§©̈®©¥«̈¥·̧©̈ª¦©§¦́µ§¦¹¦¤̈¥©¥¦̈©·®§̈ª©¤©
º¦°̈®¤©»¼½¾©«¤¬©·®§©¿ª°ª©̈ª¦©À¿¤¦§©¥ª«̄̄©§¦¹¶µ§¥¦©̈ª¦©³§°ª̈¦°̈¼Á

ii

����̂���Â�ÃÄ������Å��������������
����̂��̂��������Æ�Â�ÃÄ����
����̂��̂�̂���biebevenoijnlpabviquiÇadqiii�ÈiiÉ�ÉÉii�igknooixaipncaitjqbia�amtveqbiquivkegi�fdaapabvinbciegivkaipebeptpi
jnlpabvitbcadivkegi�fdaapabv�i�vigknooixaimdacevacivqivkaiyzbad�ginmmqtbviebivkaiuebnoieb�qema�

vkai�adveulebfi�tvkqdevligknooixaimdacevacivqivkaiyzbad�ginmmqtbvinvivkaivepaivkaia�jabgaiegiebmtddac�

����̂��̂�̂�i�uini�tgvnebnxeoevli�adveuemnveqbiegijndviquivkai�tgvnebnxoaiyx|amve�ahinbiebevenoijnlpabvivqivkai�dmkevamviquiiii
�Èiiii�igknooixaipncaitjqbia�amtveqbiquivkegi�fdaapabviuqdidafegvdnveqbiuaaginbciqvkadiuaagijnlnxoaivqivkai�adveulebfi
�tvkqdevlinbcibamaggndlivqinmkea�aivkai�tgvnebnxeoevli�adveuemnveqb�iÊkai�dmkevamv�gijnlpabvgivqivkai�adveulebfi
�tvkqdevligknooixaimdacevacivqivkaiyzbad�ginmmqtbvinvivkaivepaivkaia�jabgaiegiebmtddac�

����̂��̂��Â�ÅË�����Â�ÃÄ����
����̂��̂�̂��Ìboaggiqvkadzegainfdaachijnlpabvgiuqdigad�emagigknooixaipncaipqbvkoliebijdqjqdveqbivqigad�emagijaduqdpac�i
{nlpabvgindaictainbcijnlnxoaitjqbijdagabvnveqbiquivkai�dmkevamv�gieb�qema�i�pqtbvgitbjneciivkedvlii�iiÍÉii�icnlginuvadi
vkaieb�qemaicnvaigknooixandiebvadagvinvivkaidnvaiabvadacixaoqzhiqdiebivkainxgabmaivkadaquinvivkaioafnoidnvaijda�neoebfiudqpi
vepaivqivepainvivkaijdebmejnoijonmaiquixtgebaggiquivkai�dmkevamv�
¢£¤¥¦§̈©§«̈¦©®·©¹®¤̈ª̧̄©®§©«¤¤µ«̄©¤̈¦§¦¥̈©«²§¦¦¬©µÎ®¤¼Á

iÏii�i{adipqbvkii

����̂��̂�̂��Êkaiyzbadigknooibqvizevkkqocinpqtbvgiudqpivkai�dmkevamv�gimqpjabgnveqbivqiepjqgainijabnovliqdioewtecnvaci
cnpnfagiqbivkai�dmkevamvhiqdivqiquugavigtpgidawtagvacixliqdijnecivqimqbvdnmvqdgiuqdivkaimqgviquimknbfagiebivkaiÐqdrhi
tboaggivkai�dmkevamvinfdaagiqdikngixaabiuqtbcioenxoaiuqdivkainpqtbvgiebinixebcebficegjtvaidagqotveqbijdqmaacebf�

����̂��̂�̂Ñ�̀amqdcgiquìaepxtdgnxoai��jabgaghia�jabgagijadvnebebfivqi�tjjoapabvnoinbci�cceveqbnoi�ad�emaghinbci
gad�emagijaduqdpaciqbivkaixngegiquikqtdolidnvagigknooixain�neonxoaivqivkaiyzbadinviptvtnoolimqb�abeabvivepag�

�ÒÓ�ÔÕÖ������×ÂÖÔ��Õ�ÓÖÒØ×��ÙÚ�ÔÛÙÚ�Ó�ÛÙ×
�jamenoivadpginbcimqbceveqbgivknvipqceulivkegi�fdaapabvindaingiuqooqzg¡
¢£¤°̄µ¬¦©®̈ª¦§©̈¦§¹¥©«¤¬©°®¤¬̈®¤¥©«ÎÎ̄°«¶̄¦©̈®©̈ª¥©³²§¦¦¹¦¤̈¼Á

ii

231

ITEM  14.



232

ITEM  14.



233

ITEM  14.



    

Exhibit A 
 

City Hall Master Plan 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number 2317 
 

  08-29-2019 
 

    INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR  
CONSULTANTS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Consultants who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “Consultant” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the Architect that will be performing work for the 
City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Consultant shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly authorized to transact business at the 
location of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Consultant shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subconsultants and sub-sub consultants who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 

234

ITEM  14.



 

City Hall Master Plan 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 2317 

 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Consultant to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Consultant’s 
expense. 
 
7. Consultant shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form, 
except for E&O insurance which shall be claims made. All deviations or 
exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general liability form CG 
001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the review and 
approval of the City.  

 
 Consultant shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 

 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees, its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board 
members, employees shall be named as an additional insured on General 
Liability Policies for all classes of consultants. 
 
Consultants shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 
 
 

235

ITEM  14.



 

City Hall Master Plan 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 2317 

 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Consultant shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other negligent acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Consultant. Consultant shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 
work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Consultant’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Consultant and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Consultant’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Consultant agrees to defend (for all non-professional claims), 
indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, and employees working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including 
claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected 
and appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not limited to, damages arising by 
reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damages, 
which arises out of the work and/or services provided by the Consultant to the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent 
arising out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Consultant, its agents, 
employees, subconsultants or others working on behalf of the Consultant.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way responsible for the 
injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the Consultant, its officers, 
employees, subconsultants, and others affiliated with the Consultant due to 
accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in person or 
property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the Consultant 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent caused by 
the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 

236

ITEM  14.



 

City Hall Master Plan 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 2317 

 
The Consultant represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Consultant will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subconsultants and others affiliated with the Consultant to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Consultant hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the Consultant or 
anyone claiming through or under the Consultant by way of subrogation or 
otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or any other 
casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Consultant’s employees. This 
provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect to loss 
or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out of the work 
performed under this contract. The Consultant’s policies of insurance (except for 
Professional Liability) shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that 
such release shall not adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the 
right of the Consultant to recover thereunder. 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
 
 
  

237

ITEM  14.



 

City Hall Master Plan 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 2317 

 
EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Consultant does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
Per claim and in the aggregate 
 
  

238

ITEM  14.



 

City Hall Master Plan 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 2317 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees, its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board 
members, employees, are included as Additional Insureds, including ongoing 
operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and completed operations CG 2037 07 
04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

239

ITEM  14.



 

City Hall Master Plan 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 2317 

 
CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 

 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Consultant agrees to furnish the City with 
30 days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
coverage and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of 
premium. 
 
  

240

ITEM  14.



 

City Hall Master Plan 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 2317 

  

241

ITEM  14.



 

City Hall Master Plan 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 2317 

 
  

242

ITEM  14.



 

City Hall Master Plan 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 2317 

 

243

ITEM  14.



 

City Hall Master Plan 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 2317 

 

244

ITEM  14.



245

ITEM  14.



246

ITEM  14.



247

ITEM  14.



248

ITEM  14.



249

ITEM  14.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable  Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, EI, PhD 
 
 DATE: August 29, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project  
  Project No. PI-039-3208 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, August 27, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2019 
Peter Melendy Park Renovation Pro. A total of two (2) bids were received, with Veith 
Construction Corporation the low bidder: 
 

 
Base Bid 

K. Cunningham Construction Co., Inc. $356,000.00 

Vieth Construction Corp. $224,575.00 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $264,000.00. Veith Construction 
Corporation of Cedar Falls, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $224,575.00. 
Attached is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
We recommend acceptance of the lowest bid from Veith Construction Corporation in the 
amount of $224,575.00. On September 3rd, 2019, the Contract, Bonds and Insurance 
Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  
  

250

ITEM  15.



2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project ENGINEERING DIVISION
CITY PROJECT NO. PI - 039 - 3208 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Bid Tab CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

Bid Opening: 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, August 27, 2019

ITEM UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL

NO. PRICE COST PRICE COST PRICE COST
1 Peter Melendy Park Renovation LS 1.0 264,000.00$ 264,000.00$      224,575.00$ 224,575.00$      356,000.00$ 356,000.00$      

K. Cunningham Const. Co., IncEngineering Estimate

DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY

Veith Construction Corporation

$264,000.00 $224,575.00 $356,000.00TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

251

ITEM  15.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: August 29, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project 
  Project No. PI-039-3208 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract, the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds, Certificates of Insurance, and Form of Proposal with Veith 
Construction Corporation for the construction of the 2019 Peter Melendy Park 
Renovation Project. 
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Veith Construction Corporation for the construction of the 2019 Peter Melendy Park 
Renovation Project. This project involves the renovation of Peter Melendy Park. The 
renovation will include the installation of approximately 730 square yards of brick pavers 
of assorted colors (supplied by the City), approximately 470 square yards of PCC 
sidewalk removal, tree plantings, amenities and sodding. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  

 
 
 
 

252

ITEM  16.



253

ITEM  16.



254

ITEM  16.



255

ITEM  16.



256

ITEM  16.



257

ITEM  16.



258

ITEM  16.



259

ITEM  16.



260

ITEM  16.



261

ITEM  16.



262

ITEM  16.



263

ITEM  16.



264

ITEM  16.



265

ITEM  16.



266

ITEM  16.



267

ITEM  16.



268

ITEM  16.



269

ITEM  16.



270

ITEM  16.



271

ITEM  16.



272

ITEM  16.



273

ITEM  16.



274

ITEM  16.



275

ITEM  16.



276

ITEM  16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: August 29th, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Owen5 Facility 
  Lot 16, Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I 
 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal maintenance 
and repair agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for Owen 5, LLC located at Lot 16, Northern Cedar 
Falls Industrial Park Phase I and finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering 
Division recommends the agreement be accepted by the City Council and recorded at 
the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

277

ITEM  17.



278

ITEM  17.



279

ITEM  17.



280

ITEM  17.



281

ITEM  17.



282

ITEM  17.



283

ITEM  17.



284

ITEM  17.



285

ITEM  17.



286

ITEM  17.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Brown, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: August 29, 2019 

 SUBJECT:  Resolution Approving Condemnation 
 
On June 18, 2018 Council approved a change order relative to the 2018 Street 

Construction project.  This change order specifically authorized construction of the 

extension to Cyber Lane in Cedar Falls.  As Mayor and Council are aware, in order to 

complete the work on Cyber Lane, a temporary easement is necessary which will affect 

Lot 22 in Technology Park, Phase II, owned by JKC Investments, LLC.  Negotiations 

with the owner have reached an impasse and it is necessary to proceed with 

condemnation. 

 

Attached therefore please find a Resolution authorizing condemnation, if necessary, in 

order to proceed with this public improvement project. 

 

Staff recommends that Council adopt the attached Resolution. 

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.  

287

ITEM  18.



1 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT, AUTHORIZING 

ACQUISITION OF PRIVATE PROPERTY FOR SAID PROJECT, AND 

ESTABLISHING JUST COMPENSATION 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls Iowa, previously approved and 

ordered construction of certain public improvements known as the 2018 Street Improvement 

Program; and 

 

WHEREAS, improvements more particularly described as the Cyber Lane Extension, which 

consist of certain right-of-way improvements on Cyber Lane, were approved by change order as a 

part of the City’s 2018 Street Improvement Program (the “project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, requires certain property 

interests to carry out said project, including the following described property owned by JKC 

Investments, LLC, as depicted on the acquisition plat attached as Exhibit A and by this made a part 

of this resolution: 

 

Temporary Construction Easement: 

 

That part of Lot No. 22 in "Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II" in the City of 

Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southwest corner of said Lot No. 22; thence along the West line of 
said Lot No. 22 North 00°01¾' East a distance of 274.0 feet; thence along the 
Westerly line of said Lot No. 22 Northerly 96.54 feet along a curve concave Easterly 
having a radius of 367.00 feet, a central angle of 15°04¼' and a long chord of North 
07°33¾' East 96.25 feet; thence along said Westerly line North 15°06' East a distance 
of 83.65 feet; thence along the Northwesterly line of said Lot No. 22 Northeasterly 
60.44 feet along a curve concave Southerly having a radius of 55.00 feet, a central 
angle of 62°57'52" and a long chord of North 46°34'50" East 57.45 feet; thence South 
15°06' West a distance of 143.94 feet; thence South 08°14'21" East a distance of 
171.30 feet; thence South 03°03'12" West a distance of 181.43 feet to the South line 
of said Lot No. 22; thence along said South line North 89°58¼' West a distance of 
53.70 feet to the point of beginning.  Contains 23,045 square feet. The West line of 
said Lot No. 22 is assumed to bear North 00°01¾' East for this description. 
 

(“necessary property interest”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City obtained an appraisal from Rally Appraisal, LLC, for purposes of 

negotiating a voluntary acquisition for the necessary property interests for the project; and 

 

WHEREAS, said appraisal has been provided to the owner of the necessary property interest; 

and 

 

288

ITEM  18.



2 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has reviewed the appraisal 

and is fully advised; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, now deems it appropriate to 

approve the project’s final site location and authorize the acquisition of property interests that may be 

necessary to achieve the public purpose of the project. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

Section 1. The public improvement project being constructed as part of the City’s 2018 

Street Improvement Program and known as the Cyber Lane Extension is hereby found to be a project 

with a public purpose and is reasonable and necessary to serve the public interest. The final site 

location of the improvements for the project is approved. 

 

Section 2. It is hereby determined to be reasonable and necessary to acquire the 

necessary property interest for the completion of the project.  To complete acquisition of the 

necessary property interest the use of eminent domain powers is hereby approved.  It is specifically 

found that there is a reasonable expectation that the project will achieve its public purpose, will be 

completed, will comply with all applicable standards and obtain all necessary permits. 

 

Section 3. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby finds just 

compensation for the necessary property interest to be in the amount of $6,913. 

  

 Section 4. The prior negotiations between the Department of Community Development 

and the private property owner for the acquisition of the necessary property interest are found to have 

been based upon the just compensation established herein, and such negotiations are hereby 

approved, ratified, and confirmed as good faith negotiations for the necessary property interest.   

 

Section 5.  A final offer for the voluntary purchase of the necessary property interest is 

hereby authorized.   

 

Section 6. The City Attorney and the law firm of Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., 100 Court 

Avenue, Suite 600, Des Moines, Iowa, 50309, are hereby authorized and directed to do all things 

necessary to acquire the necessary property interest if such final offer is not accepted, including 

acquisition by eminent domain on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls. 

 

 ADOPTED this 3rd day of September, 2019.        

 

 

        ___________________________ 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

289

ITEM  18.



3 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

)  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution Number _________ duly 

and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the 3rd day of September, 2019. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ______ day of _________________, 2019. 

 

 

              

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

01626247-1\10283-172 

290

ITEM  18.



EXHIBIT A

291

ITEM  18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

 DATE: August 28, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 1931 Iowa 
Street 

 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015. The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence. The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties 
converting to owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program was developed initially through the City established Rental 
Task Force. 
 
Mary Lawrence purchased 1931 Iowa Street on August 19, 2019. The new owner has 
submitted an application, attached, to be considered for the Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program. This single family home meets the requirements of the 
program: has been utilized as a rental since 2001, falls within the program’s geographical 
boundaries, is Zoned R-2, and is located in a block with less than 75% rentals. 
 
Mary Lawrence is proposing to use funds from the program to replace and expand the 
existing broken driveway, replace a garage door, replace three egress windows, and to 
remove one tree next to the home to allow for the improvements. Based on the submitted 
bids from Iowa Flatworks, Christie Door Company, and Steinfeldt Painting, the estimated 
cost of the improvements listed is $9,251.00.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving 
this property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000.00 with the placement of a lien on the 
property for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if 
sold prior to the end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council 
approval with the balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the 
City of the improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This 
approval is subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection). 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director; Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

292

ITEM  19.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

 
Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $ 10,000.00 

 
Date:    

 
RE: Property located at: 1931 Iowa Street 

and legally described as RAILROAD ADDITION C F LOT 2 BLK 10 
 

 

 
 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners: Mary Lawrence (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a Rental to Owner 
Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed upon the above-
described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
 

293

ITEM  19.



E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 
60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   

   
Mary Lawrence   

OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2019, by Mary 
Lawrence. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

294

ITEM  19.



295

ITEM  19.



August 26, 2019


Hello,


I was thrilled to discover the rental conversion program just when I was beginning to look for a 
small older home to purchase here in Cedar Falls.  As there is a lot of work to be done to 
renovate the inside of the house, without these funds, the outside would have been about the 
last thing I would have been attending to.  I am grateful for the opportunity to immediately get 
going on making the exterior as lovely as all the other houses on my street.


My vision is first and foremost to get a driveway put in, as there is now only a very small broken 
concrete patch which does not connect to the garage.  A large tree next to the house will be 
removed to allow for this, and the other large tree trimmed away from the roof and side of the 
house.  The damaged garage door will also be replaced.


There are 3 basement windows that no doubt are the originals put in when the house was built 
in 1939.  They are very unsightly and have mega-caulking and plastic contraptions put over 
them, not to mention they leak into the basement.  These are to be replaced.  


With the placement of some shrubs, perennials, at least one lilac bush (I love lilacs), and a few 
strategic potted plants, I believe this sweet little home will be a jewel of the neighborhood.  
And, the inside is going to be pretty great as well.  Home Sweet Home.


Mary Lawrence

296

ITEM  19.



297

ITEM  19.



298

ITEM  19.



299

ITEM  19.



300

ITEM  19.



301

ITEM  19.



 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

  

 

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: August 28, 2019 

 SUBJECT: MET Transit Downtown Shuttle Bus Service  
 
The Downtown shuttle bus just completed its weekend evening summer service at the end of 
August. This service is a part of the Mayor’s on-going effort to alleviate the parking concerns 
in the downtown. City staff has been working with MET Transit to extend this shuttle service 
in downtown Cedar Falls on Thursday, Friday and Saturday evenings through the holiday 
shopping season. 
 
The summer services provided 176 rides over the past three months for the customers and 
theater patrons in downtown Cedar Falls. Though the summer months did not produce a lot 
of rides, there were positive comments about the downtown shuttle and Community Main 
Street continues to promote this service. Staff believes extending this service into the fall and 
winter months will assist in the parking demand by providing rides to the downtown 
businesses and holiday events. A new MET bus is due to arrive in September and will be 
used for this service. 
  
The shuttle service extension will begin on Thursday, September 5, 2019 and run through 
January 18, 2020. The hours of operation will begin at 5:30 pm to 9:30 pm on Thursday, 
Friday and Saturday nights. The cost for the weekend service is $10,736.80. This is based on 
MET’s operational fee of $42.87 per hour. This service will not run on Thanksgiving Day. City 
staff is working with Community Main Street to provide a cost share for this service. The 
Community Main Street Board voted to contribute up to 25% of the cost for this shuttle 
service. The city’s cost will be provided through the city’s general operating fund.  
 
This route is a shuttle service from downtown Cedar Falls to the Gateway Park parking lot 
and surrounding streets. MET has timed this route for a 15 minute loop using Clay Street, 
W. 6th Street and Main Street. There is no cost to the riders who wish to use this shuttle 
service. Therefore, the Planning and Community Services Division recommends approval of 
the downtown shuttle bus service extension agreement.     
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me at 
this office. 

302

ITEM  20.



303

ITEM  20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: August 27, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Agreement for Administration Support of the Housing Choice Voucher  
  Program 
   
   
Cedar Falls participates in the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program utilizing 
federal funds to provide rent assistance to qualified households.  The City currently has 
216 active vouchers.  We have recently been operating the program with one full time 
staff person, with some part time assistance and inspections completed by Fire 
Operations division.  Our full time person took a position outside of the City, with 
INRCOG.  We are working to replace and fill the position and have two City staff 
fulfilling some duties, but during this interim period it is important to have some 
oversight by a Section 8-experienced person to ensure adequate administration of the 
program.  We approached INRCOG seeking an agreement for four hours a week, to 
have our former staff person continue assisting the City.  They are agreeable.  Attached 
is an agreement for support services September through November.    
 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 

304

ITEM  21.



305

ITEM  21.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 27, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Termination of Real Estate Purchase Agreement – DS Warehouse, LLC 
 
 
On August 21, 2017, City Council approved a Real Estate Purchase Agreement with DS 
Warehouse, LLC. The location of the city-owned lot to be purchased by DS Warehouse, 
LLC was Lot 1 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I (see attached map). The 
Agreement indicated a purchase price of $145,839, which represented the fair market 
value of the property. DS Warehouse, LLC, was proposing to construct an approximate 
25,000 square foot building to be used for a gymnastics center on the site. After 
approval of the Real Estate Purchase Agreement, the project did not commence on the 
property. The purchaser did not pay the City the required $145,839 per the Agreement, 
and the City did not transfer the land to DS Warehouse, LLC. 
 
Recently, the City has been approached by a developer who is interested in this 
particular lot for a development project. City staff has reached out to DS Warehouse, 
LLC, and they have indicated that they will not be developing this property, and have no 
objection to the City transferring the property to another developer in order to develop 
the property. 
 
The purchaser’s attorney has provided a Termination of Real Estate Purchase 
Agreement. This document has been reviewed by City Attorney Kevin Rogers, and is 
acceptable to both parties. If approved by City Council, it would terminate the Real 
Estate Purchase Agreement entered into between the two parties in 2017. This would 
then allow for the City to move forward with an agreement with a new developer to 
acquire the lot for a development project. 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the Termination of Real Estate 
Purchase Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and DS Warehouse, LLC. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 

306

ITEM  22.



Poplar Hollow Ln

Arbors Dr

Arbor Way Blvd

Timber Cove Dr

W Viking Rd

Pro
duc

tion
Dr

Venture Way

I

Ashley Furniture
Distribution Center

Property Location

DS Warehouse, LLC
Termination of Real
Estate Purchase Agreement

Bossard

Target
Distribution

Center

307

ITEM  22.



308

ITEM  22.



309

ITEM  22.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 27, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Resolution Supplementing Resolution No. 21,663  
 
 

 
On June 21, 2019, City Council passed Resolution No. 21,590, approving pre-
annexation agreements with the property owners within the territory to be annexed that 
included an agreement to a transition of the imposition of City taxes. Then on August 
19, 2019, City Council passed Resolution 21,663, approving the voluntary annexation of 
property from unincorporated Black Hawk County into the City of Cedar Falls. 
Mistakenly, Resolution 21,663 did not include the provision reflecting the transition of 
the imposition of City taxes, as was agreed to within the pre-annexation agreement. 
 
Attached you will find a resolution supplementing Resolution 21,663, which includes the 
language regarding the transition of the imposition of City taxes that was not on the 
resolution approved on August 19, 2019. Please note that all other provisions of 
Resolution 21,663 adopted on August 19, 2019 are confirmed. 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt and approve a resolution supplementing 
Resolution 21,663. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this resolution, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

310

ITEM  23.



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

RESOLUTION SUPPLEMENTING RESOLUTION NO. 21,663 

 

WHEREAS, on the 19th day of August, 2019, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, passed and approved a Resolution Approving the Voluntary Annexation of Property to the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, Which Lies Within Two (2) Miles of the Corporate Boundaries of the 

City of Hudson, Iowa, Resolution No. 21,663; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 21,663 did not include a provision reflecting the transition of 

the imposition of city taxes; and 

 

WHEREAS, on the 21st day of June, 2019, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, passed Resolution No. 21,590 approving pre-annexation agreements with the property 

owners within the territory to be annexed that included an agreement to a transition of the 

imposition of city taxes; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 21,663 should now be supplemented to include a provision 

regarding the transition of the imposition of city taxes in the annexed territory. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That Resolution No. 21,663 is hereby supplemented as follows: 

 

The following partial exemption from taxation for City taxes for a period of ten 

(10) years following the final order of the City Development Board shall apply to 

the annexed territory: 

 

  1. For the first and second year, seventy-five percent (75%). 

  2. For the third and fourth year, sixty percent (60%). 

  3. For the fifth and sixth year, forty-five percent (45%). 

  4. For the seventh and eighth year, thirty percent (30%). 

  5. For the ninth and tenth year, fifteen percent (15%). 

 

2. That all other provisions of Resolution No. 21,663 adopted by this Council on 

August 19, 2019, are confirmed. 

311

ITEM  23.



2 

 

 

3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to file a copy of this resolution with the Office of 

the Recorder of Black Hawk County, Iowa, after notification from the City 

Development Board that the annexation is complete. 

 

 

 

 ADOPTED this _____ day of _________________, 20__. 

 

        

 

        ______________________________ 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

  

312

ITEM  23.



3 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution Number ________ duly 

and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the ______ day of _________________, 

20__. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of _______, 2019. 

 

 

              

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

313

ITEM  23.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: August 29, 2019  

SUBJECT: Land Use Map Amendment 
  West Fork Crossing  

 
REQUEST: 
 

Land Use Map Amendment from Greenways/Floodplain and Neighborhood 
Commercial to Low Density Residential (Case #LU19-002) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Money Pit LLC, ISG Engineer  

LOCATION: 
 

119 acre parcel in the 1700-2000 block of Union Road 

 

 
The applicant has submitted a request to amend the future land use map from Neighborhood 
Commercial/Mixed use and Greenways and Floodplain to Low Density Residential for the West 
Fork Crossing development on portions of land along Union Road. The land use map 
amendment will allow the development of a new residential subdivision. The Planning and 
Zoning Commission has considered the request and recommended approval.  

 
Staff requests that Council set a date for public hearing on September 16, 2019 to formally 
consider the change in the future land use map. A full staff report and summary of the Planning 
and Zoning Commission meetings will be provided to City Council prior the public hearing. 
    

  

Existing Land Use Proposed Land Use 

314

ITEM  24.



 
RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 
RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT TO THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP  
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND DIRECTING  

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 
Commission to amend the Future Land Use Map from Greenways/Floodplain and 
Neighborhood Commercial to Low Density Residential, for property located in the 
vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road, and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said change in the 
land use, and 
 
 WHEREAS, said land use map serves as a guide for future development, and 
 
 WHEREAS, said land use map amendment will allow the development of a new 
residential subdivision, and    
 

WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council 
to have a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposed 
amendment to the Future Land Use Map from Greenways/Floodplain and 
Neighborhood Commercial to Low Density Residential for said property. 
 
And that said public hearing shall be held on the 16th day of September, 2019, at 7:00 
o’clock P.M., in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  
The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the 
Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior 
to the hearing date. 
 
 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of September, 2019. 
 

 
_________________________ 

                                                                            James P. Brown, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
        
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

315

ITEM  24.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: August 29, 2019  

SUBJECT: Rezoning Request 
  West Fork Crossing  

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential (Case #RZ19-002) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Money Pit LLC, ISG Engineer  

LOCATION: 
 

119 acre parcel in the 1700-2000 block of Union Road  

 

 
The applicant has submitted a request to 
rezone 119 acres of land between Union 
Road and Waterbury Drive from A-1, 
Agricultural to R-1, Residential District. 
The rezoning will allow the development 
of a new residential subdivision. Staff 
recommended approval of the land use 
and rezoning change. The Planning and 
Zoning Commission has considered the 
request and recommended approval.  
 
Staff requests that Council set a public 
hearing date for September 16, 2019 to 
formally consider the rezoning request. A 
full staff report and summary report of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
meetings will be provided to City Council 
prior the public hearing. 
 
 
     

 

316

ITEM  25.



 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 26, ZONING, CODE OF ORDINANCES  

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND DIRECTING  

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to change the zoning from A-1 Agricultural to R-1, Residential as described below, 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said change in the zoning, 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, said zoning change will allow the development of a new residential 

subdivision, and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 

a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing to amend Section 26-118, 

District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III Districts and District Regulations, of 

Chapter Twenty-six (26), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by 

removing and changing from the  A-1 Agricultural District, and placed in the R-1, Residence 

District on the following described real estate: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast (SE) corner of the West Half of the Southeast Quarter (W1/2 

SE1/4) of said Section 15; thence along the East line of said West Half of the Southeast Quarter 

(W1/2 SE1/4) North 00° 08' 50" West for a distance of 1326.32 feet to the North line of the 

Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (SW1/4 SE1/4), the Point of Beginning; thence 

continuing along said East line, North 00° 08' 50" West for a distance of 1326.18 feet to the 

North line of said Southeast Quarter (SE1/4); thence along said North line, South 89° 46' 03" 

West for a distance of 1815.80 feet to the Southwest (SW) corner of Lexington Heights 5th 

Addition, Cedar Falls, Iowa; thence continuing along said North line,  North 87° 41' 43" West 

for a distance of 17.43 feet to the East line of Lot 2, Robinson’s Minor Plat; thence along said 

East line North 00° 02' 29" West for a distance of 796.84 feet; thence North 50° 48' 28" West for 

a distance of 1057.37 feet; thence South 01° 17' 24" West for a distance of 145.38 feet to 

Northeast (NE) corner of the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SW1/4 NW1/4) of 

said Section 15 being a westerly line of said Lot 2; thence along said westerly line, South 00° 09' 

03" East for a distance of 675.40 feet to a point 648 feet distant northerly from the East/West 

Quarter line; thence along the line 648 feet distant northerly from the East/West Quarter line, 

South 89° 44' 19" West for a distance of 1254.18 feet to a point on the easterly right of way line 

of Union Road; thence along said right of way line, South 00° 00' 10" East for a distance of 

317

ITEM  25.



648.01 feet to the North line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 15; thence along said 

North line,  North 89° 44' 19" East for a distance of 1255.85 feet to the West line of the East Half 

of the Southwest Quarter (E1/2 SW1/4) of said Section 15 per Robinson’s Minor Plat; thence 

along said West line, South 00° 00' 22" East for a distance of 1326.46 feet to the South line of 

the North Half of the Southwest Quarter (N1/2 SW1/4) of said Section 15; thence along said 

South line, North 89° 46' 52" East a distance of 1337.37 feet to the West line of said Southeast 

Quarter (SE1/4); thence along the South line of the North Half of said Southeast Quarter (N1/2 

SE1/4), North 89° 45' 30" East a distance of 1318.98 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

Containing 119 acres, subject to easements of record. 

 

And that said public hearing shall be held on the 16th day of September, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock 

P.M., in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  The City Clerk 

is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 

Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of September, 2019. 

 

 

_________________________ 

                                                                            James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

318

ITEM  25.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Brown, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: August 29, 2019 

 SUBJECT:  48 Hour Parking Ordinance Amendment 
 
 

At the August 5, 2019 Committee of the Whole Meeting, council directed staff to draft 

amendments to Section 23-366(a)(17) of the Code of Ordinances.  Attached please find 

an Ordinance that includes the language adopted by Council.  Very minor word changes 

were made for the sake of clarity. 

 

This amendment is meant to apply to all vehicles, regardless of type, so Section 23-374 

is no longer necessary.  Thus, that section has been deleted in this Ordinance. 

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.  

319

ITEM  26.



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE:  (1).  REPEALING SUBSECTION (A)(17), OF SECTION 23-366, 

PARKING PROHIBITED IN SPECIFIC PLACES AND ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION 

(A)(17) IN LIEU THEREOF; AND (2).  REPEALING SECTION 23-374, PARKING OF 

LARGE TRUCKS IN STREETS AND MUNICIPAL PARKING LOTS IN ITS ENTIRETY; ALL 

OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, 

OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

      

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Subsection (a)(17) of Section 23-366, Parking Prohibited in Specific Places, of 

Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 

Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed 

in its entirety and a new Subsection (a)(17) is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 23-366.   Parking prohibited in specified places. 

(a)  No person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle, except when necessary to avoid conflict with other 
traffic or in compliance with the law or the directions of a police officer or traffic control device, in any 
of the following places:  

(1)  On a sidewalk.  

(2)  In front of a public or private driveway.  

(3)  Within an intersection.  

(4)  Within five feet of a fire hydrant.  

(5)  On a crosswalk.  

(6)  Within ten feet upon the approach to any flashing beacon, stop sign or traffic control signal 
located at the side of a roadway.  

320

ITEM  26.



2 
 

(7)  Between a safety zone and the adjacent curb or within ten feet of points on the curb 
immediately opposite the ends of a safety zone, unless the traffic division has indicated a 
different length by signs or markings.  

(8)  Within 50 feet of the nearest rail or a railroad crossing, except when parked parallel with such 
rail and not exhibiting a red light.  

(9)  Within 20 feet of the driveway entrance of any fire station, and on the side of a street opposite 
the entrance to any fire station, within 75 feet of such entrance, only when properly signposted.  

(10)  Alongside or opposite any street excavation or obstruction when stopping, standing or parking 
would obstruct traffic.  

(11)  On the roadway side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of a street.  

(12)  Upon any bridge or other elevated structure upon a highway or within a highway tunnel.  

(13)  At any place where official signs prohibit stopping or parking.  

(14)  Upon any street within the corporate limits of the city when parking is prohibited by a general 
ordinance of uniform application relating to the removal of snow and ice from the streets.  

(15)  In front of a curb cut or ramp which is located on public or private property, in a manner which 
blocks access to the curb cut or ramp.  

(16)  On that part of any street in the city between the curb line, if there be a curb, and the sidewalk 
line of the abutting property, nor shall any vehicle be parked on that part of any street not having 
a curb between the edge of the traveled portion of such street and the sidewalk line of the 
abutting property.  

(17)  On any street in the city for a continuous period of more than 48 hours. For purposes of this 
subsection, parking for a continuous period includes any absence for less than two hours.  
Upon expiration of the 48 hour period of continuous parking, a vehicle parked closer than 2500 
feet from the prior location or returned to the prior location in less than 48 hours, is a violation of 
this subsection.  A vehicle in violation of this subsection shall constitute a nuisance to be abated 
as provided by law, or members of the police operations division may impound such vehicle as 
provided in this article.  

 (Code 2017, § 26-261) 

       Section 2.  Section 23-374, Parking of Large Trucks in Streets and Municipal Parking Lots, 

of Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 

Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed 

in its entirety.   

Sec. 23-374.   Parking of large trucks in streets and municipal parking lots. 

 

INTRODUCED:  ___________________________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:  ______________________________________________ 

321

ITEM  26.



3 
 

ADOPTED:  _______________________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                             ___________________________ 

                                                                                              James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

 

322

ITEM  26.



 
Councilor Robert Green 

 Cedar Falls City Council (At Large) 
220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 August 21, 2019 

Mayor Jim Brown 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Subject: Referral for Policy on Naming of Streets in Cedar Falls 
 
Mayor Brown, 
 
City streets are an infrastructure investment which can last generations; as a result, the names               
chosen for the streets achieve near-immortality. For this reason, I request to refer to city staff the                 
development of a policy which names city streets after the annually-awarded Representative            
Citizens of Cedar Falls, whenever possible and practical.  

From the plaque in City Hall, I believe the Representative Citizen last names are: 

Miller 
Bairnson 
Walmsley 
Stanard 
Boyle 
Beisner 
Larsen 
Kelly 
Wyth 
McKinley 

Nordly 
Melichar 
Voorhees 
Davis 
Corning 
Fink 
Fenner 
Berg 
McCutcheon 
Jensen 

Slife 
Behn 
Lindaman 
Winter 
Morris 
Cutler 
Diemer 
Koob 
Mudd 
Andersen 

Pattersen 
Kreig 
Deaver 
Chambers 
Taylor 
Bartlett 
Coloff 
Hardman 
Crews 
Taylor 

Willoughby 
Redfern 
Beach 
Nicholds 
Diamond 
Lehman 
Christofferson 
Hearst 
Kelley 
 

 

This list for street names should generate little controversy, as the recipients have already been               
selected through a careful vetting process. The use of this list for naming would allow the city to                  
spotlight the importance and value of voluntary civic service, and would help to foster a sense of                 
place which is unique to Cedar Falls and its remarkable history of active, engaged citizens. 

Thank you for considering my request. 

Sincerely,  

 
Robert Green 
Cedar Falls City Council (At Large) 323

ITEM  28.



 
Councilor Robert Green 

 Cedar Falls City Council (At Large) 
220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 August 22, 2019 

Mayor Jim Brown 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Subject: Referral for Naming of the Public Safety Services Property 
 
Mayor Brown, 

During the past several months, I’ve heard the new facility for the Public Safety Services 
Department called by a variety of names, with ‘Public Safety Building’ and ‘Public Safety 
Facility” being the most common. 

Administrator Gaines has advised me that Council has not adopted a formal name for this               
building. For this reason, I refer to the Council a request to officially designate this property as                 
the “Cedar Falls Public Safety Center”, which could be abbreviated as the PSC (which I do not                 
believe is in use by any other city facility).  

I am proposing this because “Public Safety Center” captures this property’s use as the center of                
Cedar Falls’s public safety service functions, including both headquarters and operations, whereas            
‘building’ and ‘facility’ do not strike up an image of activity and service.  

The signage at this property currently only reads “Cedar Falls Public Safety”, so I believe no                
changes would be required at the site to designate the property as the Cedar Falls Public Safety                 
Center if the City Council so chooses. 

Thank you for considering my request. 

Sincerely,  

 
Robert Green 
Cedar Falls City Council (At Large) 

324

ITEM  29.



From: Tom Blanford 

Sent: Friday, August 23, 2019 9:54 AM 
To: Jim Brown 

Subject: Re: Barbara Brown 

Please consider this a formal referral request from me.  

Thomas M. Blanford  
 
On Aug 23, 2019, at 9:32 AM, Tim Howery <howery@voyager.net> wrote: 

Recently my sister Barbara Brown passed away. She was a community activist and proponent of many 
issues involving the Black Hawk County community at large.  And even that was not enough as she 
served on several state commissions. 
  
She is the reason  the art that blesses the community is there, which you should know enhances the 
community at large. 
  
As her brother, it is my hope you will unanimously vote to place a bronze plaque to honor her on Main 
St.      I think she deserves it based on her unmatched dedication to your community. 
  
There is indeed so much you don’t know about her early life that makes her story so unique. 
  
Please consider this as a sincere request for your consideration with much support. 
  
Barbara is THE reason you have public art downtown. 
  
Thank you,  
 
Tim Howery 

325

ITEM  30.


	Top
	1. Minutes-08/19/19
	190819MINUTES

	2. Ord. #2953, TIF-CF Unified Highway 58 Corridor UR Area
	2953-TIF Amend No. 5

	3. Appointment 9/3/19
	1-Appointments Council Memo
	2-Comm Center &amp; Sr Serv - Schwerdtfeger 8-6-19

	4. Committee of the Whole Minutes 8/19/19
	Comm of the Whole 08 19 19

	5. Planner II Civil Service certified list
	Planner II CertList8-2019

	6. Monthly Report - July 2019
	Monthly Report - July 2019

	7. Tobacco Permit 9/3/19
	Tobacco Permits 09032019

	8. Liquor Licenses 9/3/19
	Liquor Beer 9-3-19

	9. Estoppel Agreement-Solar Farm
	Estoppel-Solar Farm

	10. The Falls Aquatic Center - Open Pit and Dumpster screening
	1-FAC-Open pit and dumpsters-revised memo
	2-Falls-Revised

	11. V&T Strategic Plan
	19-08-29 Memo Seeking Council Adoption of Strategic Plan

	12. Professional Service Agreement for digital advertising
	ZLR Packet for Council without Addl Ins Endorsement

	13. Immediate Need Equipment Purchase - Aerial Boom Truck
	Altec Aerial Immediate need purchase CC memo 8 27

	14. City Hall Remodel Design Services Contract
	Memo-Consulant Contract - Invision
	19108_CF_City_Hall_Ct - Final_INV_signed

	15. Low Bid - Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project
	1. 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project
	2. Bid Tabulation

	16. Contract & Bond - 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project
	1. 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project Memo
	2. Form of Contract
	3. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond
	4. Certificate of Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	17. MRA - Owen5 Facility
	1. Memo MRA Owen 5
	2. MRA - Owen5 Facility

	18. Resolution approving condemnation
	Memo to Mayor-Condemnation Resolution
	Resolution authorizing acquisition by ED and establishing just compensation (01626247x7F7E1)
	Exhibit A to Resolution authorizing ED (Cyber Lane) (01627929x7F7E1)

	19. Rental Conversion Program - 1931 Iowa Street
	1. Memo to Council - 1931 Iowa Street
	2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note
	3. application
	4. The Grand Plan for 1931 Iowa Street
	5. proof of purchase
	6. estimates
	7. before images

	20. Transportation Services Agreement with MET Transit for downtown shuttle services
	Downtown shuttle memo 8-29-19
	CF Shuttle Agreement Sept 2019

	21. MOU-INRCOG-Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program
	1. Council memo 8-27-19
	20190828164823268

	22. Termination of Real Estate Purchase Agreement
	1_Memo to Council for 09-03-19
	2_Site Map
	3_Termination of Real Estate Purchase Agreement

	23. Resolution Supplementing Resolution 21,663
	1_Memo to Council for 09-03-19
	2_Resolution Supplementing Resolution No 21,663 (01626227x7F7E1)

	24. Set PH-Land Use amendment-West Fork Crossing
	1 CC Memo Setting Public Hearing - West Fork Crossing land use
	Res-Set PH-Land Use-West Fork Crossing

	25. Set PH-Rezoning-West Fork Crossing
	1 CC Memo Setting Public Hearing - West Fork Crossing rezoning
	2 CC Resolution Setting Public Hearing rezoning - West Fork Crossing

	26. Ordinance-48 Hr Pkng
	MEMO TO MAYOR, COUNCIL FORM
	48 hours parking ordinance amendment final

	27. Allow Bills and Payroll of September 3, 2019
	28. Council Referral to develop a policy naming city streets after Rep Citizens
	1-Street Naming Referral- August 2019

	29. Council Referral to consider naming the Public Safety Facility
	2-Referral for Public Safety Facility Name -- August 2019

	30. Council Referral to honor Barbara Brown
	3-Referral to Honor Barbara Brown

	Bottom

